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The Industrial Revolution emerging in the eighteenth century represented the enlightenment
period for automation, when machines were introduced to replace manpower. Mankind
subsequently began to research heavily on the precision and standardization of mechanical
processing. The precision industry of Germany has produced many excellent processing
machines, which were the predecessors of today’s automatic machinery. Machinery was
later applied in industrial production, which, integrated with electronic and computer
applications, significantly enhanced the flexibility of machines, and the latest development
of artificial intelligence and robot (as shown on the cover) has led automation to even
greater breakthroughs and advancement in the field of industrial production.

The benefits of automation include significantly enhanced production speed, precision and
stability, which has thus saved manpower, eliminated fatigue as seen in manual operation
and problems arising from human errors. Therefore, it gave us advantages over those
ordinary enterprises, as reflected in cost reduction, increased productivity, customers’
satisfaction and improved environmental friendliness.

Speed, precision and stability constitute the Group’s development strategy, which is to
support the rapid growth of our consumer-related and services sectors and diversified
businesses with the stable income from industrial sector, and our precision team. Only
through the feedback system can machines adjust themselves to maximize effectiveness.
Our development strategy of speed, precision and stability must be mutually supportive
and complementary in order to survive competition and overcome adversity, and then
advance as the poem goes: “with echoes lingering on, our light boat has gone a long
way".
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

BREREEEH
FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2013 —E-=FUNKEFFE
Announcement of 2012/13 Results —E-—F /= EEZE/NHAH
26 July 2013 —T—=F+H=+H
Last day to Register for 2012/13 Final Dividends —E-CF / —=FEAREREREAERTAH
11 September 2013 —F-=FNAA+—H
Annual General Meeting RRBFRE
6 September 2013 —E-=%FNLAXA
2012/13 Final Dividend Payment Date B/ -ZHEEXREREREB
3 October 2013 —ET—=%+H=H
Financial Year End B FELER
31 March 2013 —E—=F=ZA=+—H
SHARE CAPITAL g A
As at
Bz
31 March 2013 30 June 2013
—E-=F —E—=%F
=HA=+-—H ~NA=1H
Authorised (HK$) EE (BoT) 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued (HK$) 2317 (BT) 199,619,520 199,619,520
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2013, the Company had 1,996,195,200
shares in issue of which approximately 25%® was held
by the public. As at that date, the Company had a total
of 862 registered shareholders. The following table shows
the distribution of ownership according to the Register
of Members and the Participant Shareholding Report
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement
System as of 30 June 2013:

BRREREH

RESBRKRD 20

HE_Z—=FA=1H ' "A[)H*2%T
0% 191,996,195,2000% * EF R FZHRKE L1
25%M e B ERH » AN A% ATMHARES62
HoBERREMEPREEIREZGN -
——FANAZTHREN2HEERERS &K
M&ES TATRERESHREBIEEELE -

Number of % of % of total
registered number of Number of issued share
Category shareholders shareholders shares capital
EEaii} 1 = LT
Al BRRHE Ji% SR EE 51 % BEREgE J% 43 £ 51 %
New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.11% 487,608,000 24.43%
Castfast Properties RIEEERR
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT] 1 0.11% 330,000,000 16.53%
The Wedding City Co. Limited &4 7GR A A 1 0.11% 260,000,000 13.02%
Ho's family@® BV 3 0.35% 413,270,000 20.70%
Directors® 1 4 0.46% 4,876,000 0.25%
Individuals BAKREE 687 79.71% 40,797,692 2.04%
Institutions, corporates BN EE
and nominees hEEREER
RIEA 165 19.15% 459,643,508 23.03%
Total =X 862 100.00% 1,996,195,200 100.00%
Note: B
(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public, (1 2AFFRERE (BRNew Sense Enterprises
excluding those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited, Limited - ZEFMERRER QA - B R
Castfast Properties Development Co., Ltd., The Wedding City BRAR - AIRKERARGEEZRFRG
Co. Limited, Ho's family and Directors of the Company. HEHN) RRATFENRNDEE -
) Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief (2) (IRKRGBERRITHAE T EmE T4 - IE

Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

%g%%%%ﬂiﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬂ%i&ﬁ%‘gfﬁkﬁi

(3)  EERE (RAEEEERASHEEN) &
ARZES -
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

BREREEEH
As at 30 June 2013 Shareholders Shares of HK$0.1 each
R=-E—=FXA=1+H BRER SREETETRG
Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total
RO EE AE {h#EEESH gE {hEEESH
1-2,000 511 59.3% 38,674 0.0%
2,001 - 10,000 54 6.3% 283,078 0.0%
10,001 - 20,000 35 41% 562,800 0.0%
20,001 - 50,000 46 5.3% 1,525,202 0.1%
50,001 — 100,000 53 6.1% 3,863,412 0.2%
100,001 - 200,000 42 4.9% 6,257,940 0.3%
200,001 - 500,000 50 5.8% 14,848,150 0.7%
500,001 - 1,000,000 16 1.9% 10,959,600 0.6%
1,000,001 — 2,000,000 21 2.4% 30,285,832 1.5%
2,000,001 - 5,000,000 15 1.7% 47,958,374 2.4%
Over 5,000,000A 19 2.2% 1,879,612,138 94.2%
862 100.0% 1,996,195,200 100.0%
MARKET CAPITALISATION e
As at 31 March 2013 BE-—ZE2-—=fF=A=+—H
(Closing Price: HK$0.29) (Y TifE : 0.29787T)
HK$578,896,608 578,896,608/& 7T
As at 27 June 2013 BE-ZE—=FxXA=t+tH
(Closing Price: HK$0.26) (Y TifE : 0.26787T)
HK$519,010,752 519,010,752/ 7T
Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in 2012/13
—E-Z )/ —ZFEEZREEZREXE
Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
ffE (L) f&E (#T)
0a | ]oa
03 M {1 03
02 | [ ,|];" %—Irhhlr’]_' { 02
LI et W _-"'|n.'n_
Ap;'WZ ' ' JL;\y Oct Jan'13
Trade Volume Trade Volume
(Shares in million) (Shares in million)
AR (EHEE) WQE (EE)
40M | 4 40M
30 + 4 30
20 + 4 20
0 _ {10
| i | I | | |-||i:':|
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

BEREFESFH
STOCK CODE % 19 4 555
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited BEBBERFFIBRAT
Main Board Fx
1050 1050
BOARD LOT BFRE
2,000 Shares 2,0000%
SHAREHOLDER SERVICES % R AR 7

REFEFNENRE TRHZEE  BRENE
& BRI  BAREF  FUE@E
BRI PR BPER DR

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Branch

Share Registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2862-8628

Fax:  (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Ms. Winnie Tsang

Senior Corporate Communications Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited

10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building

611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2437-6875

Fax:  (852) 2415-1608

Email: pytsang@karrie.com
ir@karrie.com

EEPRLEEETLARAT
BE

ERRNEBRI183%
EMAPLTE1712-16F

T iE : (852) 2862-8628
{&HE : (852) 2529-6087

REERRE
AT ER - BB

2w &/ R

=R EEEMEE

=B IER AR AR

BE

FREE

SIUAK611-6195%

REIEXEKRE10E

E 4 (852) 2437-6875

{85 : (852) 2415-1608

B H : pytsang@karrie.com
ir@karrie.com
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CORPORATE CALENDAR
ERXEHR

2012

In line with the Business Structural Evolution, the Company completed the relocation of plastic
injection department to Yuquan Industrial Region. The Feng Gang idle plant was transformed into a
multifunctional convention and exhibition centre in which the First Anniversary Wedding Exposition

Nov11R successfully held.

REALEER IBHTTRRBEEIRBR, RERENEREERZEGRST L, AKNE
WmEREEES

The official openings of a flagship store in Tsuen Wan and a concept store in Tsim Sha Tsui by My
Affection Limited in September and December respectively have laid down a solid foundation for the

Dec 128 Group to explore wedding business.
PEZENREBR ARV ZEERE MV ERSEREN AR T ZAEXRE, REERA
BEXBETREER
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CORPORATE CALENDAR
LEXEHR

2013

Awarded the "Silver Label — 2011/2012 Low-carbon Office Operation Programme (LOOP)" by the
World Wide Fund — Hong Kong

Bt AAARESSEEDLBEE "20112012FEE KIRFAZTE] - MREL"

Awarded the "Hang Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards — Green Medal" by Federation of

Hong Kong Industries

EREIXESRE "BER=BRERNE - RERERF]"

Acquired total 176 sets of 6-axis versatile industrial robots and already set in operation up to 31
March 2013

BZE2013F3A31HE 2B A K176 6 /B T, Wik AEE

Awarded the "Dongguan Cleaner Production Enterprise" by Dongguan Environmental Protection

Department
EREMRERERRE "REMBEREELR"

My Affection Limited was awarded the "Excellence Service Award — Gold Medal" by Hong Kong
Retail Management Association

BUHREARAPEEETEEEHERE "TET/ N EBERBE - 8

"The Upgrading and Transformation of Karrie Group cum Cui Feng-Kawasaki Automation Exhibition"
was held in the multifunctional convention and exhibition centre. The Group shared with the other
players in the industry the outcomes of the mechanical automation application which signified a
great leap forward for business transformation and were highly recognized and appreciated by the
industry.

REDEERT OER "ZMNEERELERE)| | REHLRES", BXRHDZEENEMRE S
LRMBMKRR, SEEBLEBH —AY, BIXRSERRMEE

Awarded the "2012 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence — Bronze Award" by

Environmental Campaign Committee

BRGREEPTESME012FERREMET S 2 “RAIS B S - BUEERLE

After the completion of the acquisition of Fullhouse, the chained theme restaurants in Malaysia, the
first wedding-theme restaurants Fullhouse Signature officially landed in Hong Kong

SEAK U 5 2R PE 00 = REE SHZ BB Fullhouse 4 B [ IAIE B2 /& = R Z EEFullhouse Signature IF sV ERER

Achieved 10,000 sets medical equipments production
ERAE B ABRRRERE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MGE=E

Share Price Movement from 2009 to 2013
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Turnover percentage by Products

REmBIMNERFR IR

@ Metal ar)d\ Plastic Business
heBRBER

o Electromcs Ma%ﬁacturlng Services Business

ETEXEART

@ Consumer and Services Business
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FINANCIAL HIG

HLIGHTS
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Turnover percentage by Geographical Location

REMMAEBEINEXRTEELR
® Japan ® Hong Kong
B 50 +

@ Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and
Mainland China)
ol (TEEER -

@ North America
=M FaEx

31%

Mainland China

PN

B8 I R B R RE)
@® \Western Europe

2012 2013 e
estate!
2013 2012 % Changes
—2B-=F —T——-F EHEHL
(Restated)
B &7
HK$ million B & 8T
Revenue WA 2,291 2,290 -
Gross profit Sl 242 189 +28%
Operating profit 42 T 70 62 +13%
Profit for the year Eﬂ;mﬁﬂ 42 25 +68%
Profit attributable to equity holders %/\T—;ﬁ)\ﬁé{ﬁ/jﬁflj 42 25 +68%
Total assets S EE 4B 1,698 1,967 -14%
Shareholders’ equity Hx%%ﬁﬁ 926 887 +4%
In Million ER
Number of shares EnE = 1,996 998 +100%
Per Share Data srRER
HK Cents B
Basic earnings E AR 2.1 1.3 +62%
Diluted earnings HEE m A 2.1 1.3 +62%
Total cash dividends BIR TR B 1.2 1.0 +20%
HK$ BT
Net asset value per share BREESE 0.5 0.9 -44%
Financial Ratios B FEEE =R
Gross profit margin (%) BIRER (%) 10.6 8.3 +28%
Net profit margin (%) BRAR (%) 1.8 1.1 +64%
Net current ratio FOR BN = 1.5 1.4 +7%
Net quick ratio FRB) L 1.0 0.9 +11%
Net gearing ratio (%) FIRITEELE (%) -4 -4 -
Interest coverage R EORE L& 16.1 14.1 +14%
Dividend payout (%) KELLEE (%) 57 38* +50%
Revenue to net bank borrowings WA ELFIRITIE B L& N/ATEA N/AZ3E R N/AZTiE B
Non-current assets to IEmEE E R
total equity (%) BIELEE (%) 76 73 +4%

*  Adjusted the effect of the bonus issue
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HEBE

Definitions E&

/Basic earnings Profit attributable to equity holders SR AT A AR
per share Weighted average number of shares . e N AR E
Diluted earnings Profit attributable to equity holders RS F A AEL ST
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares RS B g R o AR K
Net asset value Net assets BEEEE BEHE
per share Number of shares as at year end SRS FRAREN
Gross profit Gross profit o e o E 7
margin (%) Revenue e BRER (%) A T
Net profit Profit for the year o FEEHA
margin (%) Revenue LU BRI (%) W A A IE

Current assets less the lower of short-
term bank borrowings or cash and bank
balances and time deposit

NI QUTHEE (D Current liabilities less the lower of short-

term bank borrowings or cash and bank
balances and time deposit

Current assets less inventories and the
lower of short-term bank borrowings or
cash and bank balances

Net quick ratio and time deposit

Current liabilities less the lower of short-
term bank borrowings or cash and bank
balances and time deposit

Bank borrowings
less cash and bank balances

Net gearing and time deposit

H 0,
ratio (%) Total equity

Earnings before interest expenses, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

Interest coverage
Interest expenses

Dividend
payout (%)

Dividend per share

. x 100%
Earnings per share

Revenue
Revenue to net

Bank borrowings
less cash and bank balances
and time deposit

bank borrowings

Non-current Non-current assets

assets to total
equity (%)

N

Total equity
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On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to
present the annual report of Karrie International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS
The Group is principally engaged in

(1

Metal and Plastic (“M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products including
computer casings, office automation products,
video tape cassettes, visual accessories, automobile
products, moulds, plastic and metal parts;

Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS") Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape drives,
laser printers, multi-function facsimile machines,
“point-of-sale” system, medical products and other
computer peripherals; and

Consumer-related and Services Business: provision
of wedding-related services including wedding
gown, photography, wedding planning, travel, hotel
and catering services.

Business Review
/. Results

Turnover of the Group slightly increased
by HK$1,239,000 to HK$2,291,404,000
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (year
ended 31 March 2012: HK$2,290,165,000).
Profit after tax amounted to approximately
HK$41,937,000 (year ended 31 March 2012:
HK$25,347,000), of which manufacturing
business recorded a profit of approximately
HK$83,573,000 while non-manufacturing
business recorded a loss of approximately
HK$41,636,000.

1. Industrial domain

1. The major concern for last year
still arose from the Euro debt crisis.
Economic data from the U.S. failed
to paint a clear picture and the
economy there remains exposed to
the challenge of “sequester”, yet
a positive sign is showing. Chinese
economy picked up strength again
since the fourth quarter of 2012,
although the growth was not as
strong as prior year.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EREHWE

2. Main reasons for the increase in profit
after tax of industrial business:

(a)

M&P Business: The turnover
of the M&P Business for
the year ended 31 March
2013 increased by 1% to
HK$996,696,000 compared
to the same period last year
(for the year ended 31 March
2012: HK$988,519,000). It
is mainly due to the increase
in sales of servers, plastic
and metal components and
moulds.

EMS Business: Despite the
increase in the turnover of
cash register and accessories
for multi-functional digital
copiers, it did not offset the
impact of Euro debt crisis and
the intense competition in
the copier industry and the
substantial decrease in export
of finished goods to Europe.
The turnover of the EMS
Business for the year ended
31 March 2013 decreased by
1% to HK$1,287,365,000
compared to the same period
last year (year ended 31 March
2012: HK$1,296,871,000).

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/1.
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(0)

Benefit from automation: The
Group has invested 176 sets
of 6-axis versatile industrial
robots at approximately
HK$54,000,000 for stamping
production, 3 sets for
welding production and 2
sets for transportation of
digital numerical control (NC)
machines up to 31 March
2013, which resulted in a
decrease in manpower from
1.4 to 0.38, and labor cost
savings of approximately
HK$6,000,000 for the financial
year. Given that some of
the robots were operated
for less than a full year, it
is believed that the savings
could have been no less than
HK$12,000,000 if they had
been operated throughout the
year.

The Group significantly
reduced internal power
generation and maximised
the use of commercial power,
meanwhile, the Group
used alternative energy to
substitute part of diesel power
generation, which resulted in
cost savings of approximately
HK$9,000,000 during the year.
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As TIS Karrie Technologies (H.K.)
Company Limited (a joint venture of
which the Group is interested in 49%)
is still unable to turnaround its loss,
the Group has reached a consensus
with Teco Image Systems Co., Ltd.
(“TIS") as follows: to terminate its
operation with effect from May 2013,
and to commence the liguidation
procedures and realize its net assets
value which shall be allocated to
the Group and TIS according to the
proportional equity interests held by
each of them. This is expected to
enable the resources of the Group
to be concentrated on other projects
with good potential.

Regarding the sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of
Grandway Investment (Group)
Limited, as the purchaser failed to
perform the agreement by the long-
stop date (i.e. 30 November 2012),
the Group has issued a termination
notice to the purchaser, and taken
steps accordingly to protect relevant
interests.

Holding on to its original business, the
Group has reserved sufficient land for
future industrial development, with
investment in industrial fixed assets
of approximately HK$67,076,000 this
year. Notwithstanding the various
challenges faced by the industrial
section this year, the Group is
satisfied with its performance, and
believes that there remains room for
development in the long term though
the road ahead is still hard.
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.

Consumer-related and Services Business

Yixing Business Hotel

6.

The “Main Body Construction” of
the Yixing Business Hotel has been
completed and accepted, so the main
tasks for fiscal year 2013/14 will be
interior decoration and equipment
installation. The revaluation of Yixing
Hotel has represented an appreciation
by approximately HK$804,000,
bringing special non-cash benefits to
the Group.

Wedding service

7.

Our stores and shops at Tsuen Wan
and Tsim Sha Tsui have a total area
of approximately 30,000 square
feet, in which we have invested
approximately HK$20,000,000. It
provides one-stop wedding services,
complemented by the service offered
from The One Travel Co., Limited
("One Travel”), aiming to develop
overseas and mainland wedding
photography business. The Group
has received deposit from customers
approximately HK$4,185,000 of
which, approximately HK$1,375,000
reported as sales during the year,
mainly from wedding photography,
which accounted for 69% of the
total sales. Our strategic partner
“Full House (Castfast) Theme Resort”
("Theme Resort”) has been certified
as a National AAAA Scenic Spot.
Riding on the strengths of Theme
Resort, My Affection Limited (“My
Affection”) has launched a series of
new and innovative photography
packages, which turned out to be
warmly welcome.
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In addition, our flagship store at
Tsuen Wan has an indoor studio with
an area of more than 10,000 square
feet. The studio features unique
scenery style, e.g. nostalgic & old-
time, dazzling & colourful, relaxing &
romantic, and plain but chic, and can
be used for wedding photography,
family get-together as well as
business promotion, which makes it
an exceptional spot for photography
in Hong Kong and popular among
customers who have distinctive tastes.

My Affection also participates in
various wedding fairs to promote its
wedding service packages ranging
from wedding planning, wedding
car, marriage witnessing, Chinese
wedding master arrangement, small
gifts such as red packets, and provides
its customers with over 2,000 wedding
and evening gowns and dress suits. By
winning the “2012 Excellence Service
Award — Gold Medal”, My Affection
finally obtained the acknowledgment
of the customers and other market
players. The good news encouraged
and inspired the My Affection people,
who are expecting even bigger
success in the coming year. As the
wedding business is still striving to
establish its brand, and the overall
operation is in the run-in phase, its
sales results were unsatisfactory and
failed to make a profit. My Affection
will try to attract more professionals
from the market through franchising,
so as to provide better services and
achieve a win-win result, i.e. to break
even and make a profit.
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Investment in securities

8.

The Company invested in the shares
of a listed company. As it conducted
a 2 for 5 rights issue during the year
and its total sales fell by 36% for
the fourth quarter of the vyear, its
share price tumbled as a result. As
at 31 March 2013, the Company
suffered a book loss of approximately
HK$6,000,000 on the investment,
which was reflected in consolidated
income statement.

Fullhouse World

On 31 December 2012, the Group
completed the acquisition of the
interests in seven companies (i.e.
70% interest in Full House Lifestyle
Concept Sdn. Bhd., 70% interest in
Full House Management Sdn. Bhd.,
70% interest in Trendtastik Sdn. Bhd.,
35% interest in Full House Pastry Sdn.
Bhd., 42% interest in Layar Sinarmas
Sdn. Bhd., 17.5% interest in Peak
Century Sdn. Bhd. and 14% interest
in Barley House Singapore Pte Ltd.,
collectively, the “Target Companies”)
for a consideration of HK$24,000,000
and obtained a ten-year exclusive
franchise in Malaysia, Singapore,
Indonesia, China, Hong Kong, Macau
and Japan. In addition to Malaysia
and Singapore markets, the Company
is going to develop the Greater China
market with the Fullhouse World
brand (“Fullhouse World”). Fullhouse
World's distinctive dining flagship
store in Hong Kong has a total
area of approximately 8,700 square
feet (running in direct operation
mode with direct management and
promotion), in which it has invested
approximately HK$10,000,000. Soft
opening was launched on 21 June
2013. The Group’s operating strategy
in China is to temporarily outsource
Fullhouse World restaurants to a third
party and charge operating fee, so as
to ensure stable income.
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Fullhouse World has different target
customers in different places, for
instance, its primary customers in
Dongguan will be families, and the
target customers in Hong Kong,
Guangzhou and Shenzhen will be
young people.

Upgrade and Transform

10.

In addition to reserving sufficient land
for industrial purposes, the Group
is planning to use the remaining
industrial land, including having its
idle plastic factory converted into
a multi-functional convention and
exhibition centre and comprehensive
sports/performing arts arena in
response to the central government’s
call to "Policy Reform, Business
Structural Evolution, Land and City
Transformation”, which has, together
with the Fenggang Municipal
Government, successfully held the
“Kegiao Culture Festival cum First
Anniversary Wedding Exposition” as
well as a number of children’s clothing
and underwear fairs. During May
and June 2013, the arena also held
a number of Fullhouse World Factory
Music Carnivals, in support of the
interactive marketing activities of the
Fullhouse World franchisees, which
successfully revived the factories, and
is in line with the Group’s long-term
development policy.
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The first wedding-theme restaurant Fullhouse Signature officially landed in Hanoi
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui. It is not only a paradise for enjoying all kinds of international
cuisines, but also an ideal arena for holding various wedding banquets.
BB AT @MFullhouse Signature@ BFELRMD N NE - BIEHEEZREZ
N BERENZAEEEZ GRS -
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Conclusion

11.

The Industry Segment’s performance
for the year was very encouraging,
making it the Group’s “Cash Cow”,
providing essential cash flow to
the “New Star Businesses” such as
the consumer-related and services
business (including the wedding
sector, theme restaurants and hotel
development). However, the Board
still hoped the consumer-related and
services business will, with the help
of the industry segment, gradually
break even and thrive. As the “New
Star Business” enjoys higher gross
profit margin and can improve the
Group’s profitability, and eventually
lead to a win-win situation for both
the industry segment and consumer-
related and services business, it will
widen the sources of income for the
Group, reduce the financial risk of
over-reliance on revenue from the
industry segment, and maximize the
returns to our shareholders.
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EREE
Net bank
borrowings/
(balances) ratio”
Turnover Capex as at 31 March
FRITEE
(#7) tb=A
BZ=AH
EER EEEERE =+—H
HK$ HK$
BTT 7T
2007/08 2,799,967,000 199,000,000 8%
2008/09 2,460,578,000 115,000,000 -5%
2009/10 2,240,764,000 82,893,000 -4%
2010/11 2,591,101,000 173,850,000° 8%
201112 2,290,165,000 112,299,000 -4%
2012/13 2,291,404,000 107,078,000 -4%
2013/14 N/AT 3 FH 211,000,000 25%
@ Of which, HK$64,918,000 for @ He - TEJE1564,918,0008 T - FFT (L
industries and HK$108,932,000 for 108,932,000 7T
non-industries
# Of which, HK$23,751,000 for # Hep o THE(523,751,000/8 7T 3F TR (G
industries and HK$88,548,000 for 88,548,000/ 7T
non-industries
* Of which, HK$67,076,000 for * Hep» TH81567,076,0008 7T -+ I TR
industries and HK$40,002,000 for 40,002,000 7T
non-industries
ok Initial estimation — of which o ) fheT — Hh T £ %81597,000,000/8 7T + 3
HK$97,000,000 for industries and T 2%8(5114,000,00078 7T
HK$114,000,000 for non-industries
A Bank borrowings less cash and bank A RITIEERMIR & RRTTAEF KE BAF SRBR AR =
balances and time deposit divided by @A
total equity
(2) Dividend Policy (=) REEX

The Board has adopted a set of “New Dividend
Policy” since the first quarter of the financial year
of 2006/07, which outlines the factors that should
be taken into account in determining the dividend
for distribution, such as profit attributable to equity
holders of the Group, cash flow and Capex. After
careful considerations of the aforementioned
factors, the Board hopes to maintain the Company’s
track record of paying dividends to shareholders for
sixteen consecutive years, and therefore the Board
recommends to pay a final dividend of HK1.2 cents
per share to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of members of the Company on 13
September 2013.
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3)

(4)

Geographical Distribution

The Group has always adopted a diversified
approach in transporting its goods and does not
rely on one single market. Details are set out in
segment information in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statement.

Prospects
/ Industry

1. The U.S. economy is still stuck in
the plight of de-leveraging with
unstable economic performance. It
remains unclear whether the Fed
would withdraw its debt buying
program from the market earlier than
expected. The Japanese Government'’s
ultra-loose monetary policy has met
with initial success, with improved
exports and more promising corporate
earnings outlook, which has been
favourable for the Japanese economy
to gradually recover. In contrast, the
European economy is expected to be
in further decline under the shadow
of its lingering debt crisis, making it a
factor of the current global financial
crisis and economic instability. The
Southern Asia sea territory disputes
and North Korea crisis have hindered
Asia’s economic growth, while RMB
has begun to appreciate. Obviously,
the road in front of us will not be
broad and smooth.

2. It is expected that, the Group's
industry segment will continue
to face difficulties and challenges
this year, including rising salaries,
“labour shortage”, rising steel price,
the pressure of accelerated RMB
appreciation and instability of macro-
economy, etc., as a result of which,
the Group had to take the following
measures to enhance the cost-
effectiveness:

(=)

()
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It has become a consensus in
the manufacturing industry
to invest in the upgrade
of equipment automation,
increase the level of production
automation, reduce labour
intensity, improve the working
environment, improve quality
and reduce waste. According
to relevant market data, in
2011, the number of robots
installed in China grew by
51%, and will continue with
a double-digit growth in the
next few years. It is estimated
that by 2015, the number
of robots installed each year
will be close to 35,000 units,
ranking China No.1 abreast of
Japan. The range of application
has expanded from workpiece
moving at the metal stamping
lines to computer numerical

meg k& B8 &bk
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BE B & eha
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During “The Upgrading and Transformation of Karrie Group cum Cui Feng-Kawasaki Automation Exhibition” held in April 2013, Dr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman of the Group (Right 1) was leading the tour and introducing our application of mechanical auotmation to
industries.
T =FEARY [ENEEAREAERE)|KEBRER | BB SEXRAEEEL (5—) BEFEXR2BRER
SEEMEBELHRAIER
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control (CNC) machining, laser
welding and so on. In the
future, automation and robotic
application may even be
extended to sanding, painting,
palletizing and assembly
processes. The Group actively
participates in automation
reforms and studies business
opportunities for direct
involvement in the automation
business.

b. Improving moulding efficiency,
realizing a shorter average
production cycle than that of
last year.

d Adjusting the Company’s
microstructure, streamlining
internal operating processes,
strengthening management
of post responsibilities, and
further downsizing.

d. Rationalizing internal logistics
control system and reducing
overall salvage rate.

e. Auxiliary tooling introduced
in the assembly processes or
partially mixed automation,
so as to improve production
efficiency on the basis of last
year.

f. The Group will gradually
eliminate products which
contribute to operating losses,
and concentrate resources
on projects with higher profit
margin.

We hope the above measures will
further improve the profit margin of
the Group.
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development of a man-
machine hybrid automated
assembly line with the six-
axis robots used in non-
dedicated product assembly
line, which is, first to enhance
the Company’s assembly
automation expertise, and
second to develop the six-axis
robots agency business.
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d. Providing quality services
for the existing customers
(including speed, flexibility
and competitive prices),
so as to secure more new
assembly projects and pure
parts projects, which can boost
the business growth of the
moulding and metal & plastic
part sectors.

e. Improving the services in the
field of CNC machining and
prototype, and if necessary,
increasing investment so as to
improve the speed and quality
of CNC manufacturing.

f. Actively developing new
business, exploring in the
direction of high value-added,
high-tech businesses and
products with long life cycle.

We hope that through the
development in the following three
years, our expertise in mechanical
engineering design and mould
manufacturing technology (metal
stamping and precision plastic
injection moulds) accumulated over
the past years can be enhanced to a
higher level. With that said we can
keep us as the pioneer of the industry,
maintaining our reputation widely
recognized by the industry in the
fields of moulding, metal stamping,
precision plastic injection, component
assembly. We can continue to provide
professional electronic OEM services
to the existing EMS customers;
and stand firm in the new business
sectors. Establishing a simple and
smooth internal organizational
structure with strong implementation
power as well as a modern and highly
efficient manufacturing enterprise
with performance appraisal as its key
management focus.
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.

Consumer-related and Services Business

Yixing Business Hotel

1.

Yixing Karrie Commercial Building
will be built into a hotel namely the
Castfast Hotel in Yixing with a total
of 320 rooms. We will build a Yixing
Platform based on the Fenggang
successful model, including, among
others, Fullhouse World, My Affection
wedding service package, wedding
photography base and multi-function
rooms. All functions will be integrated
and mutually supported, which could
enhance operating efficiency and help
us penetrate into the new market in
Yixing. The Castfast Hotel in Yixing
is currently undergoing interior
decoration, which is expected to start
a trial operation in 2014 and be put
into operation in 2015.

Wedding Business

2.

Competition is intense for the
wedding industry in Hong Kong.
Up to 700 exhibitors participate in
wedding exhibitions of different
sizes every year. It is necessary for an
industry player to expand the market
share and improve service quality to
differentiate it from a large number
of wedding companies. Accordingly,
the first target for My Affection is
to make ends meet. My Affection
will take the following measures to
achieve the above target:—
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(i)

(ii)

As a wedding platform, My
Affection will strive to offer
attractions and quality one-
stop service package to
independent photographers
and makeup artists in
return for monthly joining
fees, including renting out
wedding dress in favorable
terms and providing other
wedding souvenirs. A mutually
complementary and win-win
situation will be achieved. It
is anticipated that the joint
service plan could attract
dozens of joiners to use My
Affection as a wedding service
platform on a long term
basis and that those joiners
will be pleased to hand over
customers to the attention
of My Affection. Hence, My
Affection will be able to
expand its customer base and
customer source.

Developing creative and
unique concept of the dress-
designer team for the wedding
gowns and formal suits of My
Affection will be emphasized.
For a new couple, they must
visit My Affection in person
and pick the wedding dress
that suits them most.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

We will coordinate with
each of our strong strategic
partners, cooperative wedding
companies and joiners to
provide customers with
different scopes of professional
product and service of high
quality, so as to free our
customers from the trouble of
hunting for a good wedding
service company and save their
time and efforts.

We will strive to expand
the source of income of My
Affection by designing and
producing a series of theme
souvenirs up to international
standard for wedding tourism,
and distributing them on a
wholesale basis.

We will cooperate with
shopping malls to promote the
photography package of My
Affection. From 9 June 2013
to 13 June 2013, My Affection
coordinated with Discovery
Park, a large shopping mall,
to hold an exhibition named
“My Affection Dad Party”.
It exhibited oil paintings
and photo-book for pictures
of family, graduation, kids
and pets, and promoted
photography service through
little games, instant-developed
pictures and kids" world. In
addition, it displayed products
from Fullhouse World and
four pop dolls from Fullhouse
World performed on-the-
spot to interact with visitors.
Accordingly, the brands of My
Affection and Fullhouse World
are mutually benefited. The
exhibition was well-received.
Going ahead, My Affection
will organise similar promotion
exhibitions with each of the
big shopping malls.
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My Affection cooperates with large shopping malls to promote our photography package. “My Affection Dad Party” held in
Discovery Park won warm praises.

ENEANHSAERERYER, NSRS [EREBRRY ] fEBIRIEE

Travel Service

3. Furthermore, One Travel will strive
to:—

(i) Focus on the development
of photography business
for overseas wedding and
wedding photography tourism.
By virtue of My Affection’s
professionalism in weddings
and heightened recognition
by the market, One Travel will
develop more wedding tourism
packages to offer perfect
service.

(ii) With supports from My
Affection and Fullhouse World,
One Travel will develop all-in-
one products incorporating
honeymoon travel and
wedding photography in the
PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore
and Malaysia. This will take the
form of package tickets which
include overseas wedding
services.
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(i) By cooperating with overseas
travel agencies, One Travel
intends to attract overseas
tourists to Hong Kong and the
PRC through wedding tourism.

(iv)  Satisfy the ever-changing
needs of the market by making
honeymoon sightseeing our
primary offer, complemented
by wedding photography in
popular countries.

Land and City Transformation

4.

For the purpose of supporting the
policy of land and city transformation
in the future by Fenggang Town,
PRC, the Group will be required
to relocate, transform or construct
new plants for the next financial
year. The fixed assets investment will
therefore increase. It is expected that
the capital expenditure for the land
and city transformation will amount
approximately to HK$25,000,000
for the next financial year. A variety
of different activities will be held in
the transformed multi-functional
convention and exhibition centre,
including, among others, exhibitions
and live concerts, while the brands
of My Affection and Fullhouse World
will be promoted to enhance its
recognition and expand the market in
the PRC.

Fullhouse World

In addition to catering services,
Fullhouse World will add the function
of wedding-related product retail
to the restaurant to strengthen
the brand effect. One thirds of the
restaurant space will be converted
into an area for wedding photography
and selling wedding products to
increase operation efficiency and
create a win-win situation.
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Fullhouse World’s Hong Kong shop,
which has been opened, will line
up the wedding service packages
from My Affection and services
from One Travel. It will provide all
kinds of tourism products with a
concept of Fullhouse World under
the “Fullhouse Travel” brand name,
which will bring to Fullhouse World
a new combination of product
offering in addition to catering in the
future. Apart from Fullhouse World's
catering operation, the Group has
started to develop a Fullhouse World-
themed hotel and park in the PRC.
The Group will continue to expand
its domestic business in the form of
theme park under that Malaysian
brand, which could inject new blood
to the products of My Affection. The
current six branches of Fullhouse
World in Singapore and Malaysia will
allow the exposure of My Affection
elements, which give strong support
for overseas wedding photography
service provided by My Affection.

Overall Outlook

In general, the Group will strive to
maintain a sound financial position,
hold to the manufacture industry
and support consumer and services
business, thereby laying a foundation
for business diversification. It is
expected that both the manufacture
operation and consumer and services
business may record a profit within
the next three years. The Group’s
sources of profit will be widened
and shareholders could benefit from
our future success. | would like to
conclude my words by quoting a
Chinese poem: “with echoes lingering
on, our light boat has gone a long

"

way"”.
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The unaudited turnover of the Group
for the two months ended 31 May
2013 was HK$278,020,000 (2012/13:
HK$362,795,000), as the unaudited turnover
for the two months may not be able to
reflect the final results for the year ended
31 March 2014, shareholders and potential
investors are advised to exercise caution
when dealing in the shares of the Company.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Generating Ability

With the improvement from the manufacturing operations,
the financial position remains healthy. Net bank balances
as at 31 March 2013 was about HK$35,248,000 and the
net bank balance ratio was 4%. (As at 31 March 2012, net
bank balances was about HK$36,786,000 and net bank
balance ratio was 4%).

Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio
staying below 1

The Non-current assets to Total Equity Ratio stayed at a
healthy level of 76% (2011/12: 73%). This means that the
Group is using long term shareholders’ fund to finance
non-current assets such as plants and machinery. The sole
purpose of the existing bank borrowings is to finance the
working capital.

Financing for Growth

As at 31 March 2013, the audited net bank balances
were approximately HK$35,248,000. As more fund will be
invested in the Yixing Business Hotel project and wedding
business, we expect the net gearing ratio will stay at a
level of below 25% for the financial year 2013/14. We are
also following our house rule of using our profit after tax
and proceeds from disposal of assets to finance our capital
expenditures and new business:
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Financing Capex by Profit

WEFEREEEEREZEE IR

HK$ million AEETT 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 1112 12/13
Profit after tax EREHER 13 20 9 22 3 42
Depreciation e 60 57 48 50 46 55
Proceeds of rights issue HREE 122 - - - - -
Consideration satisfied by ABRAEZ
Issue of shares miEE - - _ 124%@ - B
Proceeds from assets disposal ~ HEEE 7 FI1E% - - 7 - 176 22
195 77 64 196 225 119
Less: W
Capex EFEERE 199 115 83 174 112 107
Dividend/dividends to be Be
distributed KRR 4 9 6 10 10 24
(Deficit)/surplus (BR),/ Bk (8) 47) (25) 12 103 (12)
Net bank borrowings/ SFIRITEE
(net bank balances) CFRITETF) 52 (36) (31) 72 (37) (35)
Net gearing ratio/(net bank SFIRITEELE
balances ratio)” CRIBITHER
&) A 8% (5%) (4%) 8% (4%) (4%)
* Calculation based on the issue price at HK$0.425 per share * LA % 47291,000,0000% 4% 1E (€ &= f%0.425/8 JT 51
for 291,000,000 shares =
@ Shares were issued to settle the consideration for the @ M EETRELMIREEEZFEBEAEREE
acquisition of Yixing Karrie Commercial Building Development [RAR) W EEE
Co., Ltd.
# Excluded gain on disposal of property and increase in fair # TEEHEMEZ WS RIEEYEAFE LM
value of investment properties
A Bank borrowings less cash and bank balances and time A IRITEERR S RIBITET R EBHTRG AR

deposit divided by total equity
Resources Available

Total bank borrowings are about HK$271,146,000.
The Directors are confident that with the cash in hand
and the bank balances of about HK$306,394,000 and
the unutilised banking facilities of HK$1,161,874,000,
the Group is able to meet its current operational and
capital expenditure requirements and to make strategic
investments when opportunities arise.
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Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions
are denominated either in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
or RMB. As the exchange rates of the RMB against Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar rose continuously during the
relevant period, the Group was exposed to exchange rate
fluctuation risks and pressure on its production cost. The
Group will actively communicate with its customers in
order to adjust the selling prices of its products to mitigate
the impact of the appreciation of the RMB on its business.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

Tea-break with Individual Investors

We are glad that the “tea-break with individual investors”
has been successfully held for 17th times. The Group
adheres to the principles of “openness, fairness and
equality” and believes that all investors (institutional or
individual) should have the same right to get access to the
Company’s information. With these principles in mind and
considering that the tea-break remains to be an effective
and efficient way for the Company to communicate with
its investors, the Group will continue to organise tea-break
with individual investors. Last year, the tea-break, the first
time, was held in Fenggang, PRC for visiting our industrial
business and customer and services business. The next tea-
break is scheduled on 31 August 2013 from 11 a.m. to 1
p.m. at Fullhouse Signature, Shop 1A, G/F, BCC Building,
25-31 Carnarvon Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. As part of the Group’s social responsibility efforts,
participants will be asked to donate at least HK$150 to
charity and the Group will match the donation up to a
maximum of HK$10,000. The Group will request the
relevant charity to issue a receipt to the donors for tax
deduction purpose.

Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website
at www.karrie.com for more details. Application form can
be downloaded from the website or obtained by calling
2411-0913 during office hours. Only investors whose
applications are confirmed can join the function. Investors
are advised to grasp this opportunity to communicate
directly with the management of the Company.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

At the end of March 2013, the Group had 4,910
employees (6,145 employees at the end of March 2012).
With a good reputation in the local community, the Group
has rarely encountered major difficulties in recruiting
employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group
will also grant bonuses to employees with outstanding
performance based on its own audited business
performance and the appraisal and reward system.
Other employee benefits include medical insurance, and
mandatory provident fund.

Performance Based Incentives

The Group adopted performance based bonus system and
more objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will receive bonus higher than
what they would have received before the new system was
implemented.

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK1.2 cents (2011/12: HK1 cent) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 13 September 2013. Together with
the interim dividend, total dividend paid for this year
amounted to HK1.2 cents (2011/12: HK1 cent) per share.
The final dividend will be subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company to be held
on 6 September 2013.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee made
up of one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors whose duties include reviewing
and supervising the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control systems. The audit committee and the
management have reviewed the accounting principles and
major policies adopted by the Group and have discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting with
the external auditors during the year. The audit committee
has reviewed the consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group, and my fellow Directors,
managers and all staff for their considerable contributions
to the Group.
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APPENDIX 1

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified
and generalized for easy
understanding)
1. Quotation Phase
— Around 12 to 15 months prior
to shipment, Customer A sends
out Request for Quotation (RFQ)
for a project to all “qualified
suppliers”.

2. Project Confirmation Phase
- Customer A confirms the
placement of the project to us;
— Customer A also provides
shipment forecast for the next
18 to 24 months, which is the
normal life cycle of a project.

3. Moulds and Prototype Making

Phase

— According to Customer A’s
specification, we start to
perform the design works, make
the moulds and prototype;

— This process would take around
6 to 12 months;

— Customer A would also work
with our purchasing department
on electronics components and
the list of qualified suppliers for
such components.

4. Shipment Phase
— Customer A finalizes and revises
the final shipment schedule;
— We start manufacturing and
ship goods to just-in-time (JIT)
inventory warehouses.

5. Sales Recognition and Payment
— Customer A takes goods from
JIT warehouses;
— We get paid after the normal
credit period (generally 60 days).

Quotation

Phase
HERKE

D 4

Project
Confirmation

Phase
EERE

<
Moulds &
Prototype

Making Phase
EERERR

D

Shipment Phase
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w
Sales
Recognition &
Payment

HERARKREG
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

As in most cases the Group is the sole supplier for the
confirmed project and the related engineering works have
largely been completed, our problem is therefore one of
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report,
page 26).
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1.

We deal with projects, which can take one year
from initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods. A
project’s shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

We do not normally have a large order backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the just-
in-time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, Electronic Data
Interexchange (EDI) or a combination of the above
methods.

Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular project
and therefore have the obligation to ship goods to
customers even if the sales volume is much higher
than the initial projection.

Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the electronic components
are either sourced through the customers or their
designated suppliers.

While the metal and plastic enclosures business
is an integral part of the computer and computer
peripheral sector, the industry thrives only in Taiwan
but not in Hong Kong.

Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like
project originated in Japan, components assembled
in China while the final products shipped to Asia or
Europe. Our definition of breakdown by market is by
shipment destination rather than country of origin of
the customers.
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APPENDIX 2

Corporate Governance

1.

Remarks:

Establishment of an Executive Committee to improve
decision-making efficiency. The day-to-day operations
of the Group are now in the hands of a group of
professional managers;

Efforts to improve transparency

— disclosing in annual report detailed explanation
of corporate strategies and the rationale behind;

— meeting with individual shareholders annually
through a new “tea-break” program;

— disclosing price sensitive information on a
timely basis, including continuing connected
transaction, profit warning and discloseable
transaction.

—  The Company maintains a website (http/Avwww.karrie.com)
through which the Company’s updated financial
information, announcements, circulars, notices of
meetings, press releases and contact details can
be accessed by the shareholders of the Company
and investors.

Clearly defined dividend policy of payment of 30%*
or more of the profit attributable to shareholders;

Establishment of vision through clearly defined
missions, values and objectives;

Encouraging executive directors to hold at least
500,000 shares of the Group;

Willingness to share wealth created with all
shareholders through dividend. Since 2000/01, the
aggregated amount of the Group’s dividends paid/
payable is around HK$626,718,000 or around 68%
of the shareholders’ fund.

* Because of the importance of maintaining financial
stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.
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APPENDIX 3

AEEREREBRBRREMERZ0%H U EHBERE

ff 8% =

Dividend and Dividend Policy:

RERKREBEX :
An unbroken 16 years’ record of dividend payment
16 F LASR K 2. £ 5K 7

The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

T ERIKE ZREZBIGE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final Subtotal Special Special Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
] RE  RHERE 358
] R Pt BEIRE HERE et &&t KB LR

(Excluding)* (Including)

(FEfREER)* (BEER)*
1997/98 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil & 1.00 13%  N/ATER
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil 4% Nil £ Nil & 4.00 58%  N/A TNEA
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil & Nil f& Nil & 4.40 77%  N/A TER
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil £ 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil & 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil 4% Nil 4% Nil £ 20.00 87%  N/A TiEHA
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil £& Nil £& Nil & 21.00 58%  N/A TNiEF
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil & 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 11.50 38% N/ATEA
2007/08 0.75 Nil £ 0.75 Nil £& Nil & Nil £ 0.75 27%  N/ATNEA
2008/09 Nil & 1.50 1.50 Nil & Nil & Nil £ 1.50 39% N/ATER
2009/10 Nil 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 1.00 45%  N/A TiEF
2010/11 Nil #% 1.10 1.10 Nil #% Nil #% Nil £ 1.10 32%  N/ANEA
2011/12 Nil 4 1.00 1.00 Nil £& Nil £& Nil & 1.00 38%°  N/A TEA
2012/13 Nil £ 1.20 1.20 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 1.20 57%  N/A TiEH
Remarks:  * Excluding special dividend # Including special dividend @ Restated and adjusted the effect of the bonus issue
st * NIRRT BIIRR B FELFE A R R B R BV RFBERAR 2 HE
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APPENDIX 4

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Inventory & Debtor Turnover

FERERIREEY

No. of days H &k
100

———— Inventory Turnover 17 & 1884 £f
-~ o - Debtor Turnover & U1K 185 Hf

N0

80

70

60

50

40

30 1 1
07/08 08/09 09/10

(no. of days) (H#) 07/08 08/09

10/11 11/12 12/13

09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13

Inventory Turnover
EACSEE B 37 36
Debtor Turnover

JE W bR R 8 1 56 62

47 48 59 40

68 53 72 52

Inventory turnover (Base on year end inventory value/Cost of Sales) x 365 days
Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Turnover) x 365 days

FEBEY CAFRIFEE,HEKAE) x 3650
FEUIRIAEE B (LAF R ERIR 2 %5 x 365H

Inventory Turnover Days 7 & E&E

(no. of days) (H#0) 11/12 12/13  Change #18%
Raw Materials F#} 28 19 -32%
Work-in-progress &% i 8 7 -13%
Finished Goods &A% 53 23 14 -39%
Total &5 59 40 -32%
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ERHE
APPENDIX 5 B &% F
Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
BERENRMFNEZE
(%)
30 - —A— Gross Profit Margin 2= EH(%)
~ - Net Profit Margin 2B 4175 (%)
25 +
20
15
CT A,/ﬁ\A———A/_A/A
5 —
0 I_I——4—1——‘‘D‘———1———l—l—~——|—‘—El'——_l-——4:F777|777EI )
07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 1112 12/13
(%) 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12* 12/13
Gross Profit Margin 6.4 7.2 6.8 6.7 8.3 10.6
ERER
Net Profit Margin 0.5 0.8 0.4 0.9 1.1 1.8
BERAEA
HK$(million) ( & #;&7T)
Revenue 2,800 2,461 2,241 2,591 2,290 2,291
WA
Profit for the year 13 20 9 22 25 42
R

*  As restated 2 &7
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APPENDIX 6

FAQ

BUSINESS

What is so special about Karrie's business model?

- Normally we deal with projects, which
can take one year from initial project
confirmation, development and engineering
works to final shipment of goods. A project
shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

- Usually we are the only vendor for a
particular project confirmed. Combined with
the 18 to 24 months shipment cycle, we are
bestowed with relatively long-term business
visibility. (2004/05 Annual Report, page 60)

Would rising cost of raw material affect the
performance of the Group?

Under the Group’s versatile ‘Total Transparent Cost
Plus Pricing Mechanism’ most of the raw materials
other than electro-galvanized steel plates are
sourced through the customers or through suppliers
designated by the customers. A rise in raw material
price (other than steel) has only a marginal impact
on the bottom line. (2004/05 Annual Report, page
18)

Experts say RMB is going to appreciate more in the
coming two years. What is the impact on the Group?

- RMB payments represents about 19% of the
total cost of sales.

- As most of our competitors are also based
in China and on the basis that customers
stick to their present purchasing practice,
in theory we could raise price to cover the
increase in cost over the time.

To whom do Karrie sell its products?
Our products, including computer server casings,

laser printers, magnetic tape drive, are mainly sold
to multi-national customers.
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APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CAPEX, DIVIDEND AND FINANCE

5. Are you worried about a high level of bank
borrowings?

- The Group’s shareholders fund is much
higher than the non-current assets meaning
that the Group is financing its non-current
assets through stable shareholders’ fund
rather than bank borrowings;

- Any increase in net bank borrowings could
therefore be attributed to the increased
working capital requirement due to an
increase in turnover. This is a positive news
but not the otherwise.

6. Is Karrie going to change its dividend policy because
of the capex and working capital requirements?

- Our dividend policy is to pay out 30%*
or more of the profit attributable to
shareholders;

- In 2012/13, we paid out a total of HK1.2
cents as dividend (payout ratio: 57%),
making the 16th year of unbroken dividend
payment record;

*Remarks: Because of the importance of maintaining financial
stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.
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APPENDIX 6 (Contd)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHERS

7. Should you worry about the corporate governance
standard of Karrie?

For three consecutive years from 2003-2005,
fund managers and research analysts have
voted Karrie as one of the best-managed
companies in Hong Kong in the Asiamoney
Polls. In the 2004 Poll, Karrie was voted as the
second best in Corporate Governance in Hong
Kong. In 2005 Karrie was voted as the best
small cap in the same poll;

We have made detailed explanation of corporate
strategies and the rationale behind in our annual
reports and our effort was recognised by Hong
Kong Management Association and awarded
with “Honorable Mentions” in 2006 and 2007
Best Annual Report Award, also being awarded
with 2007 IR Magazine Award “Best Annual
Report and Other Corporate Literature” Award.
In 2008, we had been awarded “Citation
for Achievement in Corporate Governance
Disclosure” in the 2008 Hong Kong Management
Association Best Annual Reports Award;

Since 2001 the day-to-day operation of
Karrie has been in the hands of a group
of professional managers. Most of the
management team is not related to the
controlling shareholder;

Karrie is also willing to share with shareholders
the wealth created through distribution of
dividend. Since 2000/01, the aggregated
amount of the Group’s dividends paid/payable
is around HK$626,718,000 or around 68% of
the shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2013;

To increase its transparency, Karrie

a. arranges “tea-breaks” with individual
shareholders annually;

b. publishes an easy-to-read annual reports
with graphs, tables and other useful
information;

C. discloses price sensitive information on
a timely basis; and

d. maintains the Company’s website
(www.karrie.com).

8. Who are the major shareholders?

As at 30 June 2013, the Ho’s family/New
Sense Enterprises Limited/Castfast Properties
Development Co., Ltd./The Wedding City Co.
Limited held around 74.69% of the issued
share capital of the Company.
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APPENDIX 7

B 8% £

Profit attributable
to shareholders

Capex
EAMRE Capex TR i T
HK$'000 EEEERE HK$'000
FET FET
200,000 - - 200,000
I Industrial Sector
I
160,000 - | Properties Development Sector — 160,000
ES
[ Consumer-related and
120,000 ¢ Services Business -1 120,000
HEERRBEE ?
80,000 -1 80,000
40,000 - — 40,000
0 m Wl 0
97/98 | 98/99 | 99/00 | 00/01 01/02 02/03 | 03/04 | 04/05 | 05/06 | 06/07 07/08 | 08/09 09/10 10/11 112 12/13 13/14*
Sg%e’\xiﬁﬁi 67,604 | 76,176 | 56,595 | 65,034 | 14,675 | 24,488 | 58,842 | 62,236 | 92,059 | 91,625 |198,529 | 114,641 | 82,893 | 173,850 | 112,299 | 107,078 | 211,000
—o—  Profit for the year
ERERF 27,865 | 25,162 | 20,616 | 26,368 | 78,370 | 119,808 | 90,440 |146,573 | 186,379 | 124,928 | 13,148 | 20,433 | 9,110 | 22,333 | 25,347 | 41,937 ?
* Budget only Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 4: Phase 5 Phase 6: Phase 7: Phase 8: Phase 9:
*FEHE Asian Restructuring, investment Rapid growth Consolid- Rapid growth Consolid- | Restructuring, | Global financial Establish vision for
financial and market repositioning ation ation investment turmoil 5 years and
crisis in fixed diversification
assets and
market
reposit-
ioning
E_MR EPEE BB ERMEE |EAN W BNRE ENBE
SHER | gpEa - RERTHEREN BESH RERER BES | EBEME RIS RS BUSE
=5 e & BREZ TR
BERMS
EHER
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INTRODUCTION

Sustainability report is a disclosure document highly
regarded by enterprises as a mean to enhance the
transparency of non-financial information. Embracing
our motto “KARRIE ON PERPETUAL MOTION, BENEFITS
SERVED TO THE PUBLIC”, the Company has been
active in giving back to the society and environmental
protection. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Company
and stakeholders including shareholders, partners,
employees, suppliers, regulators and the public in coming
up with benchmarks and regarding key issues.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) had sought public views on its proposed
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
and made consultation conclusions. It has adopted
the standards set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) and
encouraged listed companies to start the Environmental,
Social and Governance reporting. The Company started
to prepare the sustainability report ever since its listing
in 1996 and starting from the 2008/2009 annual report,
the report has been incorporated into annual reports as a
separate section.

Although the Group has not fully complied with the
Guide as to scope of disclosure and key performance
indices, the trend to follow the Guide is inevitable. This
sustainability report is written according to the Guidelines
of Level C Practice of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
G3.1 standard and will be independently verified by
third party audit companies. We hope that the disclosure
requirements will be fully complied ultimately.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AIFERREESE

Our corporate social responsibilities are based on “people,
planet and profit”, which are represented by the following:

() Fairness and integrity;

() Concertedly building the “Karrie” brand;
(1 Caring for the community;

(IV)  Corporate governance;

(V) Training and development;

(VI)  Health and safety; and

(VIl)  Caring for the environment.

() FAIRNESS AND INTEGRITY

Adhering to the principle of being people-oriented
and the EICC guidelines, the Group has entered
into commitments on labour and human rights as
well as the following management procedures:

(@) Child labour is prohibited and young workers
are protected;

(b)  Coercive work is prohibited;
(c) Discrimination is prohibited;

(d) Legal rules and regulations as well as
customer requirements are complied with;
and

(e) Training is provided to CSR management
personnel.

The Group reviews the above management
procedures at least once a year and updates, revises
and releases them from time to time. They are also
stored in the Office Anywhere Intranet System so
that our staff can download the latest version or
read them online.

We hire people with the fundamental principles
of “employment is based on talents”, neither
nomination nor recruitment, remuneration, training
opportunities, promotion, dismissal or retirement
would be affected by race, social status, nationality,
religion, disabilities, gender, sexual orientation,
membership in labour union, political belongings or
age.
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(m

CONCERTEDLY BUILD THE “KARRIE"
BRAND

On top of placing awareness on the physical health
of its staff, the Group also concerns about their
mental health, putting the objectives of balancing
work and daily life into practice. In the opinion of
the Group, the living standard of its staff shall be
raised, so that positive sentiments and motivation
could be formed to strengthen their capability to
handle emotion problems. Various kinds of activities
are also organized to facilitate interaction and
communication among staff with the development
of different teams such as “Castfast Youth Caring
Team”, “Staff Care Committee”, voluntary group
for charitable work and “Hey 2" (My Affection
Volunteer Team) to organize different kinds of
activities on a regular basis, through which, staff are
provided with opportunities to participate in and
establish team spirit. Also, renowned psychological
lecturers are arranged to teach relevant skills to
internal counselors.

The Group held a great variety of cultural events
and festival celebrations, including the “National
Day Evening Culture Party” and “Lantern Festival”,
allowing its staff to relax and reduce pressure in a
happy gathering. Catering for the different needs
of our staff, we also joined hands with Dongguan
Writers Association and literature lovers to celebrate
the World Reading Day, and held a forum on
“Reading and Growth” where volunteers from
the cultural industry in Fenggang were invited to
join. During the summer vacation, Karrie's Staff
Care Committee organised a visit to Shenzhen
Minsk Carrier with left-home children. Besides
strengthening the patriotic mind of children, the
activity enabled staff who are separated from their
children to come together in order to establish
closer and stronger connection.

The Group organized a variety of ball games and
swimming competitions to enhance the physical
fitness of our people and give them a chance to
display their sporting talent. We have also organized
staff members who love dancing to compete at the
Dongguan Square Dancing Tournament and they
have given an impressive performance and achieved
remarkable results.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
IFERRESEE

(=) BLEIE]

AEERIEREINGBREN &
FOTBE TRMAERE  TRAHETFET
EREELZRE  RRBETRES NI
Sh - TRARRTTAEEE R EMEm B E
KREEE MR EYISHERENES &
HEEBEERY  FETHERR -
AEERKHERIRBEGWNZERE
50l THEEIZES®] - [HE
naEe ] R TER] (B E THK)
FoEMERsAY RETRHES
EERTERAERENRE  WRH
MELEERAARAEEEEERE
BARIT °

AEBERT ARBLN I RERE
nEBmIEEXERE ] [TERE]
FoFEETIGUEE  WMRALBE &
BH e SFFBRARSERHSEEE
NEEHE-—REMNMERAEER] FH
By 28 3% B Rl SO fE SRR B R B B R EE
G AINBETREINTE - £ER
HE ZABIZEGETRE2ER
YR MRS AR TINREE
MEBRZE EERHAEIMTINET
HEFL—R2E  EUEBBAMSE
B e

RBRETHF - AEEERT TR
BRIE NN KL BIRE) o AN B TR —
MNEFZEMET  KREMEZMER
SMESEEAE BIMERESSE
HBE - BUSHAKEE -

S EIEREEAR B R 2 7] 2012/13 F 8
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Adhering to our objective of enhancing the health
of our staff and extending the influence of Karrie
Health Month, we had “Fruity Friday” and “Move
More Day” to emphasize the importance of eating
fruits and doing sports in preventing cancers. We
also sponsored employees to take part in the 8th
“Beat the Banana!” charity run organized by the
World Cancer Research Fund Hong Kong. The event
promoted the importance of regular exercise and
healthy diet to cancer prevention in an interesting
and delightful way. On the other hand, many
employees took part in the Fenggang Youth Mini
Marathon in promoting the spirit of company-wide
participation and body fitness. The Group held
health knowledge lectures from time to time. In
particular, a professor from South China Normal
University was invited to hold a lecture on “Positive
Attitude (F5Y¢/008E)" last year, helping our staff to
always maintain a healthy working attitude so as
to properly respond to problems in the workplace
and create a harmonic and friendly working
environment.

CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group
clearly understands the needs to blend in with the
society, create harmony and make full commitments
to social services. Back in May 2005, the Group
established in its Hong Kong Headquarters a
volunteer group for charitable works. While on the
Mainland, different internal organisations including
staff association and the party branch also organise
various kinds of charitable activities.

The Group has sponsored “Nothing is Impossible”
Outward Bound Program organized by Sheng Kung
Hui St. Christopher's Home from 2007, which
aimed at facilitating the all-around development of
children. Through various activities like war game
training and adventure-ship, children are cultivated
with spirit of “Nothing is Impossible” to strengthen
their endurance. During the year, we also held a
writing competition on “Nothing is Impossible”,
offering chances for juveniles to share the spirits
of “Nothing is Impossible”. Besides, the Group
sponsored the clothing and registration fees for
students with slight mental retardation and teachers
of HHCKLA Buddhist Po Kwong School for their
participation in the 10km race in the Standard
Chartered Hong Kong Marathon for the sixth
consecutive year so as to train students’ willpower
and persistence. The Group’s Mainland and Hong
Kong volunteer group also pays visits to elderly
centers or elderly houses during Mid-Autumn
Festival and Tuen Ng Festival annually, celebrating
the festivals with elderly and giving them gifts.
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We have set volunteer holidays since 2008, so as BE-ZTN\FE- Euxﬁi‘le{ﬁx HA LA 8%
to encourage our people to take an active part BEZEBEIRBRHRBERIRE A&
in voluntary services. The Group also took part in BN FALXEE IET e NmEE B8
various social charitable activities during the year, B BB A2 ET B E
such as Hong Kong Community Chest Walk for H -BASNBE [ BRETE — Bk
Millions, ORBIS Pin Day and “The Everbright Project —RAJEEFIER ©

— Support the Happy Family” sponsored by Caritas
Family Crisis Support Centre.

My Affection was also the title sponsor of “201314 B S FINEB<201314F R — 4 o &
International Wedding Charity Night”, which B-HBERERESEREE ?'/Z,_
was a charity event to raise funds to help the ERMESECERTEPBHRNER /N
poverty-stricken children, our next generation and A& - %E)JI ATR—RK - BRKERE
pillars of the country. In addition, My Affection also Be B BHEEAZEEFMN T
cooperated with Hong Kong Kwai Tsing Young éf@%#ﬂ#%/i\ﬁﬂ BEX — rx§/£$ﬁ
Lions Club in sponsoring the “Capture the Sweetest Bl EE)  AERARERBEYRBRER
Moment of the Golden Years — Love Our Family FERR - E%E{MF?%EE)E%EI?%%EH%@’I% °
Studio”, which provided affordable photography

services for wedding and family reunion for the

low-income elderly people, so that they can relive

their warm and sweet memories.

My Affection even works with the UNHCR on ENNBEEEER % B mEE E
two projects. In addition to the “Show a Little ERE - KRTIME - 2xX8IEE
Love — Family Reunion” Facebook fund-raising (Facebook)&f?ﬁ(/ﬁ@?l\ ’ ﬁﬁéliﬁﬁ%%
campaign, the UNHCR also invited Artist Tony Hung =l ﬁ/\uﬂ@ﬂlﬁ‘ﬁif??ﬁlﬁé R
to visit the refugee camps in the remote areas of E’J%’EEM CENREER Eﬂiﬁ}fﬁ?ﬂ}%%ﬁ
Thailand, where My Affection also dispatched its EERNZ&E E,\\\)# FENX R f?ﬁﬁ Sea
photographer to take pictures of people’s life in the FLABHBERRNEESE  28UE Hﬁﬁé

refugee camps. The photos were used to create BHAEBHSBREE -
photo albums, and displayed at the Hong Kong

Book Fair in July this year, and all proceeds from it

will be donated to UNHCR.

The Group has sponsored the photo gallery of UNHCR for two consecutive years and dispatched My Affection’s photographer to
take photos for an Artist Mr. Tony Hung during his visit to the refugee camps on the border between Thailand and Myanmar this
year.

SEREEMFEPBARBRZEZAR R, SFRRHERBZMERZAEERBRMERERERT FETHRBTE -
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Caring for the Community
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We are also committed to sharing our experience
in achieving sustainable development, and were
invited by the Hong Kong Productivity Council
as an honourable guest at the 3rd Hong Kong
Corporate Citizenship Programme — Hong Kong
Corporate Citizenship Workshop. We hope to see
that, through such sharing of experience, more and
more organisations will join us in the sharing and
communication and promote the sustainability work
together.

During the year, the Group has made charitable and
other donations amounted to HK$74,000 (previous
year: HK$176,000), benefiting over 540 people in
the society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Karrie Group is committed to the highest standards
of corporate governance, and will act accordingly
to make sure it complies with the Corporate
Governance Code and reviews and improves our
corporate governance practices from time to time,
so as to maintain good corporate governance.
For details on our compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report of our 2012/2013 Annual
Report.

In addition, the Group is well aware of the
importance of honesty, integrity and fairness, and
has issued Ethical Disciplinary Requirements to
its staff, requesting them to observe the policies
relating to taking interests and declaring interest
conflicts. The Group has dedicated personnel to
take care of and follow up such declaration and
approval, complaints and enquiries, and also has
ethical training for new recruits. We also have a
set of Social Intercourse Regulations in place so
that the staff involved may get to know and abide
by the standards of treating guests and maintain
clear consumption records and follow correct
reimbursement procedures.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 201.

()

AEBTHNBEBLEEAFERRERD
RBREINDZ  BEBLEENRERE
BEIFE=EEECELARE] —FE
EERARIEINERDZRE  HE
BRENEDFE  EEZHEBAIAERR
mo HEASEERIE -

AEEBRAFEZEENEMBRA
74,000/ 7T (& 9 : 176,000/ jT) * 4t
BB ABUBS40A o

TEER

EMEBBNKBTRSMNER/RIZE S I
BEEEE EASTAECEEASE - I
THBRMRAEASE  #EFERETHN
TEER BN AEBETLEE AT
A FEMEAERETER-E—=

TE-=FRIEERELRMEE] W
A o
BESN - AEBEITVREBE - BEMAF

WEEM  ROHIEEIHEF - 85 ME
BETR AEBECRBEIHH(ETE
RaLEAE) URRAAKEE TAEST
B B8 #) W2 M) 21 M0 BR R R a8 T SRR
VYEFEANRENEFARLEN  RFR
EHEFEHE LETHBABAERRER
2 R REEARBAEB RBE
TEEEI - YH AEBETRIRE
FEBNGIE - SHBBE THNMETARE
B R RENBHEERERRH
BF e



Maintaining integrity and professionalism and
strengthening internal audit so as to prevent
corruption is an important cornerstone of a
business enterprise. In order to maintain sustainable
and healthy development, the Group, in addition
to continuously improving product and service
quality, also makes it an essential task to build
integrity. We invited the Hong Kong Independent
Commission Against Corruption to give lectures on
integrity management and corruption prevention
to our employees in Hong Kong and the Mainland
by means of video conference, providing them
with information on the latest anti-corruption
movements. Moreover, in order to comply with
certain requirements on “internal control” set
forth in C2 of the Corporate Governance Code
of Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
and urge our employees at all levels, especially the
management to build up an effective “Internal
Control System”, the Internal Audit Department of
the Group organised two internal audit workshops
in March 2012, rolling out training on internal
control, so as to help our employees to better
understand and perceive the knowledge of internal
audit and control, corruption loopholes, risk
management and integrity governance.

In respect of suppliers and processors, the Group
has issued a letter named “Peers’ Belief” so as to
urge them not to provide any benefits to employees
during normal course of business. All of our staff is
prohibited from taking advantages of their powers
and authorities for personal interests and incurring
unfair business transactions. All employees must
maintain the highest level of honesty, and are
prohibited from obtaining any benefits with their
power and authority.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and safety focuses on areas such as
occupational safety, responses to emergencies,
occupational injuries and diseases, industrial
hygiene, work with high physical requirements,
machinery protection, public hygiene, restaurants
and staff quarters. The above issues are all set
forth in the EICC manual with the requirements
on written standards, performance-based targets,
indicators and implementation plans, while the
industrial safety team is responsible for the specific
assessment on the performance. In addition, safety
personnel are appointed in every department to
carry out safety checks and various drills, such as
fire-fighting safety drills.

Significant achievements have been made in the
implementation of relevant measures. For instance,
the occurrence rate of occupational injury has
declined continuously over years, and is kept at a
relatively low level, maintaining the rating of no
material occupation injury.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

In respect of training and development, the
Company has been adopting the “optimisation
of professional performance, motivation of staff’s
potentials, revitalization of learning culture and
embraced with corporate visions” as its approaches.
As a result, “training” is based on the increment
of knowledge, the enhancement of skill and
performance for positions, while “development”
is oriented on the sustainable development of the
company and its staff.

Training Projects

The Company set up new training programs by
integrating the training programs for Year 2012
with the actual environmental needs. The training
areas for the year generally include: management
(including soft skills training), engineering
techniques, ISO, human resources, supply chain,
computer applications, sales and marketing,
corporate social responsibility, environmental
protection and finance and accounting.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 201.
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2. Key personnel training and development
projects
2.1  To ensure the long-term development

2.2

2.3

needs are met, the Group offers a training
opportunity for our management and
all staff at different levels to acquire
the management skills and expertise. In
addition, the Group runs assessment tests
for promotion to manager level or above so
that our staff have the management skills
and expertise necessary for performing their
functions.

As an established practice to support its
corporate social responsibility, the Group
held an engineer trainee program for several
years, the main purpose of which is to
actively develop more young graduates to be
all-round project engineers. The Group will
continue to implement its summer internship
scheme, from which students could enjoy
pleasures and efforts with work. In addition,
the top management members of the Group
were invited to join the Career Mentorship
Programme hosted by Hong Kong Baptist
University, which offers students an
opportunity to communicate with the top
management, broaden their horizons and let
our top management become mentors and
friends of the students.

The Group promotes the policy for diversified
learning culture to encourage the staff to
pursue continuous study. Different types of
foreign language training were introduced
and the staff in Mainland China was
encouraged to receive training in Hong
Kong. Furthermore, as the first enterprise
to introduce the "academic qualification
education” in Fenggang Town in Dongguan
City, the Group cooperated with China Sun
Yat-sen University and South China Normal
University and launched the courses of
“College and Undergraduate”, allowing
staff to achieve self-development and obtain
national formal academic qualifications in
addition to working.
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2.4

Interaction with other players in the industry

The Group was invited by several institutions
to share its achievements of various scopes.
For instance, In early 2012, the Group
was invited by the Hong Kong Small and
Medium Enterprises Association to be a
guest speaker at the seminar cum award
presentation ceremony on “Helping the
garment industry and electrical industry to
introduce sustainable development”, sharing
tips for successfully putting sustainability into
practice. In addition, the Group was invited
by the Hong Kong Productivity Council to
be one of the designated talent enterprises
to be visited by the Mainland China study
tour group for the first year of the program
named “Talent management with Chinese
characteristics” under the First Enterprise
Power™ series of the Hong Kong Productivity
Council, which showcased and shared with
the tour group the achievements of the
Group's talent management strategies. The
Group forged the “Inter-enterprise Human
Resources Management Consortium” with
five large manufacturers, including Leo
Group, Crystal Group, Johnson Electric,
Ka Shui International, Pulse Electronic. Six
large enterprises, with an aim to provide an
integrated platform to promote exchanges
and learning opportunities among the
human resources teams of those enterprises.
In September, the said consortium organized
the “Inter-enterprise Human Resources
Management Forum 2012" - "Tactics for
Recruiting and Retaining Talents”, which
was the first of its size. In addition, at the
end of 2012, the Group became one of the
first “Demonstration Bases for Vocational
Skill Training in Dongguan”, allowing more
chances for our staff to obtain the national
qualifications.
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2.5

2.6

The Learning English Everyday Program

To enhance English reading, writing, listening
and speaking proficiency of staff, the
training and development team organized
the Learning English Everyday Program that
lasted for two months. On top of hiring
an English teacher to conduct classes and
polish their English, we also organized a
series of activities, such as Sharing Corner,
Group Discussion and consultation activities,
so as to encourage self-study of English by
staff. Through the above activities, staff can
communicate with the English teacher by
way of Office Anywhere Intranet System,
email or face-to-face discussions, so as to
increase the exposure to English.

Offensive and Defensive Tactics Seminar

As the management of Karrie attaches great
importance to capitalizing on our success
and going much further, the enterprises and
the diversified business are able to sustain
and flourish! The Group held the “Offensive
and Defensive Tactics Seminar” in May and
June and let us find out more room for
industrial development and explore more
potential advantage. We invited a scholar
from Center for Logistics Technologies
and Supply Chain Optimization of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong to host
six consecutive sessions for Karrie. Through
this event, the Group decided to focus on
certain products with better profit margin,
mainly on metal/plastic components and
mold production and cut back on business of
lower profits or riskier materials. Therefore,
our resources are better focused and
inventory risk is lower.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

Actively participating in external training
activities

The Group makes every effort to promote
the training and development works. In
addition to the knowledge and skills training,
we also place remarkable emphasis on
long-term development of enterprises and
staff personal growth and infusing that into
our corporate strategies. In April 2012, the
Group was again awarded the “Manpower
Developer 1st” label by the Employees
Retraining Board of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

Expansion of computer training center and
development of online learning platform

In order to improve our staff's computer
knowledge and skills and to train and
develop our own talents through the
domestic backup talents scheme, the
Group expanded its computer training
center in early 2012, allowing staff to have
more chances of learning computer skills.
Meanwhile, the Group has been keen
on developing an online learning system
through which staff can learn and study by
themselves during their spare time.

Approved Employer

The Group has become an Approved
Employer of the following institutions, which
allowed our staff to obtain professional
qualifications, thus making the most of their
abilities while getting formal recognition.

- HKICPA (Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants)

- ACCA (Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants)

- [ELTS (International English Language
Testing System)

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

2.7

2.8

2.9

ARHREREES

a1 2 BN SR 15 16 )% &)

KB — R NESR N EBIE I LB R
TF - BREAR M SR I aeE IS -
FESHENEINREEE &
ALERERBEZH RN_F——
FMA SEBF—REEFBRS
THREEBEIIRBEE L [RE
AT 1st] 1256 - URBEEETA
AR ] TIEM SRR -

IR BIIEP 0 R FERA L EE

7 AN
=

BB ARIIRT B TE N E B %
Nrge - B NERBEREBAA
HE o EER-_E-—FVIERS
R L EETHAEZEINE
Br#e - A SETBRNER
WEEBBRG FETEIHRER
AUERRFEERGERETR
HEE o

8 Al EE

REBER AU THE R EET
KB EETIRUASBIIEZtE
IMBEEERF - SLATIE KR -

- BEGHMAE

- RBHALREFAMREEFE
I\ &
VA=

- HFERRFBNERRSR

S EIEREEAR B R 2 7] 2012/13 F 8




SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AIFERREESE

2.10 Internship visit of students from South China
Agricultural University in Guangzhou

In mid 2012, over 20 students from
South China Agricultural University in
Guangzhou participated in a two-week
internship program. Karrie Group has been
supporting the two way development
of study and practice promoted by
South China Agricultural University in
Guangzhou and offered undergraduate
internship opportunities for the students
to have themselves well prepared for their
professions.

(VII) CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Green production

The Group has realized the importance of good
utilization of resources long time ago and not to
exploit the rights of using resources for the next
generation. The Group adheres to the concept
of Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the Chairman of the Group,
with heartfelt dedication in all details, and saves
resources for the next generation. As such, the
Group’s production adheres to the concept of
reducing energy or material consumption from the
sources with the adoption of various environmental
friendly measures and addition of energy-saving
equipment. With the concept of green and clean
production implemented in practice, the Group
continues to formulate policies for green production
and energy-saving policies, while introducing
different kinds of environmental-friendly equipment
to attain the objectives of clean production and
environmental protection. The Group further
complies with various international regulations and
requirements, inter alias, energy audit, environment
permit and report, pollution prevention and
resources saving, treatment of hazardous materials,
treatment of sewage and solid wastes, control on
air emission and control on content of products.
The Group actively participates in external
cleaner production and environmental protection
campaigns, while internally strengthens its staff's
awareness on the environment via training as well
as green and ecological activities. In addition, green
design approaches are thoroughly implemented, so
that the products would not pose any damages to
the environment.
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In order to help the local government meet the
energy-saving and emission reducing indicators
for the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan” period, assume
corporate social responsibility, fulfill our duty toward
the environment, and also to comprehensively
understand the standard of energy management
and status of power consumption within the plant,
examinations are conducted on problems and
insufficiencies in respect of energy usage to identify
the potential and the approaches for energy
saving, thereby reducing the amount of energy
consumption and production costs as well as
raising the economical efficiency for the company.
An energy-saving planning report for the “Twelfth
Five-Year Plan” was prepared in 2011. The Group
has formulated a series of energy management
systems, which standardise the practice of energy
management to raise the efficiency of energy usage
and effectively finalise and safeguard energy-saving
plans. On the other hand, the cleaner production
and energy-saving committee has already been
established since 2005, which unifies the energy
management of the Group, and applies energy
saving objectives into all workshops via adopting
new technology.

The Group has adopted the following major
(including but not limited to) energy-saving measures
during the year, which significantly increase energy-
saving efficiency and also effectively improve
the environment and reduce the temperature of
workshops, allowing staff to achieve their best
performance:

o Replace the diesel oil oven with bio-particle
oven for the purpose of reducing the waste
gas (CO,, CO, NO and SO,, etc.) discharged
from the combustion of diesel oil and saving
energy cost.

o Modification of HES servo system for
injection moulding machines.

o HCR22 hydrocarbons refrigerant is used
in air-conditioners to replace traditional
refrigerant in production areas.
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The Group has been playing an active and
determined role on environmental protection and
cleaner productions with extensive recognition
gained from governmental authorities, Hong
Kong Productivity Council or commercial unions
and bodies, receiving invitations for sharing its
experiences on environmental protection and clean
productions. Furthermore, the Group was also
invited to be designated site for inspection tours on
cleaner production, allowing other manufacturers
to carry out on-site plant inspection, which in turn
encourages them to implement cleaner production.
Apart from the above, Hong Kong and China media
also made interviews with the Group for sharing its
experiences.

Since 2001, the Group has already obtained
ISO14001 environment management system
certificate. In 2012, Hong Kong headquarter joined
the “Low-carbon Office Operation Programme
(LOOP)” sponsored by World Wide Fund For Nature
Hong Kong and was awarded the “Silver Label
for the year 2011-2012". It was awarded the
“Cleaner Production Enterprise in Dongguan City”
in 2012; entered the “Hang Seng Pearl River Delta
Environmental Award” and was granted “Green
Participant Certificate 2012"” in the following year;
and was awarded the “2012 Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence — Bronze Medal in
Manufacturing” by Environmental Campaign
Committee for the recognition of its remarkable
performance in energy-saving. At the same time,
the Group also makes arrangement to comply with
relevant international environmental regulations,
such as RoHS, REACH, WEEE, JCPSSI, Montreal
Protocol and QC 080000, so that the whole process
including design, procurement and production
can meet the requirements for environmental
protection.

In addition, the Group internally promoted the
“Earth Hour 2013" Lights Off Event initiated by
World Wide Fund. The Group even supported staff
to participate in, for the second time, the “Tree
Planting Challenge” 2013 event organised by
Friends of the Earth, which allow staff enjoy funs
of planting trees and hiking while publicising the
theme of planting a wish for a better climate. It
participated in the “International Coastal Cleanup
2012 Hong Kong” organized by International
Coastal Cleanup (ICC) by sending its staff and
their family members to Tuen Mun Gold Coast for
coastal cleanup.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
IFERRESEE

TEE-—BURNEREE IRERERE
BREENIE  BXRAKLEEBN
W BEBEENRERAESTERER
BEOERRMLBEREELEEmCE 5
O M ERBKBIEEZEREEE
RE EEMABMEEEHIRER - ®
m &% B g 7 EB’@/%E‘%EF BN B
BIRINFIERBETE - DZEOGE -

ERZZEZTE—F X% IE%’?‘
ISO14001 IR F E B B RXREF- = F
——FHRBBRIEZ2MT Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
% /\(WWF)I o E MK & 9 R =& EIJ
(LOOP)J VTER-_ZE——Z=2_%—
EVF%%ET%@M ;—_Eﬁéﬁﬁfﬁ
EMEREENGHE] F_FL2HE[EE
ka%ﬂaﬁjiﬁJ WHEMR [ 4k & RET 3]
2012): Boh BRBREEHZE L
BE[2012BBRREMETE ] 2 R A
BHETE ] BEERE  URBAEEE
e T EALHENERR AEBERFD
BB R IREER - HI20 : RoHS »
REACH - WEEE + JCPSSI * Montreal
Protocol }2QC OSOOOOQ{’Eﬁ@E/\ ER

PP HBEREERERAESMEZIEDNR
REVESR -

o EERNMEEERBERESEE
WEY [HER— /N | R IB IR E)2013 ° 54
FE_FEHETIL2 IR KB
(AT ktg ] EE E2METIRKER
ﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁ’\]mt E”“%Eﬁﬁ“@?ﬁ
RIRHEE - BER2E [ BEERERBE
REFEF2012] AEEEBKE T AR
BRRMAEESNEETERBR -

S EIEREEAR B R 2 7] 2012/13 F 8




SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AIFERREESE

Looking forward to the coming year, the Group
will still strive to implement energy-saving and
green production while putting EICC environmental
protection policies into practice. In response to
the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan” energy-saving plan,
the Group will reduce emission, better utilise
resources and carry out clean production, thereby
further lowering the indicator for the production
value to energy consumption ratio. The Group
has formulated an energy-saving plan, and it is
hoped that the amount of comprehensive energy
consumption in 2015 would decrease by 800
tonnes of standard coal as compared with 2010,
and the comprehensive energy consumption per
ten thousand Yuan output value would decline by
23.2%, which translates into an average reduction
of 160 tonnes of standard coal per annum. The
target was fulfilled in 2011 and 2012. By setting
the objectives, it could save energy and reduce
consumption, lower production costs and raise
market competitiveness. As a result, invaluable
resources could be retained and the environment
could be kept in good condition.

CONCLUSION

Karrie Group is a diversified enterprise. Rather than mere
profit seeking, Karrie has taken into account the interests
of different stakeholders (including shareholders), some
of who are even conflicting with one another. Karrie
shall balance the interests of all stakeholders to obtain a
harmonious co-existence.

The sustainability report is not one-off, rather, it is one that
“perseveres, holds consistency and lasts”, and relies on
the information provided by all departments. Opinions of
stakeholders have been reflected through various channels
such as seminar, workshop, focus group, internet forum
and questionnaire. In addition, full support from the
management is necessary. We hope that the report will be
independent of the annual report and be issued separately.
The Group hereby expresses gratitude to those who
contributed to the success of this report!
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

As disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Company’s annual report of 2011/2012
(the “the 2012 Annual Report”), the Company has
applied the principles under the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as in force for the period ended
31 March 2012 (the “Former Code”) and has been in
compliance with the relevant provisions of the Former
Code for that financial period, save as disclosed in the
2012 Annual Report.

The Stock Exchange has made various amendments to
the Former Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, and the revised code, namely, the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report”
(the "CG Code”), became effective on 1 April 2012. In
the opinion of the Directors, the Company has also been
in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Revised
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013 with the
exceptions as explained below:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not segregate the roles
of its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho") currently holds both positions.

Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has substantial
experience in the manufacturing industry and property
development and cultural related business. At the same
time, Mr. Ho has the appropriate skills and business
acumen which are the pre-requisites for assuming the
role of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer in the same person would provide
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allows the Group to be more effective and efficient in
developing long-term business strategies and execution
of business plans. The Board considers that there is no
need to segregate the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer and Mr. Ho shall continue in his dual
capacity as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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According to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-
executive Director should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-
designated as Non-executive Director on 1 June 2007
and he was re-designated as Non-executive Director and
Deputy Chairman on 1 May 2011 without a specific term.
Mr. Ho Kai Man was re-designated as the Non-executive
Director on 1 November 2012 without a specific term.
Although Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Kai Man are
not appointed for a specific term, they are subject to
retirement by rotation according to the Bye-laws of the
Company.

Moreover, Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulated
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the
number nearest to one-third but not greater than one-
third shall retire from office provided that notwithstanding
anything in the Company’s Bye-laws, the Chairman
of the Directors and/or the Managing Director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in each year.
Furthermore, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board should hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting and would then
be eligible for re-election. With the introduction of the CG
Code and to comply with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Group will voluntarily retire at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure good corporate governance of the Company.
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According to Code Provision A.5 of the CG Code, the
Company should establish a nomination committee,
which is chaired by the chairman of the Board or an
Independent Non-executive Director and comprises a
majority of Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Company has not established a nominee committee due
to the fact that the function of the nomination committee
was delegated to the Board, which is responsible for
reviewing its own structure, size and composition annually
and the re-appointment of Directors as well as assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Board has taken sufficient measures to avoid the
conflict of interests in carrying out such functions. For
instance, the relevant Director would abstain from voting
for any resolution relating his or her own re-appointment.
As such, the Board is of the view that the members of the
Board possess the necessary experience and knowledge to
discharge the functions of a nomination committee. The
Board shall review the composition and operation of the
Board from time to time and shall consider establishing a
nomination committee if such need arises.

According to Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings in
order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Due to other business engagements, one Independent
Non-executive Director and one Non-executive Director did
not attend the special general meeting of the Company
held on 22 June 2012 (the "SGM"). Furthermore, for the
same reason, an independent non-executive director did
not attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 24 August 2012 ("AGM"). To remedy and achieve
the spirit of Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all other
Directors were present at the SGM and AGM to enable the
Board to develop a balanced understanding of the view of
the shareholders of the Company.

The Company will continue to review its practices from
time to time to achieve high standard of corporate
governance.
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A

1.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors

1.1

1.2

1.3

As at 31 March 2013, the Board consisted
of nine Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Lee Shu Ki, Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
and Mr. Zhao Kai as executive Directors;
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming as a non-executive
Director and Deputy Chairman; Mr. Ho Kai
Man as a non-executive Director and Mr.
So Wai Chun, Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
and Mr. Fong Hoi Shing as the independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has the
collective responsibility for the leadership
and promotion of the success of the Group’s
business by directing and supervising the
Group's affairs.

The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products
and services. The Board is collectively
responsible for formulating the overall
objective and strategy of the Group;
monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the
standard of corporate governance of the
Group. It also makes decisions on matters
such as approving the annual and interim
results, connected transactions, appointment
and re-appointment of Directors, declaring
dividends and adopting accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the
management.

The Board conducts regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met four times for the Year
and considered, reviewed and approved the
Group’s annual results for the year ended
31 March 2012 and interim results of the
Group for the Year.
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The attendance records of Board meetings UWTREAFEEEZRMRERX
and general meetings held during the Year FHHERE
are set out below:

Attendance of individual Directors at AEEESEERENESERRE
Board meetings and general meetings REWHER
during the Year

Number of No. of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held
EExggE BRAE
HERE HERE
=E P8 EBXY
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (e B e b 4/4 22
Mr. Lee Shu Ki PRI EE 4/4 2/2
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia [ 2tk NE 4/4 22
Mr. Zhao Kai* FiEk ikt 2/2 0/0
Non-executive Director FEHTTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (AT ERSE A 4/4 12
Mr. Ho Kai Man* AR X e A * 3/3 11
Independent Non-executive Directors & IE#H7TEE
Mr. So Wai Chun ERIEIR A 4/4 2/2
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond FRImZR A 4/4 0/2
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Pabi=t Bt 4/4 212
Average attendance rate EFHHER
# appointed on 1 November 2012 # RZE——F+—A—BEZ
T
* appointed as Executive Director on 12 July * R-_E——F+/+= EI Z%%
2012 and re-designated as Non-executive FEHTES IR
Director on 1 November 2012 F+—HF—H ?%uﬁffﬁ#iﬂﬁ
5%
A list of Directors and their role and function EERENAEACNEBBEIHNA
is posted on the websites of the Company N a) MR P AU o

and the Stock Exchange.
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1.4 To maximize the effectiveness of the Board
and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee
and a remuneration committee. Detailed
descriptions of each of these committees
are set out below. All of these committees
adopt, as far as practicable, the principles,
procedures and arrangements of the Board in
relation to the scheduling and proceeding of
meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion
of agenda items, records and availability of
minutes.

The Board has devised its specific written terms
of reference setting out its duties, responsibilities,
powers and functions which include the following:

o developing and reviewing the Company'’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations
to the Board;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

o taking responsibility for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the prevailing
accounting standards and laws, approving
the financial statements and appointing and
liaising with the Group’s external auditors;

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report in its Annual Report;

o liaising with all regulatory authorities and
organisations on all matters relating to the
Group, and monitoring changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group;
and

o ensuring accountability towards and

sufficient communication with the Group’s
shareholders.
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2. Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2013, the Board
comprises nine Directors: four
executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming, a non-executive Director, is the
younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr.
Ho Kai Man, a non-executive director, is the
nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive director and deputy chairman of
the Company.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and
manage the Group, taking into account the
scope and nature of the operations. The
Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, production
and quality control techniques, supply
chain management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. Details of the
experience and qualifications of Directors
and Senior Management are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this Annual Report.

3. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

3.1

At each annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM"), one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office
by rotation. The Directors, since his last
election or appointment who has been the
longest in office shall retire and be eligible
for reelection at the AGM. The Chairman
and/or the Managing Director of the Group
shall not, when holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken
into account in determining the number
of Directors to retire in each year. With the
introduction of the CG Code and to comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Group will voluntarily retire at the
AGM at least once every three years.

2.2

ERELHWES
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3.1
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322 As at 31 March 2013, non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and
Mr. Ho Kai Man) including the independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a
fixed term not exceeding three years and all
non-executive Directors are subject to the
requirements of retirement by rotation and
re-election by Shareholders at the AGM in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

3.3 The names and biographical details of
the Directors who will offer themselves
for election or re-election at the forth
coming AGM are set out in the circular
of the Company dated 6 August 2013 to
Shareholders to assist Shareholders in making
an informed decision on their elections.

3.4  Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee.
In evaluating whether an appointee is
suitable to act as a Director, the Board
will consider the experience and skills of
the appointee; as well as personal ethics,
integrity and the willingness to commit
time in the affairs of the Group. Where the
appointee is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the Board will also
consider his/her independence. During
the Year, the Board had also reviewed and
made recommendations in respect of the
reappointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the Shareholders at the
last AGM.

4. Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on directors and officers’ liabilities arising
from the group’s business. The Company reviews
the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional
Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given
an induction. As part of the ongoing process
of directors’ training, the Company Secretary
continuously updates all directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements. All Directors are
encouraged to attend external forum or training
courses on relevant topics which may count towards
continuous professional development training.

During the year, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development
activities either by attending training courses or
by reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business and to directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The chairman should be responsible for ensuring
that directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable.

The chairman should:

o ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in
a timely manner

o ensure that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established

o encourage directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board consensus

o ensure that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the board as a whole

o promote a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of
non-executive directors in particular and
ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive directors
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the number of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company represents no less than
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

The re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the board for more than
nine years should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.1 The Board has established the RC in June
2005 with terms of reference, comprising
a majority of independent non-executive
Directors, which meets at least once a year. It
is chaired by Mr. So Wai Chun and comprises
two other members, namely Mr. Chan Sui
Sum, Raymond and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.
All RC members, with the exception of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
are independent non-executive Directors.
The quorum necessary for the transaction
of business by the RC is two. The terms of
reference of RC have been updated in March
2012 to comply with the new requirements
set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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1.2 The principal responsibilities of RC are

o to formulate remuneration policy
of the Group, review and make
recommendations to the Board in
respect of the remuneration policy;

o to consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group;

o to conform to any requirement,
direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed
by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or
imposed by the Listing Rules or any
applicable law; and

° to determine the remuneration of
the executive Directors and the senior
management.

1.3 The RC met once during the Year with an
attendance rate of 100% and reviewed its
terms of reference, the remuneration policy
of the Group and the remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management staff.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out
below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
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2. Audit Committee (“AC")

2.1

2.2

The AC’s membership, with the exception of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
comprised the independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 March 2013:

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing; and

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

The Board is of the opinion that members
of the AC have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise or
experience to discharge their duties.

The operations of the AC are regulated by
its terms of reference. The terms of reference
have been updated in March 2012 to
comply with the new requirements set out
in the Revised Code. The updated terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are posted
on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The main duties of the AC
include:

o to review and supervise the Group's
financial reporting process including
the review of interim and annual
results of the Group;

o to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any
matters relating to resignation or
termination;

o to examine the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control which
involves regular review in various
corporate structures and business
process; and

o to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such
reviews includes finance, operations,
regulatory compliance and risk
management.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 201.

2.

BEREES

2.1

2.2

HE—_ZT—=F=-A=+—H ' &
“ZEg (BRAERLEE GETT
BF)I) IRBUENITESTHA
D

BMEREE (Z/E)
BR 3 7R 78 £
TR E - &
Al BB

ExgRR BRLZBENKEHA
RRE T RIBEEIREEMBAK
B o ARBTTIN S 2 BAS o

BERLEe v EBEXBESRER
o oBEGEER=_ZTE——-F=A
B E ISR T RIS 3748
- BRZZEBCEHCBERED
HERARB MR ZBER -
BERZEEETEBERRE

. A K BRI AN R B 2 B S R
TEF - BREHAKEN
RN FE R

o RAIIMNEZEEN R EMIL
JFE B B N AT ) 78 BB AL @A
HEIR AR FE

. R ANEBAREIE BN
1 BREEHRNEREH
TEREHBOERF &

s HEEIEBERBNMEK
BUMERBR TEREER
15 M SRS AT OR AN SR 1B R 7%
BEAR - ZE R BRY
% 2E - BEERAMES
LEBREEESHE -



2.3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The AC met two times during the Year with
an attendance rate of 100% and reviewed
the interim results and the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012. The AC had also reviewed the Group’s
audited annual results of the Year. The
Company Secretary of the Company keeps
all minutes of the AC.

C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

1.1

1.2

The Company has adopted a Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the
Group (the "Company’s Model Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all
Directors, they have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out
in both the Company’s Model Code and the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2013.

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

1. Financial Reporting

1.1

1.2

The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before
the Board for approval.
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1.3 The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and
prospects and extending the coverage of
such information to include annual and
interim reports, announcements relating to
inside information of the Group and financial
disclosures as required under the Listing
Rules, reports to regulators as well as any
information that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and
effective internal control system to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the
Audit Committee, has reviewed and reported
on the adequacy of effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management
control functions.

The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programmes
and budget.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material mis-statement or loss and to manage
instead of eliminating risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the Audit
Committee. The responsible Department Heads will
be notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group’s external
auditor HK$2,680,000 for audit services of
the Group and for non-audit related services
approximately HK$297,000, representing mainly
taxation services and other non-audit service fees.
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Company strives to convey to
Shareholders pertinent information in a
clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis and to take into consideration
their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders concerned. Their
views are communicated to the Board
comprehensively.

The Company adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy and will review it on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The purpose of this policy is to ensure the
Shareholders are provided with prompt
and equal access to information about
the Company (including but not limited to
its financial performance, corporate goals
and strategies, significant developments,
corporate governance and risk exposure), in
order to enable the Shareholders to assess
the Company’s overall performance, exercise
their rights in an informed manner and
engage actively with the Company.

The Company communicates with the
Shareholders through the publication
of annual, interim reports, circulars,
results announcements and releases. All
communications to Shareholders are also
available on the Company's website at
www.karrie.com.

We had provided sufficient notice for
Shareholders on all general meetings.
The AGM provides a useful platform for
Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board and the
Board members will make an effort to attend
to answer Shareholders’ questions. External
auditor is also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries
about the conduct of the audit.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual
Directors.
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All votes of the Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll according
to the Listing Rules. The chairman of the
meeting will therefore demand a poll for
every resolution put to the vote of the AGM
pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-Laws.

F. INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract
new investors.

Results announcement

As from January 2009, the Company
had discontinued its practice of adopting
quarterly results announcement. Annual
reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Listing
Rules. All results announcements and reports
are posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
Company can still provide the Shareholders
and investors with an adequate degree of
transparency and information of the financial
position of the Company.

Media and analysts briefings

Media briefings are held on the same day
immediately after the interim and annual
results released via teletext. Analysts
presentations are held at luncheons,
receptions or telephone conferences
thereafter. During the briefings, the Group’s
management provides an in-depth analysis
of the Group’s performances in respect of
the relevant periods and ensures that the
financial performance and accounts of the
Group are well understood. There is also
ample opportunity for the analysts and
media to ask questions and interact with the
executive Directors and senior management.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 201.

REAE EMRFANBALERLK
1T o BB ARMAIE66H - Ag
FREABERBRREAFAE LA
REEREEEARR

F. E‘ﬁ%%ﬁ%

1.

CRMELEEZBBER -
E@4&§%EM&W%%&§%
2k

BZZEZNF—AE  ARFRIER
IHEFERERER - AREDR L
MR AR E R I AR R S
Hidms  UHETEZERRR A
KA DM RREGEH N AR R AL
KB FTa8ut o NARMDARESH
RRBZFERR - ABRFIRE
ERHUERERLERE -

FERARDNEBRS

%%ﬁ%ﬁA%%¢%&%¢¥%
A ARF T E R E A 8RT o
MEBHRENFES E%E/
EEHREARNERET - REEHRE
bt AEBEEEBERANNTAE
EREBREZ EERE - THER
HEALTRNERASENEERR
MIEE - REEMRHERHES T
AMEBRFERREMMERITES
MeREEEER



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

4, Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the
Group has been arranging tea-break with
individual investors to build up an interactive
and direct communication channel. This
allows individual investors talking to the
management of the Group. Meanwhile,
the Group would give an update about the
status of the Group’s development and share
of their feelings toward the Group. Last
year, the tea-break, the first time, was held
in Fenggang, PRC for visiting our industrial
business and customer and services business.

5. The Group regularly releases corporate
information such as awards received, and
the latest news of the Group’s developments
on its Company's website. The public are
welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company’s
website, the management will give their
prompt response.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a
Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition.
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Procedures for which enquiries may be put to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
to the Board in writing at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business or the Company’s
website.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders; or not less than 100 shareholders may
make requisition in writing to the Company:

(@) to give to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them
any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group's affair and assists the Board in functioning
effectively. All Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.
During the year, the Company Secretary has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 67, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company as well as
the founder of the Group. Prior to founding the Group
in 1980, Mr. Ho had over 10 years' experience in factory
management and in running operations specialised in
manufacturing plastic, metal and electronic products. He is
responsible for the Group’s overall corporate strategies and
objectives. He is also a director of New Sense Enterprises
Limited and Honford Investments Limited, each a corporate
substantial shareholder of the Company, and the brother
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman, the husband of Ms. Ho Po Chu,
who is a member of management team and the uncle
of Mr. Ho Kai Man, an non-executive Director of the
Company.

The solid business knowledge and working experience
gained by Mr. Ho throughout the years are recognized by
the academic. He was awarded with fellow membership
of the Asian Knowledge Management Association
in September of 2003 and Honorary Fellowship by
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration
and Honorary Doctorate in Management by Lincoln
University in April of 2007. He was appointed as a part-
time professor at the University of Electronic Science and
Technology of China in Sichuan, Chengdu.

Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Political Consultative Conference
in January 2008 and was reappointed as a member of
11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province in January 2007. He
was also awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan
City and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. Mr. Ho currently
participates in affairs of different associations, which
include Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association,
China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment,
Dongguan City Fenggang Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Overseas Friendship Association
of Dongguan, Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisations, Jiangsu Yixing Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Guangdong Overseas
Chinese Enterprises Association, Hong Kong Youth
Exchange Promotion United Association, Hong Kong
Jiangsu Exchange Promotion Association, The Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’s Association, ShenZhen
General Chamber of Commerce, Dongguan Foundation
for the Disabled and Dongguan University of Technology
Education Foundation of Dongguan City.
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Mr. LEE Shu Ki, aged 57, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in December 1997, and is the Financial
Controller and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the
daily operation of the Group’s Finance and Accounting
Department. Mr. Lee graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a higher diploma in accountancy and is
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants of the
United Kingdom. He has over 25 years’ accounting and
financial management experience in manufacturing
businesses. Mr. Lee joined the Group in June 1995.

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 41, was appointed as
a Director of the Company in November 2010, and is the
General Manager — Human Resources and Administration
of the Group and responsible for the overall operation of
human resources, administration and IT department of the
Group. Ms. Chan is one of the members of the Executive
Committee and Internal Audit Committee of the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from The City University of Hong
Kong majoring in Public Administration and Management.
She joined the Group in 1996 and has over 15 years’
experience in administration and management.

Mr. ZHAO Kai, aged 38, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in November 2012. He has been appointed
as the General Manager and the Convener of Executive
Committee in Manufacturing Sector of the Group
with effect from 1 April 2013, responsible for overall
manufacturing management and operation of the Group.
Mr. Zhao graduated from Xihua University (formerly
known as Sichuan Institute of Technology) in the PRC with
a Bachelor Degree in Foundry Engineering. He had 13
years' experience in metal plastic, mould engineering and
project management and more than 7 years' experience in
production management and operation. Mr. Zhao joined
the Group in December 2011.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 59, was re-designated as
a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2011. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company
from October 1996 to 31 May 2007, and was a Deputy
Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as well as the
Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group. He
was re-designated as a non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 June 2007. He is responsible
for the overall supervision of the Group’s operation
business. He joined the Group in 1980 and has over 20
years' experience in factory production. He is also the
brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu,
who is @ member of the management team and father of
Mr. Ho Kai Man (one of the non-executive Directors).

Mr. HO Kai Man, aged 32, was appointed as an executive
Director from 12 July 2012 to 31 October 2012 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director of the Company
in November 2012. He joined the Company in November
2005. He had been appointed as the Assistant General
Manager, Corporate Planning and Executive Committee
member and was responsible for handling internal and
external business and political contact, establishing
of communication platform, assisting the formulation
of market and strategy planning, promoting energy-
saving, environment protection and cleaner production
etc and maintaining the Group's sustainability. Mr. Ho
graduated from Auckland University of Technology
majoring in Computer Science. He had engaged in the
works of various departments of the Group so that he has
familiarized himself with the business operation of the
Group. He is the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman
& CEO of the Company and is the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming, a non-executive director & deputy chairman of the
Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been doing business in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years. His
businesses are mainly specialized in financial services and
international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed as
the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand Limited,
which is a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited listed in
New Zealand.

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond, aged 73, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
in February 1998. He graduated from Oklahoma Baptist
University in the United States with a Bachelor Degree
in Arts in 1964. Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience
in the construction industry. He is also a director of Exalt
International Limited and Shelton Food Industry Limited.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
in December 2004. He has extensive experience in
accounting, finance and management. He holds a Master
Degree in professional accounting, a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration and a higher diploma in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 64, is the Director of Administration
of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of
the Group in 1980 and has over 20 years' experience in
office administration and purchasing. She is responsible for
supervising human resources and overall administration of
the Group. She is also the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who
is one of the executive Directors, the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and sister-in-law
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman.
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Mr. LEUNG Kwok Ming, Daniel, aged 47, was appointed
as the General Manager of Industrial Automation
Business Unit of the Group with effect from 1 April
2013, responsible for the overall operation and business
development of the business. He was the member
of the Executive Committee of the Group since April
2011 and Deputy Chief Operation Officer of the Group
during April 2011 to March 2013. Mr. Leung graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
Degree in Mechanical Engineering and Master Degree
in Mechatronics. He joined the Group in June 2009. He
has over 10 years of experience in global procurement
and over 10 years of global engineering and operational
management experience in the field of electronics and
system integration products.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 46, is the Senior Marketing
Director and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Group, responsible for the Group’s marketing and business
development. He joined the Group in 1985 and has over
20 years' experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. WONG Siu Ching, aged 55, is the Marketing Director
of the Group, responsible for sales and marketing as well
as new product business development of the Group.
Mr. Wong joined the Group in 1988 and had over 30
years' experience in sales and marketing. During 2009-
2011, Mr. Wong was appointed as the General Manager
of TIS Karrie Technologies (H.K.) Co., Ltd., a joint venture
company of the Group.

Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 48, is the General Manager
— System Integration and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining the Group in
1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years’ experience in quality
management in an electronic manufacturing company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 48, is the General Manager
of Human Resources and Administration in China and
a member of the Executive Committee of the Group,
responsible for the overall personnel and administration
management. She joined the Group in 1984 and has over
18 years' experience in managing the production process
of manufacturing industries and 10 years’ experience in
overall personnel and administration management.
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Mr. WONG Fok Tsun, Albert, aged 61, is the Assistant
Internal Audit Director of the Group, responsible for
setting up internal audit procedure and reporting directly
to the Board and the Internal Audit Committee. Mr. Wong
graduated from Curtin University of Technology, WA with
a Bachelor Degree in Management and Marketing. He
also holds a Master Degree of Accounting from the same
University. He is a fellow member of The Association of
International Accountants, UK and is an associate member
of CPA Australia. He is also a member of The Institute of
Internal Auditors Inc. U.S.A. Mr. Wong has over 20 years’
experience in internal auditing and 12 years’ experience in
financial accounting. He joined the Group in March 2003.

Ms. LAM Po Ling, Regan, aged 50, the Assistant General
Manager of Supply Chain Management of the Group,
is responsible for the overall operation of the Group’s
supply chain management and logistics system. Ms. Lam
graduated from The University of Strathclyde, United
Kingdom with a Master Degree of Science in Procurement
Management. She is a member of The Chartered Institute
of Purchasing & Supply, United Kingdom (MCIPS). Ms.
Lam joined the Group since 1990. She has over 29 years’
working experience in Purchasing, Procurement and Supply
Chain Management.
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in

- Metal and Plastic (“M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products including
computer casings, office automation products,
video tape cassettes, visual accessories, automobile
products, moulds, plastic and metal parts;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape drives,
laser printers, multi-function facsimile machines,
“point-of-sale” system, medical products and other
computer peripherals; and

- Consumer-related and Services Business: provision
of wedding-related services including wedding
gown, photography, wedding planning, travel, hotel
and catering services.

The Group's turnover by principal product category and
geographical locations for the Year are set out in Note 5 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK1.2 cents (2011/12: HK1 cent) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of members of
the Company on 13 September 2013. Together with
the interim dividend, total dividend paid for this year
amounted to HK1.2 cents (2011/12: HK1 cent) per share.
The final dividend will be subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the "AGM") of the Company to be held
on 6 September 2013.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group's results for the Year are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 134 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 7 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 20 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 22 to the Financial
Statements.

As at 31 March 2013, the Company's reserves of
approximately HK$267,429,000 representing the
contributed surplus and retained profit were available for
distribution to the Company's shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$74,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company's shares during
the Year.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

A. The Expired Share Option Scheme (the “Old
Scheme”)

The Old Scheme was adopted on 21 May 2002 and
was subsequently amended on 4 August 2006 to
comply with the new requirements of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules effected on 1 September 2001.
The Old Scheme was expired on 20 May 2012. New
Share Option Scheme of the Company was approved
by the shareholders of the Company and adopted on
24 August 2012 (the "New Scheme"). Details of the
Old Scheme are summarised herein below:

(i) The purpose of the Old Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible participants
thereunder for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any Invested Entity (as defined in
the Old Scheme);
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)

A. The Expired Share Option Scheme (the "Old
Scheme”) (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The participants of the Old Scheme include
any employee, director (including executive
and non-executive director of the Group),
shareholder, supplier, customer, consultant,
adviser, other service provider, partner and
business or strategic alliance partner of the
Group or any Invested Entity (as defined in
the Old Scheme) or any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects may be any of
the above persons;

The total number of shares that may be
issued by the Company if all options granted
under the Old Scheme have been exercised is
19,560,000, which represents approximately
0.98% of the existing issued share capital of
the company at the date of this report;

The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the
Old Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company at the
date of adoption of the Old Scheme and
thereafter, if refreshed, shall not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the refreshed limit by the
Company's shareholders. The number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Old Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)

A. The Expired Share Option Scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) (Cont’d)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting, no participants shall be granted
any option if the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to such
participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of the latest grant would exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in excess of 0.1%
of the Company's share capital in issue for
the time being and with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance
by the Company's shareholders;

An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Old Scheme at any
time during a period to be notified by the
Board to each grantee. Unless otherwise
determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must
be held or a performance target which
must be achieved before an option can be
exercised;

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by
way of consideration for the grant of an
option is required to be paid by each grantee
upon acceptance of the option;

The subscription price payable upon
exercising any particular option granted
under the Old Scheme is determined based
on a formula: P = N x Ep, where "P" is
the subscription price; "N" is the number
of shares to be subscribed; and "Ep" is
the exercise price of the highest of (a) the
nominal value of a share in the Company
on the date of grant; (b) the closing price
of shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and (c) the average of the closing
prices of shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant and
as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the
Old Scheme; and
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EEEHE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BIRELTE (&)

A. The Expired Share Option Scheme (the “Old ., BALENEBRESTS (B8 (&)
Scheme”) (Cont’d)

(ix)  The life of the Old Scheme is until the tenth (ix) BEFBZ2AMHREERAE AR
anniversary of the adoption date of the Old FTEETHESEAR -
Scheme.
(x)  Details of share option movements during (x) BIBEERAFE ZBRES
the Year under the Old Scheme are as HEWT
follows:
Number of Share Options
BiEHE
¥Closing *Adjusted
price Price at for Outstanding Lapsed/
before exercise  Outstanding Share Option ~ Granted  Exercised  cancelled  Outstanding
Dateof  ‘Exercise Exercise date of dateof  at31March on 20 Sep during during during  at 31 March
Name grant price period grant options 2012 2012 theYear  theYear the Year 2013
gt 3
WERE  NBRE @ -3--f RAZTH Z2-=F
iR it ZA=t-B  HBEAOR MAEE  MEE WMEE ZAZt-
4 RUAH iRkE i AL 2Bt AT ZHERE el i &%/ B HRITE
(HKS) (HKS) (HK9) (1000) (1000) (1000) ('000) (1000) ('000)
(#7) (#7) (#7) (F) (F) (f) (F) (F) (f)
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
E2RERTHAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 05/03/2010 0275 0112/2010- 027 - 450 450 - - (900) -
G 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 0107/2011- 027 - 450 450 - - (900) -
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 0107/2012- 027 - 600 600 - - (1,200) -
04/03/2020
Mr. Lee Shu i 05/03/2010 0275 0112/2010- 027 - 630 630 - - (1,260) -
FhMEE 04/0372020
05/03/2010 0275 0107/2011- 027 - 630 630 - - (1,260) -
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 0107/2012- 027 - 840 840 - - (1,680) -
04/03/2020
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Sivia ~ 05/03/2010 0275 01/12/2010- 027 - 360 360 - - (720) -
ek 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 01/07/2011- 027 - 360 360 - - (720) -
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 01/07/2012- 027 - 480 480 - - (960) -
04/03/2020
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EEEHE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)

A. The Expired Share Option Scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) (Cont’d)

BRESTE (@)
F. CSRLENBRESTS (88 (&)

) (Contd) x) (&)
Number of Share Options
BiEHE
¥Closing *Adjusted
price Price at for Outstanding Lapsed/
before exercise  Outstanding Share Option ~ Granted  Exercised  cancelled  Outstanding
Dateof  ‘Exercise Exercise date of dateof  at31March on 20 Sep during during during  at 31 March
Name Grant price period grant options 2012 2012 theYear  theYear the Year 213
Rog-CF
WERE  RBRE @ -®--f AAZTR 8-z
RHBH iR ZA=t-B  EEMAOR REEE  WAEE BMAEE ZA=t-B
e REAE  fREE i ZEh 2 AR ZERE  ERT i X%/ B HAITE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (1000) (1000) (1000) ('000) (1000) ('000)
(#7) (#7) (#7) (F) (F) (f) (F) (F) (f)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 05/03/2010 0275 0112/2010- 027 - 210 210 - - (540) -
&%t 04/0372020
05/03/2010 0275 010772011 027 - 210 210 - - (540) -
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 010772012 027 - 360 360 - - (720) -
04/03/2020
Mr. Ho Kai Man 05/03/2010 0275 011212010- 0.27 - 90 90 - - (180) -
R 0410312020
05/03/2010 0275 010772011- 027 - 90 90 - - (180) -
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 010772012 027 - 120 120 - - (240) -
04/03/2020
(i) Other Hligible Participants
Efpattisag
Employees 05/03/2010 0275 011212010- 027 - 5867 5558 - - (5557) 5,868
[E& 04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 010772011- 027 - 5217 4,908 - - (4.257) 5,868
04/03/2020
05/03/2010 0275 010772012 027 - 6,95 6,544 - - (5,676) 7824
04/03/2020
# As a result of the Bonus Issue of shares, # EEAREITTKE - BRE

the exercise price of the Options and the
number of Shares to be allotted and issued
upon full exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to the outstanding Options have
been adjusted. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 24
August 2012.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BIRELTE (&)

A. The Expired Share Option Scheme (the “Old ., B&ALNEBRESTS ((E518)) (&)
Scheme”) (Cont’d)

(xi)  Details of share option movements during xi) WREEFER-_T—=FMA—H
the period between 1 April 2013 to 30 June ET-=FRA=THLEZER
2013: BEBFENT
Number of Share Options
ERESE

Lapsed/

Granted Exercised cancelled

#Closing during during during

price Price at theperiod  theperiod  the period

before  exercise Outstanding from 1 April  from 1 April  from 1 April  Outstanding

Date of  ‘Exercise Exerdse ~ dateof  dateof at31March 2013 to 2013 to 213to  at30June

Name grant price period grant  options 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2013 2013
ZE-zf  ZE-Z “E-zE

RERE HRERE -3-=£ WA-BE MA-AE MA-AE -B-Zf

REAH  f1RB ZA=t-B #RA=tR  AAZtE  AAZTA  RAZ1H

e REAE  HTRE s oEK BB HAOE BET e XM/ BB HAGOE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (000) ('000) (1000) ('000) ('000)
(%) (Bn)  (Bn) (F) (F) () (F) (F)
(i) Other Eligible Participants
EfaEk2aE
Employees 05/03/2010 0275 01/12/2010- 027 - 5,368 - - - 5,368
E& 04/032020
05/03/2010 0275 01/07/2011- 0.27 - 5,368 - - - 5,368
04/03/2020
050312010 0275 01/0772012- 027 - 7824 - - - 7824
04/03/2020
# As a result of the Bonus Issue of shares, # E AR 1T STR 1%« BB AR
the exercise price of the Options and the T EBARITEERERT
number of Shares to be allotted and issued st PR PTRECL NN
upon full exercise of the subscription rights HEEE?&% ﬁmﬁﬂih BEE
attaching to the outstanding Options have EHFE - BHEAFIS - TT2H
been adjusted. For details, please refer to the KN A FR2012F8AH248 T %
announcement of the Company dated 24 TN

August 2012.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)

A. The Expired Share Option Scheme (the "Old
Scheme”) (Cont’d)

A professional actuarial firm has been invited in the
year of 2009/10 to perform a valuation of the share
options granted under the share option schemes.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 2 (“HKFRS 2”), the cost of share-based
transactions should be recognised as an expense over the
period from the date of grant until they are exercisable
by the receiver of such payment. The expense required
to be reported for share options granted on or before 31
March 2013 would be estimated as follows:

BRESTE (@)
F. CRIENBRESTS (EE)) (F)

—BMEXAERAR_ZTN—ZF
EREHBHEARR 2 BREEENER -

RIEFBVHEREENE R ([EFEHM
BHEER2]) - BRERRLBAHNHA
FEEAREGBEOER AN BiHEX
HItERRPIR - BEAR T —=F
A=t HEURRENBRERE
IR IR EFHEI T

Financial Year

BMREE
2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Total
&%
P&L expenses (HK$'000) 419 4,700 1,588 299 7,006

BRI H (TET)

Employee share option expenses charged to the
consolidated income statement are determined with
the Trinomial Model valuation model based on the
following assumptions:

Date of valuation BB H

Date of grant A

Option value RIREEE

Market price at date of grant R B2 T5EE
Exercisable price 1IEE

Risk-free interest rate gl ped

Life of options R R R HA
Expected Volatility (120 months) TE B R (12016 A)
Expected Dividend yield TEEREARAR B

Note: The vesting of the share options is subject to the
performance of the Group.

* Adjusted the effect of bonus issue.
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HK$0.112-HK$0.122* 7&#0.112 — 5#0.122*

HK$0.275* 75#50.275*
HK$0.275* 75 #50.275*
2.68% 2.68%

10 years T+
50.73% 50.73%
2.78% 2.78%
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)

A.

The Expired Share Option Scheme (the "Old
Scheme”) (Cont’d)

There are several relevant measures that may be
considered to assess the financial impact of the
share option schemes, including the expense of
share-based transactions under generally accepted
financial reporting standards (e.g., HKFRS2).
The expense of the share-based transactions
is attributed over the period from the original
transaction date (i.e., grant date) to the date when
the recipient’s entitlement to the payment has been
fully realized (i.e., vested).

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility, adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Change in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The result of the Trinomial Model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an
option’s actual value may differ from the estimated
fair value of the options due to limitations of the
Trinomial Model.

In assessing the value of the share options granted
during the Year and the expense of share-based
transactions under HKFRS 2 requirement, the
Trinomial option pricing model has been used.
The Trinomial Model is one of the generally most
accepted methods used to calculate the value of
options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the Trinomial Model include the
risk free rate, dividend yield, exit rate and trigger
price multiple. The risk free rate has made reference
to the yield Exchange Fund Notes as at the grant
date. The dividend yield makes reference to the
dividend history and it is assumed that the grantee
will exercise the option in accordance with their
sub-optimal exercise policy.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)
B. The New Scheme

No share option has been granted under the New
Scheme since its adoption on 24 August 2012.
Details of the New Scheme are summarized as
below: -

(i) (a) The New Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and
is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which
the Eligible Participants (as defined in
the New Scheme) have made or will
make to the Group or Invested Entity.

(b)  The New Share Option Scheme wiill
provide the Eligible Participants with
an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with a view to
motivating the Eligible Participants
to utilise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group
or Invested Entity; and attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining an
ongoing relationship with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long term
growth of the Group or Invested Entity.

(ii) The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(a) any director (whether executive,
non-executive or independent
non-executive director), employee
(whether full time or part time
employee), consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, joint venture
partner or advisers of or contractor to
the Group or Invested Entity; and

(b) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any
director (whether executive, non-
executive or independent non-
executive director), employee
(whether full time or part time
employee), consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, joint venture
partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or Invested Entity.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)
B. The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

The overall limit on the number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes
for the time being of the Company shall not,
in aggregate, exceed such number of Shares
as equals 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted
under the New Scheme or any other share
option scheme of the Company if it will
result in the above-mentioned 30% limit
being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the New Share Option Scheme by the
Shareholders (the "Scheme Mandate Limit"),
unless Shareholders' approval has been
obtained. Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme or any other
share option scheme of the Company will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit.

(@) Unless approved by Shareholders in
a general meeting, no option may
be granted to any Eligible Participant
which, if exercised in full, would result
in the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted or to be
granted to such Eligible Participant
(including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date
of such new grant exceeding 1% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of
such new grant.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)

The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(v)

(Cont’d)

(b)

Any grant of options to a director,
chief executive or substantial
Shareholder of the Company or its
subsidiaries or any of their respective
associates under the New Scheme
must be subject to the prior approval
of the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent
non-executive Director who is a
Grantee of the relevant options).

Where any grant of options to
a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director
of the Company or any of their
respective associates would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant:

(1) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the Shares in issue,
and

(2) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must
be subject to the approval by
Shareholders at a general meeting
taken on a poll.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The period within which the options must be
exercised will be specified by the Company
at the time of grant, but shall expire no
later than 10 years from the relevant date of
grant.

At the time of grant of the options, the
Company may specify any minimum period(s)
for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The New Scheme does not
contain any such minimum period.

At the time of the grant of the options,
the Company may specify any performance
target(s) which must be achieved before the
options can be exercised. The New Scheme
does not contain any performance targets.

A non-refundable remittance of HK$10
by way of consideration for the grant of
an option is refunded to be paid by each
grantee upon acceptance of the opinion.

Subject to adjustments made in a situation
contemplated under the New Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any option
shall be at the discretion of the Board,
provided that it shall not be less than the
highest of:

(a) the closing price of a share as shown
in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant
(which must be a business day) in
respect of such option;

(b)  the average of the closing prices
of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the relevant
date of grant in respect of such
option; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 235 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in Note 10 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as
at 31 March 2013 are set out in Notes 24 to the financial
statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

Mr. Zhao Kai (appointed on 1 November 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Ho Kai Man (appointed as Executive Director
on 12 July 2012 and re-designated as
Non-executive Director on 1 November 2012)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. So Wai Chun
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

Mr. So Wai Chun, Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond and
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing are appointed for specific terms and
hold office until 30 June 2014, 4 February 2014 and
6 December 2013, respectively, subject to extension.

In accordance with Article 86(2) and 87 of the Company's
Bye-laws and A.4.2. of the Corporate Governance Code,
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Mr. Zhao
Kai, Mr. So Wai Chun and Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All such Directors, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company had the following
continuing connected transaction, certain details of which
had been disclosed in compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transaction

Upon the expiry of the previous lease agreement on
17 November 2011, a new lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) dated 16 November 2011 was entered into
between Kings Lion Development Limited (“Kings Lion”)
as landlord and Karrie Industrial Company Limited (”Karrie
Industrial”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as tenant for the lease of a portion (being 26,573 square
feet in gross floor area) of 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial
Building, 611-619 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories together with one car parking space in the same
building at a monthly rental of HK$172,724 (that is, at
approximately HK$6.5 per square foot) for a term of two
years commencing on 18 November 2011.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(Cont’d)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Cont’d)

Kings Lion is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the reason that Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a Director of the Company, together with
his spouse, control 100% of the voting power in general
meeting and also control the board of Directors of Kings
Lion. The transaction contemplated under the Lease
Agreement (the "Lease Transaction") therefore constitutes
a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Lease Transaction have been set out in the announcement
dated 16 November 2011 issued to the shareholders of
the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Transaction and confirmed that the Lease Transaction
has been entered into by the Group in accordance with
the terms of the Lease Agreement in the ordinary and
usual course of its business and on normal commercial
terms which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information" and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules" issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in the paragraph above in accordance with paragraph
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Lease Transaction is also a related party transaction
set out in note 39(a) to the financial statements as
"Rental charged by a related company". The Company
has complied with the specific rule requirements for the
Lease Transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Apart from the Lease Transaction, all other related party
transactions set out in note 39 to the financial statements
do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Directors confirmed that they have conducted
review of the related party transactions and are satisfied
that all connected transactions (if any) are properly reported.
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EFEERE
DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERESTHRABZROER
INTERESTS IN SHARES
As at 31 March 2013 R-ZZE-=F=RA=+—H
The interests and short positions of the Directors and the RARFIZEZRERTHRABEARRT KM
chief executives of the Company in the shares and the BESEE (B R (EHFRAERAD ([(EHK
underlying shares of the Company and any associated BiIY1) EXVED) &A%t K AB B AR 10 7 B #) 1
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and AR MZEEZRARQBRE (FHEIE
Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) (a) as recorded in the ) 352168 T FE 2 B M pTacgkE  si(b)
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; KIBCEMRARESHETBESF R ZWITLESTA)
or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock ([CRESFAD)) BARRRREBBER S
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") BRAT ([BZAT]) T -

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the "Model Code") were as

follows:
(A)  Interests in the Company () REARNFLZ#ER
Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
SREEIBTZERRYE
Corporate/
Personal Family Other Total % of issued
interests interests interests interests  share capital
EERRN HR
18 AR ZEER Hitrfgs CEE 55 B
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (e 4 278,712,000 110,350,000 1,077,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(BE—) (Brzr—) (=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming A EBREE 24,208,000 - 817,608,000 841,816,000 4217
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(HzE=) (=)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRIELE 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000 0.14
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia BRI/ E 500,000 - - 500,000 0.03
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Yabicyi it 4,000 - - 4,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu AEKRZ L 110,350,000 538,712,000 817,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 4) (Note 4) (Note 2)

(PEERD) (M) (M=)

T PIEIER AR B R A 7] 2012/13 F#
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2013 (Cont’d)

(A)

Notes:

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai's personal interest consists of 278,712,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 110,350,000 Shares
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The 1,077,608,000 Shares comprised (i) 487,608,000 Shares
held by New Sense Enterprises Limited ("New Sense"); and (ii)
330,000,000 Shares held by Castfast Properties Development
Limited ("Castfast Properties"), 87% of the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Honford Investments
Limited ("Honford Investments"). New Sense and Honford
Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF (BVI) Limited
("TMF") as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family
Trust, and (i) 260,000,000 Shares held by The Wedding City
Company Limited ("The Wedding City"), 90% and 10% of
the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000
Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and in
260,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The Wedding City. Ms. Ho
Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the discretionary objects
of The Ho Family Trust and are thus deemed to be interested
in the 817,608,000 Shares held under The Ho Family Trust.
Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the 817,608,000 Shares duplicate
with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
24,208,000 ordinary shares.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
110,350,000 Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be
interested in (a) 278,712,000 Shares beneficially held and
260,000,000 Shares deemed to be held by her spouse, Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, and (b) 817,608,000 Shares referred to in Note
2 above.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/1.

EERRSTRAEZRODER (&)

R-ZB—=%=ZA=+—R8 (&)

(F) RERFZ#zm (&)

B &E -

/|

fA] k2 1% 50 A 2 8l A #E 55 B 45278,712,0004%
KA EBBERG - MIEBEERBRFE
EfR@BUNERZTIEFRERBEAREZ
110,350,000/% f& 17 -

1,077,608,000/% % 17 & #&(i)lINew Sense
Enterprises Limited ([New Sense|) #F
A 2487,608,000A% A& 7 : (iDF= 1B B i
ERFRARRA(IZERMHE] BE 2
330,000,000/ f& 15 + H B2 BTN 287%
J3#Honford Investments Limited ([Honford
Investments|) & z ¥ A& ° New Sense&
Honford InvestmentsEATMFIE & & # (= &
Ho Family TrustZ st AZ B A K(ii)iEL)
WAERAT ([1E4H]) 5 .2260,000,000
BEPE 1D » HEITRA 290% & 10% % Bl f fa]
ERBEERMBHR T T ERES o (EBE
HtEBHo Family TrustZ 8137 A - #8 AR
7% %817,608,0000% A% 1% = %k A (i) K (ii) K (i)
& 40 3 2 260,000,0000% I 1h = #E 25 - (W&
Bz £ R B8 % 4 BHo Family TrustZ 2
XA R ARHo Family Trustis g
2.817,608,000/% fix 15 ¥ A #E 2 o #Lut - {1
BRI E  MERLZLERAERLEREZS
817,608,000 % 7 2 HEZ 1% It E5 48 o

] S BA 5L A& 2 @ A #E #5 FR24,208,000(% A8 &
BT B D AR o

Al & Bk 22+ 2 8 A # %5 H8110,350,0008% 725
NE|EBRRMMERK - FEHRZ LR AR
BQHE B EBLEIEARERHEAE AT R
48 2278,712,0000% B 7 }.260,000,0004%
B% 19+ R(b)817,608,0000% A% 15 » #E 25 » &
BRAMNERZ T (MKHFZn) EEZR—
MR o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE' S EERBETHRAEZROER (&)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Contd)
As at 31 March 2013 (Cont'd) R-ZEBE—=%5=ZF=+—R1 (&)
(B)  Interests and short positions in associated (Z) RIGEZE 2 #Ezm RAE
corporations
() Karrie Industrial Company Limited ("KICL") () BNERERAF (ZMER]D
Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
BREE100ETZERERELERHAHA
Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests  interests interests  interests capital positions capital
EEER
BARRZ IEER HitfExm AritlEs BRAESK #r FRESL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
flEE S (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(B=E—) (PfzE—) (fsx=)  (Mia—) (FiF3E=)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
AIEKZL (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)  (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Pff=E—) (B=E—) (M=) (ME—) (FfE=)
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited ("KTL") iy BEREARLAR ([FERED
Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
BREE100BTZERERELCRAHA
Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests  interests capital positions capital
EERER
BARRZ EER HitfEm AitEs BRASK #r FRAESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
B E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(BzE—) (BfEE—) (=)  (MaE—) (FE=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE" S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Contd)

As at 31 March 2013 (Cont’d)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

(iii) Karrie Investment Holdings Limited ("KIHL")

EERESITTRAEZRDESR (4)

R-ZB—-=%=HA=+—H8 (&)
(2) RIGEZEZ #EmRAE (&)

(i) FAWEEBRARAR ([RARE])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BREE1ETZERFEELROHE

Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests  interests interests  interests capital positions capital
SEERE
BAME FEME  Rbdn  AiEE  BRESE %R BEEAH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
g S £ (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(BzE—) (BfzE—) (PEm)  (MaE—) (PfaEP)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
Bkt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(PfEE—) (BffzE—) (BEm)  (MaE—) (PfzEP)
Notes: Mizk
1. Karrie International (B.V.I.) Limited ("KIBVI"), a direct wholly- — Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited
owned subsidiary of the Company, has been granted options (TKIBVI]) » RABIzHEE2EWBE QT »
to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their RSB A A E %R T TR
non-voting deferred shares in each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. EFER EENREREFSEEHMEANE
Accordingly, KIBVI is taken to be interested in these non- I EREEIERR D o A IS S E M BT
voting deferred shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai T+ iR AEEmMSAEAEEBY
and Ms. Ho Po Chu have each created short positions. In KB KIBVEE S EZERH 2R - BE
addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in the Company; and Rt () [RAANT 2R 2HE— - =
(i) the interests as referred to in Notes 1, 2 and 4 under the MUK - B E AR R 2 e
section headed "(A) Interests in the Company" above, Mr. S HE R B Tk A+ & B AR A1F AKIBVIF %
Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are each deemed to be LR TIER c RERFREFANE LR
interested in the long positions that KIBVI has in these non- DHER TV B EEH - o
voting deferred shares. Such interests are duplicated with
their personal interests in these non-voting deferred shares.
2. The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises 50,000 = EHNELSEITRMB50,0008 R EE00
non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and 10 ordinary BT B RERENR S K10 EIREE100
shares of HK$100 each. BT BRI AR o
3. The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises 10,000 non- = EERHIE 21T B 10,000 &R EE 100
voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and 10 ordinary BT B RERERS K10 EIREE100
shares of HK$100 each. BT BRI A o
4. The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2 non- M SNEEEZETRMOB2ZESEREE ST

voting deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which were
(a) recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE' S EERBEITHAEZRGOESR (&)

INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont‘d)

As at 30 June 2013 R-ZE—Z=HXA=1+H
ARABSEENESITBRABERR T KER
HECEE (Bx R (GEHKD) EXVELD) BRHD
NEEROFHEENER AR @ MzSEER
KoK B @RI CGEHIEA) B3I2BEBETHRTZ
BT srE o kb)BAARRD A REERFAT -
U

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO (a) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(A)  Interests in the Company (FF) RADELZ #z

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIEBTZEEBRHAE
Corporate/ % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share
interests interests interests interests capital
EERERD R
BARERE XT3 HitbfE CEE Aot
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai AlEE S & 278,712,000 110,350,000 1,077,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(BzE—) (Pf=E—) (FizE=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming EEEEERES 24,208,000 - 817,608,000 841,816,000 42.17
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(BE=) (FizE=)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki TRIHEE A 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000 0.14
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia &4 /) i@ 500,000 - - 500,000 0.03
Mr. Zhao Kai et 1,572,000 - - 1,572,000 0.08
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing abises Bt 4,000 - - 4,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu IE%RZ L 110,350,000 538,712,000 817,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 4) (Note 4) (Note 2)
(BzEE) (B =) (BzE=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont‘d)

As at 30 June 2013 (Cont’d)
(A)  Interests in the Company (Cont’d)
Notes:

1. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai's personal interest consists of
278,712,000 Shares. He is deemed to be interested
in 110,350,000 Shares held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po
Chu, as beneficial owner.

2. The 1,077,608,000 Shares comprised (i) 487,608,000
Shares held by New Sense; and (ii) 330,000,000
Shares held by Castfast Properties, 87% of the
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
by Honford Investments. New Sense and Honford
Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF as
trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust,
and (iii) 260,000,000 Shares held by The Wedding
City, 90% and 10% of the issued share capital of
which is beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and
Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is
deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000 Shares
n (i) and (i) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and
in 260,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The Wedding
City. Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the
discretionary objects of The Ho Family Trust and are
thus deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000
Shares held under The Ho Family Trust. Therefore,
the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the 817,608,000 Shares
duplicate with each other.

3. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
comprise 24,208,000 ordinary shares.

4, The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
110,350,000 Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed
to be interested in (a) 278,712,000 Shares beneficially
held and 260,000,000 Shares deemed to be held by
her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, and (b) 817,608,000
Shares referred to in Note 2 above.
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5 HBE 1T 287% JhEHonford
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERESITRAEZRDER (4)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Contd)
As at 30 June 2013 (Cont'd) R=—ZB—=FXA=+H (#)
(B)  Interests and short positions in associated (Z) RIGEZE 2 #am RAE
corporations
0) Karrie Industrial Company Limited ("KICL") (i) ZHMEREBRAR ([ZFES])
Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
BREE100B T BERERELRDHBE
Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests  interests interests  interests capital positions capital
EEERR
BARE Bz HUBEE A4AEE BRESH #E  BRAESW
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
BICh: Tt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(BzE—) (PfEE—) (fsE=)  (ME—) (BREE=)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
EES 3 (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(PfEE—) (P=E—) (PsE=)  (MFaE—) (FifzE=)
(i)  Karpo Technologies Limited ("KTL") () ZEREAERAR ([ZERE])
Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
BREE100E T2 BERERELRDHE
Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests  interests interests  interests capital positions capital
EEERR
BARE EREE HtBEE A4AEE BRESH wKE  BRAESW
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
BICh: Tt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(BzE—) (PfEE—) (fEE=)  (ME—) (FiEE=)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont‘d)

As at 30 June 2013 (Cont’d)

EERRSTRAEZRODER (&)

R=ZB—=%XA=+H8 (&)

(B)  Interests and short positions in associated (2) R ZE . #Em RAE (&)
corporations (Cont’d)
(i) Karrie Investment Holdings Limited ("KIHL") (i) ZAEEZERBERAR ([ZFIEE )
Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each
BREEI1EBIZEREREERDEA
Corporate/ % of % of
Personal Family Other Total issued share Short issued share
interests interests interests interests capital positions capital
EEREED
BAREZ XBfE= HihigEzx AitiEzE BERESH KB FRESL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
e R A (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4)  (Note 1) (Note 4)
(Myex—)  (Pf=E—) (MEEm)  (fFE—) (MI=EmM)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
MBSt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4)  (Note 1) (Note 4)
(MtsE—)  (Pf=E—) (MsEm)  (PM7E—) (BF3ERT)
Notes: BaE -
1. KIBVI, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, —  KIBVI® ZFQEZET%%QW%@ Al 5% £y
has been granted options to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk %E@Eﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁE*D@%fﬂiﬁiﬁ’t\%
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their non-voting deferred shares in MEmM - ?%gﬂﬁi&%ﬂ WEMBE BRI
each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. Accordingly, KIBVI is taken to ;%T’géﬁﬁﬂﬁ@ o I?EE@@*?—E?EE*ME]%%&
be interested in these non-voting deferred shares in respect + J:?Lﬁ)af[?ﬁ FTREENSAEELEEH Z/j‘\
of which Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu have each B KIBVIZT%%EZ%%@Z%?&E\ BE R
created short positions. In addition, by virtue of (i) their Lt (R TRAARRR 2w 2Mfiad— Z &k
interests in the Company; and (ii) the interests as referred to mA - A b ?%EZFQ\E\ZTEE A fE B
in Notes 1, 2 and 4 under the section headed "(A) Interests in EMAIEHRZ TS E WﬁZ%ﬁﬁKlB\ﬁﬂF‘ %E
the Company" above, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu B&AD 2 #Eas o \EZ%TEEEE,HJ/\B(\\E%HQ@
are each deemed to be interested in the long positions that = TIBEER -
KIBVI has in these non-voting deferred shares. Such interests
are duplicated with their personal interests in these non-
voting deferred shares.
2. The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises 50,000 - %*'J&ﬁa%ﬁ%fﬁm50,000ﬂﬁHQETE'IOO
non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and 10 ordinary AT EECRAREE D &1 0B B AR EE 100
shares of HK$100 each. BT L BRI AR o
3. The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises 10,000 non- = %%ﬂ&a%&éﬁ%fﬁm 10,000% F A% EIE 100
voting deferred shares of HK$100 each and 10 ordinary AT ECRAREE D K1 0l B AR EE 100
shares of HK$100 each. BIL 2 LB AR o
4. The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2 non- M ZMNEEEZETROB2ZEEREEETTZ

voting deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont‘d)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2013, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the executive
Director, was interested in certain companies established in
the PRC (the "Competing Companies") which are or are
likely to, directly or indirectly, compete with the business of
the Group. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is also the director of these
Competing Companies. Details of the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai in the Competing Companies are as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

EERRSTRAEZROER (&)

(Z) RIGBZEZ #a RAE (&)

B EXFTRBESN  ARREEZNERRITHA
B EAER EAR R MAT A EBOEB B
HERDREFIEPORDE AR MaFE
@ SR B ()R & KRB 1R 1]) F3521& A THBF
ZE AR ¢ (b k& (RESTA) A
R MBS o

EERHGFERB 2ED

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H ST EEMEE
e IR E A A P B A 3L 2 /A BBk AT RE B AR &
EEKEKEESMEERF 2 AR ([BFERQ
) EAEEZD - WEBLENABZERFER
RIZEE - (B BLERNZERFHRR 2 #
mABEET

Name of Date and place
Competing Company of establishment Principal business Shareholdings
S NCIEY ] SR BRI R EEER IR
Dongguan Castfast Door and 2 August 2001, Property investment and Castfast Properties: 95%
Window Products Co., Ltd. the PRC provision of property
("Dongguan Castfast”) management and
consultancy services
in the PRC
RmEMERMERAF] “EE-F)\AZH - RHBRETHE REEHE  95%
(IR=Z=HED) a3 BRE R ME
B N AR

Yixing Yongtai Enterprise 25 March 2008, Property development Castfast Properties: 55%

Management Services Co. Ltd. the PRC in the PRC Dongguan Karrie
("Yixing Management”) Resort Limited: 25%
HEOKRPEEERBERAR —ZETN\F AR BEITY R RIEFEME : 55%
(lE#ER] =AZ=+HhA" ERMERKE
1 & BRAR - 25%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (Contd)

As at 31 March 2013, Dongguan Castfast had developed
a residential and commercial property project Castfast
Villas located at Dongguan, the PRC with a site area of
approximately 48,600 sg.m. and a total gross floor area of
approximately 233,700 sq.m.. This project was completed
and all of the residential units had been sold. Dongguan
Castfast has retained the shopping mall of Castfast Villas
as long-term investment properties.

As at 31 March 2013, Yixing Management had developed
a property project located in Yixing, Jiangsu, the PRC. This
project occupied a site area of approximately 107,340
sg.m. and comprised offices, staff quarters, canteens and
service apartments. Construction of the project was partly
completed pending the issue of the relevant property
ownership certificates.

As at 31 March 2013, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai was interested
in certain companies established in the PRC which were
engaged in the operation of a wedding city. Details of
these companies are as follows:

EENGERERZES (&)

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H RxEEBEHAE
—RURFPEEREEELERYEEE =18
SRE - (R EFEX) A48,600F 7K - A EE
E#5233,700F FK - ZIBBEE XK © FTEE
EEUHYEEE - RERBECRBEBREL
BYRSEARIRED -

R-ZTE-—=F=A=+—0 HEEECHA%
—EMRFRIIHEEEN ZYEER - %8
B5HEEAIA107,340F 5K - B FHE - B
IE% BERLBEXN QBB - #1978 B i
BEAETEK - ERFAREPFIREM R EEE -

RZTZ—=F=A=+—B fEEEERE
REIR 2 e FIENWER 2 ARITHE
B o REFRAZFHBT

Name of Date and place
Competing Company of establishment
BEMDRERE SEfAL S B HA R it B

Principal business

Shareholdings
R A

Dongguan Fenggang Castfast
Wedding City Co. Ltd.
("Dongguan Wedding”)

KRB EBBIEY AR AR
(IR=EY |

The Wedding City Co. Ltd.
("The Wedding City")
1B BR AT ([1BAH )

12 November 2009,
the PRC

—“EFNF
+—A+=H"
R E

8 May 2009,
Hong Kong

“TEAFRANE

BB

Wedding services, related
exhibitions and services

BTG - HHERE
i

Investment holding

REZEK

The Wedding City: 100%

PEADY - 100%

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai: 90%
Ms. Ho Po Chu: 10%

e B A : 90%
BT 10%

The power to make material business decisions for
the Group is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board
considers that there may be a conflict of interest between
the Group and any Director, such Director will be required

REBZERBAEREDNEZETESS
AREIAEFEAEESR
: EZ%i%H
§$A1§Hb ETRVAYSE/N

B §%$Ew
M) 23 187 22

o 1]

TRERE - FHIL -
¥E§1ﬂd€$i‘ﬁ$§’ﬁ$9’9¥?ﬁ%

to abstain from voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of
carrying on the Group’s business independently of, and at
arm’s length, from the business of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR
As at 31 March 2013 and 30 June 2013 RZEBE—=%=ZA=+—-HRZZE—Z=%5xH
=+H

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than UTALT (PEEEZERARAZ&EITEHRA
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the 8) RAR THQLT?}&*H AR EEREBEARAR
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded AR (BHIED) F336FE 2 S LMo
in the register required to be kept by the Company under mROKE

Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

|_I‘

N\

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIBIZEEREE
Personal Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholder interests  Other interests percentage
EEREER
REARE PN HitfEz BERES
New Sense 487,608,000 - 24.43%
(Note 1 FfisE—)
Castfast Properties =124 E 330,000,000 - 16.53%
(Note 2 fi#FE =)
The Wedding City &4 260,000,000 - 13.02%
(Note 3 FfizE=)
Honford Investments - 330,000,000 16.53%
(Note 2 fi#FE =)
TMF - 817,608,000 40.96%
(Note 4 BftzEPm)

Note: B 5E

1. The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by — - New SenseZ 2 &2 BITIRTIBETMFAEFER
TMF as trustee for Ho Family Trust. Ho Family Trusti5 & °

2. 87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is - =EHEE ?*T?Hx$287% J FAHonford
beneficially owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued InvestmentsEz# A ° Honford Investments
share capital of Honford Investments was owned by TMF Z2EHBEITRAT @TMF(’E REERE
as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The The Ho Family TrustZ %5t A+FA ° Honford
interests of Honford Investments duplicate with those of the Investments Z #Em B S IBINR 2 R E R ©
Castfast Properties.

3. 260,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding = IS4 E %3 #5765 260,000,000 A 7 o B EETT
City. 90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which is MR Z290% K& 10% % )E'JUEHHX—%&%’_{&HEE
beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, RZTERBER - WUt B2 ERER
respectively. The interests of The Wedding City therefore ﬁfjﬁ—ﬁﬁiﬁ/\\l\%i f%%& SITHRAEZ
duplicate with those of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai referred to in Note B iEas | 2 MY s —Frit ZH Mz o
2 to the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares” above.

4. TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New g TMF# 18 & BAThe Ho Family Trustz 5 7

Sense, Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue
of acting as the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

A & 19 B New Sense * %= #& ¥ & MHonford
InvestmentsFTH5 B RO R R ©
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
As at 31 March 2013 and 30 June 2013 (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013 and 30
June 2013, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section "Directors' and Chief Executives' Interests
in Shares" above, had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS' INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Change of information of the Directors, which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing

FERR (#)

R-B-—=F=ZA=+—-HBRZ=-B—=%XA
=+H (&)

BREXREBEENESITBRABR[EZFNES
TTHRABZR D #Em | PREN R_F—=
FZA=+t—BR-ZT—=FXA=+RH I
BATHEEARRR 2D RAARER ) 2 #E 2 ok
KR Mk FERIORE BRE (BHFED) 5
3361%7E TR7F 2 ERLMATRCER ©

BELETHRAEI3SIBAFKIEE 2=
EERERH

B FHREIE135IBMEETHBECEEE
RHEBESMT ¢

Rules are set out below:

Name of Director

EEnE
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

Detail of Change
BEFHE

annual salary increased from HK$60,000 to HK$100,000 (excluding discretionary bonus)
with effect from 1 July 2012

alis2 ) ivta F%rh60,0008 TTIEANZE100,0008 T (MEEMEEA) BT —_FtH—HEX

Mr. Ho Kai Man appointed as the Executive Director with effect from 12 July 2012 and was re-designated
as the Non-executive Director with effect from 1 November 2012. He was no longer the
responsible person in the Plastic Injection Moulding Business Unit with effect from 22
November 2012

fAIRE SR ERERMITESE  B2012F7A 1284 - AEERITESFH2012F 11 ATBER - |
ETBEREBMZMAIBEA - B2012F11H22BEX

Mr. Zhao Kai was appointed as the Executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2012

A BRERWITESE - B2012F 1M ATHAEX
annual salary increased from RMB423,372 to RMB600,000 (excluding discretionary bonus)
with effect from 1 March 2013
FH B ARKA23,372TE MEARKEG600,0007T (TMBEIEMEREL) BT —=F=A
—H4AERK

Mr. Lee Shu Ki annual salary increased from HK$876,000 to HK$900,000 (excluding discretionary bonus)
with effect from 1 January 2013

FEEL F % H0876,000/8 7LIL MNZE900,0008 T (TEEWELL) » BT —=F—H—H
L

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, annual salary increased from HK$564,000 to HK$624,000 (excluding discretionary bonus)

Silvia with effect from 1 January 2013

R 1k ME FHH564,0008 TTIENZEE24,00087T (TEBEMEEL) X B-T—=F—A—B4&

»
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2013 attributable to the Group's major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 18%
Five largest suppliers combined 40%
Sales
The largest customer 26%
Five largest customers combined 81%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company's share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group's major suppliers or customers noted
above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

Assuming that the final dividend is approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM, for the
purposes of ascertaining the entitlement to the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 12 September 2013 to Friday, 13
September 2013 (both dates inclusive) during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company's Share Registrars in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 September 2013. It is
expected that the final dividend will be payable and issued
to those entitled on or around Thursday, 3 October 2013.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

FEEFRHKER

BHE_Z-—=F=-"A=+—HILFE Xx&EH
EXE2HEBEEPZBEREERILA

BE

BAHIER 18%
TR R 40%
HE

ISP 26%
AREFHG 81%

Brbaish  REEZ WENBEAINESH
TR AR B FRB5 % 2 BRI A (]
PlAEEERHER LTS 2 -

REREEFEREBBFERT

SRR ERNBRRAFRE LERAARIRE
e BEETZAERBREZERN  X2a#H
H-Z—=FNAA+=-H (Efm) 2=-_T—=
FNANA+=H (EHA) (BEEEMA) =
WERNBFELFE - MAKTEERRIBR
BB FIBEZZBROHEBEXMHEREH
ZHRE BR-ZE—=FNA+—H(EH=)
THUR =T ERERARTREEZRHB
BROKE: BEPRBLFEZLARLAA  H
WHAEBBEFERFRNERISIRAEMPLTIE
171226F - RER BB BREHR T —
=F+A=H (EHM) kRERBETTARAE
BIEARER o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on 6 September 2013, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
3 September 2013 to Friday, 6 September 2013 (both
dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's Share Registrars in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than

4:30 p.m. on Monday, 2 September 2013.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBEN IR

i
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Karrie International Holdings Limited (the "Company")
and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set out on
pages 132 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2013, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whenever due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 July 2013
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BALANCE SHEETS
RERRS

As at 31 March 2013 RZZE—=5=HA=+—H

Group Company
TEE Y UNE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—=F 22— C"B-=F —E2-—-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FidsE TAET FTET TAT TAT
(Restated)
(BE7I)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights TR 6 24,418 45,277 - -
Property, plant and equipment mE - BENEE 7 345,999 356,016 - -
Investment properties REME 8 218,875 208,608 - -
Intangible assets WmIAE 9 24,491 - - _
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZEE 10 - - 720,056 668,231
Investments in associated REE AR ZIRE
companies 11 16,131 23,408 - -
Other non-current assets HiIERESEE 13 66,115 13,086 - -
Deferred tax assets EiLfAEE 25 984 976 = -
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ RIEHESREE 14 10,185 - 9,886 -
707,198 647,371 729,942 668,231
Current assets MEEE
Inventories =& 16 223,371 338,797 - -
Trade and bills receivable EOYES TS 13 326,887 452,513 - -
Amount due from a subsidiary AL CRIENGILE N 10 - - 25,000 25,000
Amount due from an JE W B 2 R B R IR
associated company 11 3,643 2,132 - -
Prepayments, deposits and AR ZER
other receivables Hth e U iR 2 13 69,743 66,134 377 3
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMITA 15 496 - - -
Time deposit EHER 17 62,500 49,200 - -
Cash and bank balances Be KBTS 18 243,894 410,669 1,584 2,077
930,534 1,319,445 26,961 27,080
Assets of disposal group HEEF EENSE
classified as held-for-sale BREELE 19 60,609 - - -
991,143 1,319,445 26,961 27,080
Total assets BELE 1,698,341 1,966,816 756,903 695,311
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable A EEz I H AE(S
to the Company's equity holders & 2K Jz
Share capital [N 20 199,620 99,810 199,620 86,810
Other reserves H it 22 256,781 353,979 470,329 537,404
Retained earnings REEH
— Proposed final dividend — BRRERE 23,954 8,681 23,954 8,681
- Others —Hfty 443,798 423,882 50,290 53,390
924,153 886,352 744,193 686,285
Non-controlling interests IR 1,358 424 - -
Total equity RmEE 925,511 886,776 744,193 686,285
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BALANCE SHEETS
RERRSE

As at 31 March 2013 RZZE—=5=H=+—H

Group Company
REE VNG
2013 2012 2013 2012
“2-=f T ZB-Zf "T-_F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE THERT FTAET TAET TAT
(Restated)
(BE7)
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAEE 25 12,527 7,434 - -
Provision for long service RERBS%EH
payments 26 11,026 13,279 681 721
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 23,553 20713 681 721
Current liabilities TEAaE
Trade payables EC AT 23 226,657 369,393 - -
Accruals and other payables EAERNEM
FERIIR R 23 199,794 217,902 12,029 8,305
Receipts in advance SN 5,516 6,408 - -
Amount due to an A RE NGl N
associated company " 467 544 - -
Tax payable FEIHHIE 43,314 41,997 - -
Short-term bank borrowings EHRTEE 24 271,146 423,083 - -
746,894 1,059,327 12,029 8,305
Liabilities of disposal group HEERBENE
classified as held-for-sale BREHE 19 2,383 - = -
749,277 1,059,327 12,029 8,305
Total liabilities BEBE 772,830 1,080,040 12,710 9,026
Total equity and liabilities BExkaEeE 1,698,341 1,966,816 756,903 695,311
Net current assets MEEEFE 241,866 260,118 14,932 18,775
Total assets less current liabilites  E&EERTEHEE 949,064 907,489 744,874 687,006
Ho Cheuk Fai Lee Shu Ki
EIph Z
Director Director
EE EE
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mizx RSB B EHREz 2B ESD o

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FeREx
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIFE
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Note (Restated)
M5 (B&E5))
Revenue ON 27 2,291,404 2,290,165
Cost of sales SHER AR 28 (2,049,399) (2,101,468)
Gross profit ES 242,005 188,697
Distribution and selling expenses DHENEEER 28 (41,196) (36,716)
General and administrative expenses —RNITHE B 28 (148,441) (140,488)
Other income and gains H bW A B Wz 27 16,572 44,323
Increase in fair value of investment - VJE
properties NEEZ N 8 804 6,152
Operating profit  #&=&d 69,744 61,968
Finance income B UR A 4,237 3,825
Finance costs BA 75 Ak X (7.536) (7,664)
Finance costs, net  BIEECRFE 30 G299 (3,839)
Share of losses of associated companies FE{5Et A R] 2 E1E 1 (3,031) (4,081)
Impairment loss for investment KREBENRZ
in an associated company REEE 11 (4,864) -
Profit before taxation B AR A 58,550 54,048
Income tax expenses FTiSfi = 31 (16,613) (28,701)
Profit for the year FEEEF 41,937 25,347
Attributable to: (L -
Equity holders of the Company RARIERFFAA 41,967 25,058
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRRE (30) 289
41,937 25,347
Earnings per share of profit RATHERRFB A
attributable to the equity i3 faEstibeingl
holders of the Company
— Basic and diluted — EAREE 33 2.1 cents &1l 1.3 cents &l
Dividends 5% 8, 34 23,954 8,681

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERERRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BlZ =T —=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=fF —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHAT
Note (Restated)
P EE (BE%)
Profit for the year FERF 41,937 25,347
Other comprehensive income: Hin 2 EIUA -
Currency translation differences EHREESR 5,627 7,289
Fair value losses on AHEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets, NFEZEE -
net of tax R IE 22 (3) -
Other comprehensive income FEAMPEEA
for the year 5,624 7,289
Total comprehensive income FEZHIBALRE
for the year 47,561 32,636
Attributable to: JE1G -
Equity holders of the Company NABRERZE A 47,591 32,357
Non-controlling interests FEFEARE = (30) 279
Total comprehensive income FEZHIBALRE
for the year 47,561 32,636

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FeHREER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
KD EEREE AEN
Other Non-
Share reserves Retained  controlling Total
capital (Note 22) earnings interests equity
Rt FER
LT (FaF22) REEF ER EEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL FAETL THETL TEL FET
Balance at 1 April 2011 “E—FMA-Hz&H 86,810 351,032 422,295 40,513 900,650
Adoption of merger accounting (Note 2.1) SR & &5t RRIZE (FHiF2.1) 13,000 (2,250) (5377) - 5,373
As restated £ 57l 99,810 348,782 416,918 40,513 906,023
Comprehensive income 2HBA
Profit for the year, as restated FEEEN  EE5 - - 25,058 289 25,347
Other comprehensive income Htt2EWA
Currency translation differences EMnEER - 7,299 - (10) 7,289
Total comprehensive income  2EQARE T e nBes 219 32636
Transaction with owners HEEARS
Changes in ownership interests WEAREA AER
in a subsidiary without change 29 (TyE s
of control (Note 36) (HizE36) - (3,292) - (40,368) (43,660)
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE
- value of employee services - EERKZER - 1,326 - - 1,326
— transfer to retained earnings upon — BARIEEUE /K
cancellation/lapse of share options MEZRE G - (136) 136 - -
Dividend paid 2IREE - - (9,549) - (9,549)
Total transaction with owners HEE AR HiE%E - (2,102) (9,413) (40,368) (51,883)
Balance at 31 March 2012 —E-ZE-A=t-HuER 99,810 353,979 432,563 424 886,776

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FaRRERE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BlZ =T —=F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
KAREREE ALY
Other Non-
Share reserves Retained  controlling Total
capital (Note 22) earnings interests equity
Hitfdfe FER
N (FizE22) REHEA L 3 ERBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FHL TAL FEL TAT
Balance at 1 April 2012, “E-CHPNA-BEH
& restated 7777777777777777777777777 ji:[i@] 99,810 353,979 432,563 424 886,776
Comprehensive income 2HBA
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEF/(B1]) - - 41,967 (30) 41,937
Other comprehensive income Hir2ERA
Currency translation differences EERhEER - 5,627 - - 5,627
Fair value losses on available-for-sale At ESREAEATLE
finandial assets, net of tax ZEE - BT - (3) - - (3)
Total comprefensive income.  REMARE T se aseT B0 47561
Transaction with owners BEEARS
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB AR - - - 964 964
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE -
- value of employee services -EERBZEE - 191 - - 191
— transfer to retained earnings upon — BRI /A8
cancellation/lapse of share options EE - (3,203) 3,203 - -
Dividend paid 2IRRE - - (9,981) - (9,981)
Bonus issue BTN 99,810 (99,810) - - -
Total transaction with owners BEEARHER 99,810 (102,822) (6,778) 94 (8,826)
Balance at 31 March 2013 —E-=F=-fA=t+-Hz#&H% 199,620 256,781 467,752 1,358 925,511

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

M ARG S B REZ AR -

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HaEReRER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-—=F “E-F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BiE FTHERr FAT
(Restated)
(BE3)
Cash flows from operating activities KREEH ReRE
Profit before taxation BR A% A A 58,550 54,048
Share of losses of associated companies FE(RESZ N R 2 B 18 3,031 4,081
Depreciation of property, WE - BB RS
plant and equipment 2IE 54,704 45,470
Amortisation of land use rights T HhE A 2 B 747 755
Amortisation of license rights IR 7 B 600 -
Share-based compensation expense PARRIA 2 T3 2 % 191 1,326
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment 2z (399) (5,259)
Gain on disposal of land use rights HE b R RE 2 WS (2,583) (30,270)
Reversal of provision for impairment B 5 A M EUIRK
of trade and other receivables B 2 B (2,027) (284)
Trade, bills and other receivable written off 25 - 2R HM
FEUIR SR 2 s - 755
Reversal of provision for obsolete BRERBHTEEE
and slow moving inventories 2 [Bl (2,540) (1,650)
Impairment loss for available-for-sale EHESREE
financial assets ZREEE 6,025 -
Impairment loss for investment KREME A
in an associated company ZREEE 4,864 -
(Reversal of provision)/provision RHR%E (EE2
for long service payments E1%),/ (2,081) 4,166
Fair value gain on derivative fTHEemIARTE
financial instruments Pl G (496) -
Increase in fair value of investment properties % &% N EE 21N (804) (6,152)
Interest expenses FEXZH 7,536 7,664
Interest income FBUA (4,237) (3,825)
Operating profit before working LBEESEEA
capital changes A& A 121,081 70,825
Inventories 7 118,129 (19,441)
Trade and bills receivable B 5 R ERRUIRR 127,593 (87,693)
Prepayments, deposits and RS  Ze Kk
other receivables HAh e IR 3R (55,069) 9,042
Amount due from an associated company JE i B 2N RBR 30 (1,511) 1,647
Trade payables B ZENIRR (143,207) 74,398
Accruals and other payables et & A R E A e IR K (17,005) 2,985
Receipts in advance FBUIR SR (648) 4,415
Amount due to an associated company FETER = A AR R (77) 187
Cash generated from operations REEEZHRS 149,286 56,365
Interest paid ERFE (7.536) (7,664)
Profits tax paid BEAFIER (15,435) (6,453)
Profits tax refunded REFEH 1,266 202
Long service payments paid BN RERES (172) (407)
Net cash generated from RETHEE 2
operating activities FHE 127,409 42,043

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 20



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FaRaRER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BlZ =T —=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—EBE-=f —E—CF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b= TET FET
(Restated)
(BEH)
Cash flows from investing activities HE TR RS
Purchase of property, BEME  BERRE
plant and equipment (101,007) (23,863)
Additions to investment properties NEREWE (6,071) (88,436)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment AR e T b
and land use rights TSR 21,501 181,294
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B A R 35(b) (23,406) -
Interest received B U F S 4,237 3,825
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAMHHE SR
financial assets BE 14 (15,914) -
(Increase)/decrease in time deposit EEERZ (Em),/
L (13,300) 46,800
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE (FrR),/ BE
investing activities ZERE (133,960) 119,620
Cash flows from financing activities BERE AENE
New bank borrowings MIRTEE 114,700 420,485
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (191,605) (473,285)
(Decrease)/increase in trust receipts ERBURRITTER
bank loans CRiA) /810 (75,032) 110,999
Dividends paid RS, (9,981) (9,549)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (PR, BE
financing activities ZER e (161,918) 48,650
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRRSZEEY Y
cash equivalents % CR),/ (168,469) 210,313
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUZRER
of the year ReSED 410,669 197,567
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEE R E B 1,694 2,789
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FEZE 4 KIREEED 18 243,894 410,669
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these M aARGA M ERE 2 AR IS -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of computer
casings, office automation products, video cassette
housings, moulds, plastic and metal parts, provision of
electronic manufacturing services, provision of wedding-
related services including wedding gown, photography,
wedding planning, travel, hotel and catering services and
the operations of theme restaurants.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company have been listed on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in unit of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise
stated, and have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 July 2013.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets and derivative financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(@) Merger accounting for business combination under
common control

On 16 March 2012, Kar Yick Development Company
Limited (“KYD"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with The Wedding City Company Limited (“TWC"), a
company in which Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, holds 90% of the equity
interest, to acquire TWC’s 100% equity interest in The
One Travel Co., Limited and My Affection Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Angel Love Studio (HK) Company
Limited) (collectively “Acquired Entities”) and a shareholder
loan owed by My Affection Holdings Limited at a total
consideration of approximately HK$45,000,000 which
was satisfied by the issue of 130,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each of the Company. Upon completion of
the acquisition on 22 June 2012, the fair value of each
ordinary share was HK$0.375 of the Company and the
total consideration is approximately HK$48,750,000.

Upon completion of the acquisition on 22 June 2012,
the Acquired Entities became wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group. The acquisition of the Acquired Entities is
regarded as a business combination under common control
since KYD and the Acquired Entities were ultimately
controlled by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai both before and after the
completion of the acquisition. Accordingly, the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013 have been prepared using the principle
of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for the Common Control
Combination” issued by the HKICPA on the basis as if KYD
had been the holding company of the Acquired Entities
throughout the periods presented or since their respective
dates of incorporation, whichever is the shorter period.
The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2012,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows and their respective notes for the
year ended 31 March 2012 have been restated accordingly.
Details of the relevant statements of adjustments for the
common control combination on the Group’s consolidated
reserves as at 31 March 2012 and the Group’s results for
the year then ended are set out in Note 35(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(b) Restatements due to correction of prior year errors

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
recorded an overseas tax provision of approximately
HK$6,208,000 in relation to the disposal of certain land
and buildings outside Hong Kong. As certain tax non-
deductible expenses in connection with the cost of
property disposed had not been excluded in the calculation
of the tax provision for the year ended 31 March 2012,
the overseas tax expense and tax provision for the year
ended 31 March 2012 and as at 31 March 2012 had been
understated by approximately HK$12,206,000. The effects
on the consolidated financial statements are summarised
below:

(i) An increase in income tax expenses of
HK$12,206,000 for the year ended 31 March
2012 and a decrease in retained earnings of
HK$12,206,000 for the year ended 31 March 2012.

(i) An increase in tax payable of HK$12,206,000 as at
31 March 2012.

(i) A decrease in earnings per share of profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
(basic and diluted) of HK0.6 cents for the year
ended 31 March 2012.

The opening balance sheet is not presented since the
above restatement does not have any impact on it.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(@) Amendments to standards for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2012

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS 12
“Income taxes” to introduce an exception to the
principle for the measurement of deferred tax asset or
liability arising on an investment property measured at
fair value. HKAS 12 requires an entity to measure the
deferred tax relating to an asset depending on whether
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the
asset through use or sale. The amendment introduces
a rebuttable presumption that an investment property
measured at fair value is recovered entirely by sale. The
amendment is applicable retrospectively to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012 with early adoption
permitted. The Board considers the Group’s business
model is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time
rather than through sale. Accordingly, the presumption is
rebutted and related deferred tax is not remeasured upon
the adoption of this amendment.

There are no other amended standards or interpretations
that are effective for the first time for the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 April 2012 that would have
a material impact on the Group.

(d) The following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 April 2012 and have
not been early adopted:

° HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income’ (effective on or after
1 July 2012)

° HKAS 19 (Revised 2011), 'Employee Benefits’
(effective on or after 1 January 2013)

° HKAS 27 (Revised 2011), ‘Separate Financial
Statements’ (effective on or after 1 January 2013)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FeMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(d) The following new or revised standards,

amendments and interpretations to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 April 2012 and have
not been early adopted.: (Cont’d)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011), ‘Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures' (effective on or after 1 January
2013)

HKAS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’ (effective on or
after 1 January 2014)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘Government Loans’
(effective on or after 1 January 2014)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’ (effective
on or after 1 January 2013)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective on or
after 1 January 2015)

HKFRS 10, 'Consolidated Financial Statements’
(effective on or after 1 January 2013)

HKFRS 11, ‘Joint Arrangements’ (effective on or
after 1 January 2013)

HKFRS 12, 'Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities’
(effective on or after 1 January 2013)

HKFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurement’ (effective on
or after 1 January 2013)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20, ‘Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine’ (effective on or
after 1 January 2013)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21, ‘Levies’ (effective on or after 1
January 2014)
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2.1

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The following new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 April 2012 and have
not been early adopted (Cont’d)

Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First Time Adoption’, on
government loans (effective on or after 1 January
2013)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9, ‘Mandatory
Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures’
(effective on or after 1 January 2015)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12, 'Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance’ (effective on or after 1
January 2013)

Amendment to HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation’ on asset and liability offsetting
(effective on or after 1 January 2014)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011), ‘Investment Entities’ (effective on or after 1
January 2014)

HKFRSs (Amendment), Annual improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (effective on or after 1 January
2013)

The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards,
amendments to existing standards and interpretation
while the directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
10 will not have a significant impact on the results and
financial position of the Group. The Group will apply these
new standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretation when they are effective in the respective
annual periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(e) Comparative figures

Pursuant to the adoption of merger accounting for the
business combinations under common control and the
prior year adjustment as stated in Note 2.1(a) and 2.1(b),
the comparative figures have been restated.

2.2 Merger accounting for common control
combinations

For common control combinations, the assets, liabilities
and reserves of the combining entities are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect
of goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
first came under the common control, where this is a short
period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees etc., incurred in relation to the common control
combination are recognised as expenses in the year in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Consolidation
(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does not
have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it
does not have more than 50% of the voting power but
is able to govern the financial and operating policies by
virtue of de-facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of
the acquiree's net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the company on the basis of dividend and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(@) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company
transactions that are recognised in assets are also
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and initially recognised at cost. The Group'’s investment in
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net
of any accumulated impairment loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who makes strategic
decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in
the consolidated income statement within ‘finance income
or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement within
‘general and administrative expenses.’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(b) Transactions and balances (Cont’d)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available for
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified
as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(c) Group companies (Cont’d)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.6  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also includes transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant
and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6  Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values, if any, over their estimated useful lives. The
annual rates used for this purpose are:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings 2% t0 4%
Fixtures and leasehold improvements 8% 10 33.33%
Machinery 6% to 15%

Tools and equipment 15%
Furniture and computer equipment 15% to 33.33%

The assets’ residual values, if any, and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

2.7 Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plant and buildings are situated for periods varying
from 10 to over 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
land use rights.

2.9 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the companies in the Group or for sale in the ordinary
course of business, is classified as investment property.
Investment property also includes property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property. Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance leases.
Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating
lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs incurred for the purpose of acquiring,
constructing or producing a qualifying investment property
are capitalised as part of its cost. Borrowing costs are
capitalised while acquisition or construction is actively
underway and cease once the asset is substantially
complete, or suspended if the development of the asset is
suspended. After initial recognition, investment property
is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods, such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Valuations
are performed as at the balance sheet date by professional
valuers who hold recognised and relevant professional
qualifications and have recent experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued.
These valuations form the basis for the carrying amounts in
the financial statements. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or
for which the market has become less active continues to
be measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.9 Investment properties (Cont’d)

Investment property under construction for future use
as investment property will also be measured at fair
value with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the fair value can
be determined reliably. However, where the fair value is
not reliably determinable, the property is measured at cost
until the earlier of the date construction is completed and
the date at which fair value become reliably determinable.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on
a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected
in respect of the property. Some of those outflows are
recognised as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of leasehold land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the financial statements.

The fair value of investment property does not reflect
future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance
the property and does not reflect the related future
benefits from this future expenditure other than those a
rational market participant would take into account when
determining the value of the property.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Investment properties are derecognised
either when they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.10 Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units ("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) License rights

Separately acquired license rights are shown at historical
cost. License rights acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. License
rights have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of license
rights over their estimated useful lives over the term of the
relevant rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or
associated companies is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary or associated
company in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.12 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
held-for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as
held-for-sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. The non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups,
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries and associated companies) and investment
properties, even if held-for-sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere
in Note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.13 Financial assets
2.13.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables, amounts due
from an associated company, time deposit, and cash and
bank balances in the consolidated balance sheet.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.13.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as ‘gains and losses from investment
securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of finance income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of other gains
when the group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated income statement.

2.16 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so,
the nature of the item being hedged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.18 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheet.

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.22 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries and associated companies operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associated
companies, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.24 Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Pension obligations

Group companies operate several pension schemes. The
plans are generally funded through payments to trustee
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due and are not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

() Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfils certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date
on high quality corporate bonds which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.
The actuarial gains or losses are credited or charged to the
consolidated income statement in current period.

(d) Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’ compensations are
recorded as a liability and charged to the consolidated
income statement when the Group is contractually
obliged or when there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.25 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.26 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.27 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.28 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of returns and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.

(b)  Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.
(@) Management income

Revenue from the provision of management service is
recognised when the service is rendered.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.28 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(e) Sales of service

Revenue from the provision of wedding-related services
and catering services is recognised when the service is
rendered.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders and when
the interim dividends are approved by the Company’s
directors.

2.30 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to
the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.31 Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. The Company and the Group account for
the financial guarantee contracts under HKFRS 4 ‘'Insurance
Contracts' and do not recognise liabilities for financial
guarantees at inception, but performs a liability adequacy
test at the end of each reporting period by comparing
its net liability regarding the financial guarantee with the
amount that would be required if the financial guarantee
would result in a present legal or constructive obligation.
If the respective liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference
is recognised in the consolidated income statement
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates
and mitigates financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group's operating units. The Board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and cash management.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the
PRC and most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$, United States dollars
("US dollar”) and Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk arises
from commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity's
functional currency. As HK$ are pegged against US
dollar, management considers that the Group is mainly
exposed to foreign currency risk with respect to Renminbi.
Management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. The Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk as at 31
March 2013. The conversion rate of Renminbi to foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 201.

3 HEXERERKRER
3.1 HBRKREZE

AEBEXEBAZZBU KRR : mHER (8
mEONE R - AFEMERER MRS REN X
Rkg) EERBRMASHESRAR - NEEHZE
BREREEEFITNM BTG 2 TR
Y HREEREHYAEEYHRIR 2 BENH

=247
e

REREREmPAMBEE (REME) RRES
SHEZBERRT - ARBYM B EBEAEKE
REBUZETAE BEETE - FHE K
MiEAk EFAEBAREEIECEAR
Al MAETHERBRM{SEEE - s
EREk - MERR - FERR  ERTLESR
TEAMARERE -

@) WEER
(i)  SMNERER

AEETEEEBRTEEE  HABHzE
BEXRD BERBBIFERBT ETEAR
B HMNERBRKBZIFNAERNGEERRE
NZRAERS  CHEREEMABERREIN
LEIEFR - AN T ER T B
ERASASEIEEHARBIMNER - EIE
BemEREIMNERR - I & REUEEREIN
BEmERR -R_FT—=F=A=1+—H &
SEWARKEREM S BT A RINERFR - A
R G ONEE 2 584 R X2 I 10 BB KB RS T 2R
o 2 SNEE B 5k Ko AR A o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

At 31 March 2013, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the Renminbi with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$2,366,000 higher/lower (2012:
HK$7,462,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of the
net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Renminbi-denominated trade and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents and trade and other payables.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for certain bank deposits, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings
which are primarily issued at variable rates. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2013, with all other variables held constant,
if the interest rate had increased/decreased by 50
basis-point, the corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings will result in a net decrease/
increase in the Group's post-tax profit by approximately
HK$1,132,000 (2012: HK$1,766,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group’s credit
risk mainly arises from financial assets and deposits with
bank and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to the customers, including outstanding trade and other
receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only
independent parties with high credit rating are accepted.

Customers are assessed and rated based on the credit
quality of the customers, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. It performs
periodic credit evaluations/reviews of its customers. Other
receivables are assessed by reference to the historical
information about counterparty default rates. Individual
risk limits are set by management and the utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. No credit limit was
exceeded during the year, and management does not
expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these relevant parties.

There is a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and bills receivable as the Group’s sales are made primarily
to a few key customers. As at 31 March 2013, the trade
and bills receivable from five largest customers accounted
for approximately 78% (2012: 82%) of the total trade and
bills receivable.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments, if any, are only
carried out with financial institutions of high reputation.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available at all time.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

R e MR RME

3 HBXERER &)

3.1 MBEREZR (£)
© HEBEzER

FAZABALARERRERBELALR
BBREENZ FERERETDAAS - &
EEENREEHVDAEEINESE S RE
ZEEE -

ATIRIZBRBEEAEZEANZN A 268 T
Mz BBIHANDTAEEZEMARB - K
FHREBESRAANAURIATRE - AR
MAZEEITER T ZAEARZIEZ
MERREEIREEMEE

Less than Between 1 Between 2
On demand 1year and2years and5 years
BER DPR—F —EWMF —2RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET THET FET
Group rEE
At 31 March 2013 N_E—=F=F=+—H
Trade payables B 5 EMIRE - 226,657 - -
Accruals and other payables fEEtE A LA MR - 182,812 - -
Bank borrowings RITEE 271,146 - - _
At 31 March 2012 R-E——#=HF=+—H
Trade payables 2 F IR - 369,393 - -
Accruals and other payables e B A R H A FE (IR K - 195,202 - -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 423,083 - - -
Company bIN/NE|
At 31 March 2013 RZFB-—=F=A=1t—H
Accruals and other payables JEZTER N HMEMIRR - 12,029 - -
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=1+—H
Accruals and other payables JEZTER N HMEMIRR - 8,305 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and times deposits. Total capital is calculated
as equity, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group's strategy, which was unchanged from prior
year, was to maintain an acceptable net gearing ratio. The
net gearing ratios at 31 March 2013 and 2012 were as
follows:

3 BXERER#Z)

3.2 EXERER

AEBECERZABRARBAEEZFEL
SREEELEZRT  REGHEATRE
o RERBEAMANSEBE M - WS
REZENER -

REBIFABERGE  AEERGHEN
FTRRZHAE - BETERRZBEA - HITHK
HHEEEREER

HEENEMAR K AREMNBEAREL
RERHERN - W RRBFEERBRIARE
A8 - FREERRREEREZRENARSE
BYMERERFER - BEASER (WEEREE
BEXRMI) -

REFEZREETFAE  FRAKEFIES
ZRIBITEEL R 2R - RN E—=F k=
T - F=ZA=+—HZFRITEELERN
™

2013 2012

—E—=£F —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHAT

(Restated)

(BEF))

Total borrowings (Note 24) REEE (M324) 271,146 423,083
Less: Time deposit (Note 17) B EER TR (BRE17) (62,500) (49,200)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) & : 34 MRS ZEY (M1:18) (243,894) (410,669)
Net cash SEIRS (35,248) (36,786)
Total equity REmieE 925,511 886,776
Net gearing ratio FHRITEREE (4%) (4%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3  Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade and bills
receivable and trade payables are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2013:

R e MR RME

3 BXERER#Z)

3.3 AVEfE

B 5 R R R RN IR KRB 5 IR 2 IR
MR REERRBEELLATE  (EARE
BB REATE MHERARE RS
FEAAEERE FITR A B RS
FIEBERE 5 -

TEABGEEDFERFEAEZ SR
B o NABHRZEHMT :

AREESBEEIRTHZHE (KK
BY(FE1E) -

e KBRIFEMBRZMESN ZEEXA
EZRAEBRZ B A - A RER (A1F)
WEFR) EE (BREER) (F28) -

.

. EESEBEUIFEKENERMSEEZ
A (BIFERIERIRE@A) (FE3fE)

EA_ —=F=ZR=+—B  A£BENURQTFE
FAEERZEMEEWT ¢

2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Assets: BE
Level 1 F1E
Equity securities (listed) s EAE (Em) 4,262 -
Level 2 F2E
Derivative financial instruments TESMTA 496 -
Level 3 F3E
Account value of insurance contracts RpE RREE 5,624 -
Equity securities (unlisted) HEmEs GELm™) 299 -
10,681 -

Details of the above insurance contract is set out in Note
14.

A _EfRE & R ARSI FE14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.
o The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as

the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at the
reporting date, with the resulting value discounted
back to present value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis including dividend growth model, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level 1,
level 2 and level 3 fair value hierarchy classifications.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives. It will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation expense in future periods.

(b) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations required the use of
estimates (Note 9).

The goodwill being allocated to the restaurant business
resulted from the acquisition of Fullhouse Group on 31
December 2012 (Note 35(b)), which is included in the
consumer and services segment. No impairment was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2013.

R e MR RME

4 BERMEEEETRAE

AR A A B & R B AT G - SRR B AR
HMRAZETHE BEEAHEBATHEY
AREREMFZAETER -

AREBEHRRELGETMRER - /T2 E51E
AHIEESR  ROGEEFHRAERER - RX
BEeEYTEMBRFEZEEMAB ZIREE
EHEARAB 2 AR RRAHBAOT

(a) "M% BERREZEAFH

AEEEEBREDE  BENMRBETE G
AERFRAMARTEER - Lt RREE
EEBNERMEE M2 YE - BER&RE
LEREREHEE - ERHGEHZERAFH
RERZ EEEQENNEER - CEREX
&z Bl BRI R LB E S A ik
OB o B BR 2 47 G B R RE SR G AT 2 5 A A 1
FER - BRYPZRAeEHBERFREZTE
FHIRFEER -

(b) PEEZMHEERE

RIBEME2. 10T 2 5T R - AREZFA
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THERBEAEBEAEMET - LEAERTE
MR & (&) -

PERBHEEBZEE  RA-ZE——F+
— A=+—H%HFullhouseEE AT E 4 (Kfst
35(b))  EBRIERNHEHEEMREEZDEL - &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Estimated impairment of goodwill (Cont’d)

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for this CGU had been one percentage-point
lower than management's estimates at 31 March 2013
(that is, 59% instead of 60%), or the estimated cost of
capital used in determining the pre-tax discount rate for
the CGU had been one percentage-point higher than
management's estimates (that is, 16.93% instead of
15.93%), still no impairment against goodwill would need
to be recognised by the Group.

(c) Estimated impairment of license rights

The Group tests whether the license rights have
suffered any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amount of
the license rights has been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations required the use of
estimates (Note 9).

No impairment was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2013.

If the budgeted sales growth rate used in the value-in-use
calculation for the license rights had been one percentage-
point lower than management's estimates at 31 March
2013 (that is, 2% instead of 3% for Mainland China
and Hong Kong and 1% instead of 2% for Malaysia),
or the estimated cost of capital used in determining the
pre-tax discount rate for the license rights had been one
percentage-point higher than management's estimates
(that is, 17.09% instead of 16.09% for Mainland China,
15.88% instead of 14.88% for Hong Kong and 16.93%
instead of 15.93% for Malaysia), still no impairment
against goodwill would need to be recognised by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(d) Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed.

(e) Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

(f) Income tax and other regulatory provisions

The Group is subject to income tax and other regulatory
provisions in various jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining such provisions given the
complex business environment of the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination of
such provisions is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
and regulatory issues based on estimates of whether such
additional provisions will be due. Where the final outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax, deferred tax and other regulatory provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

() Employee benefits — share-based payments

The valuation of the fair value of the share options granted
requires judgement in determining the expected volatility
of the share price, the dividends expected on the shares,
the risk-free interest rate during the life of the options
and the number of share options that are expected to
vest. Where the outcome of the number of options
that are vested is different, such difference will impact
the consolidated income statement in the subsequent
remaining vesting period of the relevant share options.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s chief operating decision-maker reviews the
Group’s internal reports periodically in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into three
main operating segments. They are (i) metal and plastic
business; (ii) electronic manufacturing services business
and (iii) consumer and services business. Others mainly
comprise rental and management fee income.

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective. From a
products and services perspective, management assesses
the performance of metal and plastic business, electronic
manufacturing services business and consumer and
services business. And there is further evaluation on a
geographic basis (Japan, Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and Mainland China),
North America and Western Europe). Management
assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on operating profit. Segment information provided to
management for decision making is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR ERME
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZSWER (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2013 are HE_T—=F=-A=1T—"BLFEZHHXE
as follows: BT -
2013
“E-=F
Electronic Consumer
Metal and manufacturing and
plastic services services
business business business Others Total
LEER EfEX HEER
% RI¥H PR Hitt CES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER THER TR TET
Segment revenues AEBA
Total segment revenue DEA LT 1,090,702 1,287,365 7,343 - 2,385,410
Inter-segment revenue HEBREUA (94,006) = = = (94,006)
Revenue from external customers B SMFEF 2 WA 996,696 1,287,365 7,343 - 2,291,404
Gross profit EA 160,196 78,072 3,737 = 242,005
Distribution and selling NHEREEERR
expenses and general and —RRITRER
administrative expenses (104,191) (41,510) (43,936) - (189,637)
Other income and gains H A KU = = 296 16,276 16,572
Increase in fair value of BREMERNTFE LM
investment properties - - 804 - 804
Operating profit ey 56,005 36,562 (39,099) 16,276 69,744
Operating profit includes: REERIBE
Depreciation e 34,977 13,686 6,041 - 54,704
Amortisation of land use rights T35 A 2 5 280 467 - - 747
Amortisation of license rights IR - - 600 - 600
Reversal of provision PBRE AT SR
for obsolete and 2 B
slow-moving inventories 369 2,171 - - 2,540
Reversal of provision for B 5 R th YRR
impairment of trade and REERE 2 [E%
other receivables 1,980 47 - - 2,027
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2012 are

as follows:

5 oHER &)
HE T —F-A=-1+—BULFEZOIE
BT

2012 (Restated)

“T-—F(EE5)
Electronic Consumer
Metal and  manufacturing and
plastic services services
business business business Other Total
bkl EFEX HEBER
¥% RIXH R %% Hft GRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET FET FET
Segment revenues DA
Total segment revenue DERU A B R 1,108,802 1,296,871 4,775 - 2,410,448
Inter-segment revenue DESREURA (120,283) - - - (120,283)
Revenue from external customers  RESMIRP 2 A 988,519 1,296,871 4,775 - 2,290,165
Gross profit e 122,422 64,027 2,248 - 188,697
Distribution and selling NEREEERAK
expenses and general and —RRITHER
administrative expenses (111,678) (58,408) (7,118) - (177,204)
Other income and gains Ht A Rfeas - - - 44,323 44,323
Increase in fair value of WEME 7 NEEZ
investment properties - - 6,152 - 6,152
Operating profit eyl 10,744 5,619 1,282 44,323 61,968
Operating profit includes: LERN BT -
Depreciation nE 23,061 22,161 248 - 45,470
Amortisation of land use rights TiER %Z}%ﬁﬁ 378 377 - - 755
Reversal of provision/(provision) BRE R ST EE 1%
for obsolete and BB /(A
slow-moving inventories 2,282 (632) - - 1,650
Reversal of provision for B 5 LA EKIEN
impairment of trade and REZER 2 0%
other receivables 186 98 - - 284
A reconciliation of operating profit to profit before taxation R AR T A TS R AR AT
is provided as follows:
2013 2012
—g-=f -z~
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FTHET FET
(Restated)
(B&E5)
Operating profit P 69,744 61,968
Finance income Eﬁ“%)\ 4,237 3,825
Finance costs B TSR AR (7,536) (7,664)
Share of losses of associated companies eIt E R R B1E (3,031) (4,081)
Impairment loss for investment EBENT Y
in an associated company SEE1E (4,864) -
Profit before taxation BB A 58,550 54,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

The segment revenue by geographical information is
analysed as follows:

R e MR RME

5 oER &)
BEHEER D BRADTT :

2013 2012

—E—=5F —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&T FHET

(Restated)

(BEF])

Japan HAR 276,060 269,260

Hong Kong i 294,221 331,311

Mainland China EalEipN 175 697,921 638,199
Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and oMl (PEERR - BEK

Mainland China) 1PN ) 304,210 203,023

North America JEZEM 275,059 221,268

Western Europe PaER 443,933 627,104

Total revenue W A 4a=8 2,291,404 2,290,165

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the
final destination of shipment is located or services are
provided.

The Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key
customers. For the year ended 31 March 2013, the
revenue derived from five largest customers accounted
for approximately 81% (2012: 82%) of the Group's total
revenue.

WARIBR AN E B 8t SRS IR FE AT ERR
o e

AEBHETERHLBEMBBELAK - &
E-E-=F=A=+—Hit WAKBER
AEFMAERBAWALR1% (ZT——4F:
82%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR RME

6  LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 6 IHERAE-FXKE
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid REBR T EAEZERRKREANKCERE
operating lease payments and their net book values are FIE - REREFESTAT

analysed as follows:

2013 2012

—E—=fF —E——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Net book amount at beginning of the year & #IIRE H(E 45,277 62,697
Disposal k== (14,666) (16,665)
Assets held-for-sale (Note 19) FEHEEE (MtsE19) (5,446) -
Amortisation charged to cost of sales HIHET N SHE AR (747) (755)
Net book amount at end of the year FRIREFE 24,418 45,277
Cost D% 31,413 52,046
Accumulated amortisation 2R (6,995) (6,769)
Net book amount at end of the year FRIREFE 24,418 45,277
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Mainland China Bl AR — FHEH 1052 504F 24,418 44,409
Leases of over 50 years in Mainland China  F B AR — & H50F A - 868
24,418 45,277

The land use rights located in Mainland China are held TRzt ERAEDREARANTRER T+

under lease terms of 45 to 57 years expiring in April 2043 +E (At —_EWN="FWUAE_ZTEN_F+
to October 2062. Alb) 2 tiFEREMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MG HmEME
7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7 Y% BEESERE-F&EH
GROUP
Fixtures
and Furniture
leasehold and
Leasehold Construction-  Improve- Toolsand ~ computer
land  Buildings  in-progress ments  Machinery  equipment  equipment Total
KENER BRR
BELH BT  HBIR  MEEE BE IERRE @ ERRE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TEn TER THR TER TERL
At 31 March 2011 “B--EZf=+-H
Cost B 1,663 364,804 484 117,184 464,358 29,955 62,842 1,041,350
Accumulated depreciation ~ 2IENTE (681) (59,444) - (63293) (357,079 (21,058) (53,027)  (554,582)
Net hook amount FEFE 982 305,420 484 53,891 107,279 8,897 9,815 486,768
Yearended 31 March 2012 HZ2-5--f%
ZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ~ E3NRE F(E 982 305420 484 53,891 107,279 8,897 9,815 486,768
Adoption of merger Fafe e
accounting (Note 2.1) (E2.1) - - - 390 - 17 304 811
As restated REL]] 982 305420 484 54,281 107,279 9,014 10,119 487,579
Additions AE - 1778 - 5,644 12,986 1,293 2,162 23863
Transfer (out)in E(1)/\ - - (484) 484 - - - -
Disposals it - (97,175) - (7,861) (4,856) ) (5 (109,95)
Depreciation nE (28) (5,187) - (7528) (24,257) (3182) (5,288) (45,470)
Currency translation SHREER
differences - - - - 3 - (4) (1)
Closing net book amount ~ BIAEEFE 954 204,836 - 45,020 91,155 7116 6,935 356,016
At 31 March 2012 ZE-Zf¥=B=t-8
(Restated) (BE3)
Cost A 1,663 264,128 - 112113 466,736 31,440 63,864 939,944
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZIEHTE (709) (59,292) - (6709)  (375,581) (24,34) (56,929 (583,928)
Net hook amount EHSE 954 204,836 - 45,020 91,155 7116 6,935 356,016

=B AR AR 2 7] 2012/13 F 88




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7 YE- BERSEE-F&EE (&)
GROUP (contd)
Fixtures

and Furniture

|easehold and

Leasehold Construction- Improve- Toolsand ~ computer

[and Buildings  in-progress ments  Machinery  equipment  equipment Total
KENER A

Lilhey B  ERIR  NXEE BE IARER SRR aft
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR ThR TER T#n Tn Thn TRR T#R

Year ended 31 March 2013  BZ-2-=%

ZAZT-HLEE
Opening net book amount ~ BAIIRE S8 954 204,836 - 45,020 91,155 7116 6,935 356,016
Acquisition of subsiclaries  JiEEHEAT
(Note 35(0) (FiFEE35(0) - - - 641 - - 1333 1,974
Additions HE = 3,954 243 31,117 47,926 3,052 14,115 101,007
Transfer (out)fin Z(1)/\ - - - - (140) 9 47 -
Disposdls e - - - (634) (754) By (38)
Depreciation e (27) (5,242) - (12,065) (26,240) (3,502) (7,628) (54,704)
Currency translation SHREER
differences - - - - 639 8 15 662
Assets held-for-sale HEHEEE
(Note 19) (fitz19) - (51,668) - (3,435) - - - (55,103)
Closing net book amount HRERFE 927 151,880 243 60,147 112,706 6,013 14,083 345,999
At 31 March 2013 ZE-ZE=f=1-H
Cost A 1,663 211,868 243 137,985 487,308 32,167 76,271 947,505
Accumulated depreciation  2FE#TE (736) (59,988) - (17.838)  (374,602) (26,154) (62,188)  (601,506)
Net book amount HRREE 921 151,880 pIE] 60,147 112,706 6013 14083 345999
Depreciation expense of HK$47,799,000 (2012: #r & 47,799,000 T (= T — = F:
HK$44,299,000) and HK$6,905,000 (2012: HK$1,171,000) 44,299,000/ JT) 26,905,000 7 (ZF — =
has been charged to cost of sales and general and % :1,171,00087T) D RIET AEERA K —#
administrative expenses, respectively. RITHER -
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings at AEBEHE T REF 2 ERIEHIREFE
their net book values are analysed as follows: DT -
2013 2012
—E—=fF —EF——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, R&EEEHA 2 HE i MIEF
held on leases between 10 to 50 years 10250 iz e 2,712 2,817
Buildings in Mainland China, R B ARERBET 102505 5
held on leases between 10 to 50 years ZHE 150,095 200,889
Buildings in Mainland China, R B ARPERBETZB50F H
held on leases over 50 years ZHE - 2,084
152,807 205,790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

R e MR RME

8 REVX-XKH

2013 2012

—E-—=F —E-—fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Beginning of the year F7] 208,608 108,932
Additions during the year FRRE 6,071 88,436
Currency translation differences BEMmEER 3,392 5,088
Increase in fair value of investment properties & ¥ A& 2 N 804 6,152
End of the year FIK 218,875 208,608
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Mainland China ~ FREI A — FAEH 102504 218,875 208,608

The investment properties are under construction and
located in Mainland China under lease term of 40 years
expiring in August 2050.

The valuation of the Group's investment properties as at
31 March 2013 was conducted by RHL Appraisal Limited,
independent professional valuer, which has among its
staff members of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
investment property was valued on the basis that it would
be developed and completed in accordance with the
Group's latest development proposals. In arriving the fair
value, direct comparison approach by making reference
to the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market was adopted. And it had taken into
account the construction costs that would be incurred to
complete the development to reflect the quality of the
completed development.

ERBEAEzERZT 2 YERETIRERBA0
FEAEE-_ZRTFNAL) 2HERM#F
Ao

R-ZF—=F=ZA=+—H AEEZKREY
KA - ABE X EEOKAITRHERM
BERAABAE HESBREASANEMBES
B8 REVEMHERARBRNRREZRE
ZERBEE  Z2REBTSAUGIZHEER
PlzBEZEBEAAGHZAFE LBERER
HEBRTERIBESRERAN -

T PIEIER AR B R A 7] 2012/13 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

9 BFEE-IT5EH

License
rights Goodwill Total
KR Gk aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-—ZE—=%
=ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount BRI FE - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B AR (FisE35(b))

(Note 35(b)) 24,000 1,091 25,091
Amortisation 5y (600) - (600)
Closing net book amount BRI A 23,400 1,091 24,491
At 31 March 2013 —E—-=%=ZH=+—H
Cost [DEIN 24,000 1,091 25,091
Accumulated amortisation and SR RE

impairment (600) - (600)
Net book amount WREFE 23,400 1,091 24,491
Amortisation of HK$600,000 (2012: Nil) was included in 600,000/ C#ts (ZE——F : |) BN —

general and administrative expenses.
Impairment test for license rights

License rights represent the rights to use the ‘Fullhouse’
trademarks for the restaurant business in Mainland China
and South East Asia. The recoverable amount of the license
rights is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering
a ten-year period for the catering business in Mainland
China and South East Asia.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, no impairment

was recognised in respect of the license rights based on
the impairment assessment performed.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (Cont'd)
Impairment test for license rights (Cont’d)

Key assumptions used in the valuation of license rights are
as follows:

Sales growth rate

— Mainland China 3%
— Hong Kong 3%
— Malaysia 2%

Pre-tax discount rate

— Mainland China 16.09%
— Hong Kong 14.88%
— Malaysia 15.93%

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified
according to business segment and geographical location.
Goodwill of HK$1,091,000 arising on the acquisition of
Fullhouse Group during the year ended 31 March 2013
is allocated to the catering business (Note 35 (b)), which
is an identified CGU within the consumer and services
business segment.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period for the catering business. Cash flows
beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using the key assumptions stated below. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the business in which the cash-generating units
operate.

Budgeted gross margin 60%
Growth rate used to extrapolate
cashflows beyond the budget period 0%

Pre-tax discount rate 15.93%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for market
development.

No impairment was recognised in respect of the catering
business CGU during the year ended 31 March 2013.

R e MR RME

9 BFEE-4I5E @)
REBBEANR (&)

REEZMBEzTZRRAT

HEER X

— A K BE 3%
— &5 3%
— HRAR 2%
1 B AL IR =

— AR K RE 16.09%
— &% 14.88%
— BXRAmR 15.93%
EERERE

EERERHA RS HMOEEANEEIR
SEHET . EF1,091,0008 T2 EE 2
AR -_ZE—=F=ZA=+—HILFERKER
2mEEE M (Mi7E35(b) * DECREEE
% BREBBBELREEERSBRNZREE
HEEIT

BeEEBE T2 B BREEREET
B -ELTANBARARSRERD - REE
BEMEZEREFRLFRVBEL - BiBZ
hFEHZBRSRERBATHM 2 G B EEX
LS ZEREXTERARTELAETLE
ZEBZREFIGEEE -

TEHEEREF 60%
KAREERBEAER

BeRnszgrx 0%
AT ELIR & 15.93%

EEERBERANMYMGRRE CRMETE R
HIBRER -

BE_T—=F=A=1+—RHILFE REH
REREBRCEL BT RERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR RME

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - 10 RHBLARIZKRE -A2H
COMPANY
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THETT
Unlisted share investments, at cost IE TR D 2 AR 193,285 193,285
Less: provision for impairment of B B AR 2R E B E R
investment in subsidiaries (3.087) (3,087)
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note i) U A RIMRER (M) 529,858 478,033
720,056 668,231

Amount due from a subsidiary (Note ii) FEUHT B A RIR R (B sEii) 25,000 25,000

Note: ffaE -

(i) The non-current amounts due from subsidiaries represent (i J7§L|W1‘TJ§@EZ%E5@EWE%1J€$$?aiﬁfﬁ;ﬁﬁ
funding provided by the Company to the respective %ﬁ%ﬁ#%@ﬁﬁ*&ﬁ?'\%%*ﬁﬁ ’ EZ%?’S?’%HE
subsidiaries with a similar nature as equity, and are unsecured, ﬁ N T\E‘l:ﬂ/%)ij\ﬁﬁ RARE+=EAERE - R
interest-free and not repayable within the next twelve months BTLAREAL
and are denominated in HK$.

(ii) The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free (if) %”ﬁﬁﬂ%@ﬁ@fﬁﬁfﬁﬁ C DETR B E sk
and repayable on demand and is denominated in HK$. REE - RIABTTRER

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RIBE—=F=RA=+—RIEWBRARIZE

2013 are: o

Place of incorporation/

establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
i BRIt ER
1 EEERER TEXBREERY BEfT/BARE EERE
Karrie International (B.V.I.) British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding, Ordinary share of US$100 (i) 100%
Limited liability company the British Virgin Islands L@ 100E7T()

RERABBARAEMLT REBR RERLEE

Castfast Industrial Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Inactive, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Limited company TREXx BE LER1005BTT
EREBREERAR BREREALR Non-voting deferred share of -

HK$990,200 (ii)
ERFEELR990,2007 (i)

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -

COMPANY (Cont'd)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of

10 RBREZRE - XRQF (&)

Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
i/ BRIt ER
£ ETERER FTEXBREEDE BT/ CHRK BRRE
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Property holding and investment Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Limited company holding, Mainland China ERR100ETT
BEHERZBRSHERAR BAEEREALH FEMERRARR - PEAE Non-voting deferred share of -
HK$10,000 (ii)
BIEZREENR 10,0005 7T()
Castfast Magnetics Moulding ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Inactive, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Limited company TmEx BE EER10ET
FREMETRBAERL BREREAAR Non-voting deferred share of -
HK$30,000 (ii)
BRZBEILR30,0007% (i)
Full Benefit Global Holdings British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding, Ordinary share of US$1 (i) 100%
Limited liability company the British Virgin Islands LBIRIET()
HFRRERERAR RERZHSAREAAR REABKR EBRLES
Full House Lifestyle Concept Malaysia, limited liability Operation of restaurant, Malaysia Ordinary share of RM10 70%
Sdn. Bhd. company SEEE - BRAD ERRI05 KA
EREZEREALR]
Full House Management Malaysia, limited liability Operation of restaurant, Malaysia Ordinary share of RM570,000 70%
Sdn. Bhd. company K2ZE  BRAED LiRAR570,0005 KA
SREDEREARLR
Gold Praiseworthy Wedding Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Sub-leasing of multi-functional Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Convention Limited company convention and exhibition centre, R 1B
CHEBEERERAT ERERELLA Mainland China
HEEREERETL - PEAE
Grandway Investment (Group)  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding, Mainland China  Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited company REER - REIARE ERERIEL
RERE (58) ARAHF BBEREMERR
Hong Kong Hung Hing Metal ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Inactive, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Manufacturing Company company TEER B EER100BT
Limited ERERAEAAR Non-voting deferred share of -

BRERSBERARL

HK$250,000 (ii)
ERRBREITMR250,0007 7 (i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -

10 RBREZRE - XRQF (&)

COMPANY (Cont'd)
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
T ISR
£ EEERER TEXBREERY B&fT/E8RE EREHE
Jiang Su Castfast Electronic Mainland China, limited Property holding, Mainland China Paid-up capital US$31,100,000 (ji) 100%
Technologies Company liability company HEME - REARE B&E 31,100,000 7T (i)
Limited HEEREREAT
IHEBSFRRBRAR
Kar Sharp Development Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding, Mainland China  Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
EHRERBRAF company AR - REARE EERIET
BEEREELA
Kar Yee Creation Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of miniature handicraft, Hong ~ Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited company Kong TERIET
RHERARLR BEERRMELRT MATERES  BR
Karrie Industrial Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Sale of video cassette housings, sale of  Ordinary share of HK$1,000 100%
Limited company computer casings, office automation  E#&R1,000/87T
ENERERAR ERERAEAAR products, plastic and metal parts, ~ Non-voting deferred share of -
metal stamping dies and plastic HK$5,000,000 (ii)
injection moulds, Hong Kong EARZERITARS,000,0007 i)
HESTHINR  HEERINE -
RENGER ZBREED -
CEABRARIERA  BE
Karrie Logistic Company Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding, Mainland China  Ordinary share of HK$2 100%
EHRERAR company REER - REIAE EERET
EEEREELA
Karrie Technologies Company ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacturing and sales of plastic Ordinary share of 100%
Limited company parts, sales of metal stamping HK$30,000,000
EFRIBEAERLE EEBRAETAT dies and plastic injection 1% 1730,000,00078 T
moulds, provision of electronic
manufacturing services and
investment holdings, Hong Kong
RERFELRET  HELBHE
BERTEEER  RESTEER
IRERREER &S
Karpo Technologies Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding, Mainland China ~ Ordinary share of HK$1,000 100%

REMRARAR

company
EEERELLA

REER > PEAE

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13
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R e MR RME

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — 10 RHBRARZKRE - A28 (@)
COMPANY (Cont'd)
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of
Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
i RIER
£ EEERER TEXBREERY BT/ BARE BERE
Karwin Engineering Company ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Design, manufacture and sale of Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
Limited company computer casings, office automation  EBAR10/87T
RERMIRERRA BREREAAR products; sale of plastic and metal  Non-voting deferred share of -
parts, metal stamping dies, plastic HK$100 (ii)
injection moulds, Hong Kong BRZEETR 1007 i)
Wit HERHEERINE  BOE
XEER  HEZBREBH
REESBHERALTERE
BB
Karwin Technologies United States of America, Provision of consultancy services to Ordinary share of US$100 100%
Incorporation limited liability company group companies, the United EER100%ET
FEERELLA States of America
RUBHRETAEERR - £H
Kings Dragon Investment (HK) ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$2 100%
Limited company REER B TER2ET
DeRE (B8) ARAT BEARRMERT
Kings Horse Investment Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Property holding, Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$10 100%
DEREBRATA company RENE B ERRI0BT
BREREALR Non-voting deferred share of -
HK$10,000 (ii)
BIEZREENR 10,0005 7T()
Kwong Hing Computer Metallic  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Property holding, Mainland China Ordinary share of HK$100 100%
Components Limited company BENE  PEARE EER1005BT
ERERSBEMBRAR  BAEREALH Non-voting deferred share of -
HK$1,250,010 (i)
BRFREEIER1,250,010% ()
Karrie Advanced Technologies  Hong Kong, limited liability — Provision of electronic manufacturing  Ordinary share of 100%
(Hong Kong) Company company services, Hong Kong HK$110,000,000
Limited BRERALAT REETEXRAIRE - B4 LiA%110,000,0007 7T
RHTENE (BE) BRAT
My Affection Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Provision of wedding related services, ~ Ordinary share of HK$200 100%
ENREIERAR company Hong Kong ERAR2005 7T
BEERRMERA RERERERY B4

T PIEIER AR B R A 7] 2012/13 F#
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fn & MR

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -

COMPANY (Cont'd)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of

10 RHBRARZKRE - A28 (@)

Name types of legal entity place of operation issued/paid-up capital Interest held
T B R
£ EEERER TERBREELH BR{T/BRRA BERA
The One Travel Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Sales of travel tour packages, Ordinary share of 100%
—TUiRERR AR company Hong Kong HK$750,000
BABREEAR HEREER - &8 EiBAk750,000% T
Trendtastik Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, limited liability Operation of restaurant, Malaysia Ordinary share of RM206,000 70%
company REEE  SRA: E381%206,0005 R F 25
SRATEREEAR
REEHEREEEhE Mainland China, limited Manufacture of computer casings,  Paid-up capital 100%
ARAT] liability company office automation products, HK$55,927,415 (iv)
FEAEERETAT plastic and metal parts; B A& R55,927, 4157 7T (iv)
provision of electronic
manufacturing services,
Mainland China
SUEBRONR  MREXEER
BRREBHMN  REET
BERIRE  PEIAE
REEMRELERLE Mainland China, limited Manufacture of video cassette Paid-up capital 100%
ARAA liability company housings, computer casings, HK$36,276,414 (v)
HEAEERETAT office automation products, B EETR36,276,4145E (V)
moulds and plastic and
metal parts; provision
of electronic manufacturing service,
Mainland China
BUEREHINR - BIRINR -
PAENEER BAR
ZERREBHMY  RUET
BER IR - PEARE
REXREETEEARAA Mainland China, limited Property holding, Mainland China  Paid-up capital HK$24,000,000 100%
liability company REME  PEAE (vi)
HEEREELH B #& 724,000,000 7T(vi)
FEEANEHEAENEER  Mainland China, limited Property development and Paid-up capital US$15,000,000 100%
NS liability company management, Mainland China (vil)

PEEREERA

NEBRLER - PEAME

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13
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Note:

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (Cont'd)

The shares of Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited and Full
Benefit Global Holdings Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding
up unless a sum of HK$200,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

Jiang Su Castfast Electronic Technologies Company Limited
is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 50 years up to January
2058.

REREREZBRASARAT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 15 years up to 19 May 2026.

REEMRLEBASERAR is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 15 years up to 24 May 2026.

RERETBTTFTEXEMR AT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 25 years up to 18 February 2030.

HEZFMEEAEREARARF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 40 years up to 2 December 2049.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2013.

All subsidiaries established in Mainland China and Malaysia
have a financial accounting year end of 31 December in
accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is
not coterminous with that of the Company. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group were prepared based on
the management accounts of these subsidiaries for the twelve
months ended 31 March 2013 prepared in accordance with
HKFRS.

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

R e MR RME

RBAR2RE — AQF (&)

Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited & &5 FIRER
TRERABZRG AR REEFE - HAuukt
BRE 2D TR AREERSE -

BN EEECROWIERASEEMESR - 51L&
hEEERE TEESZRE - BRIEEH
NAEBERHRHEEBERIREZABHBE
200,000,000,000/8 7T : BRIZERMDEEDZ
ERIDIR °

TEFRBEEFREER AR T — R BIRRENK L
2EHBINELE  HEEHRATTH K-
TRNFE—RER -

R BE2BAsER AR —RP B AR
RYZ2EHREINELE  BEEEHRATARST -
R-BE-R"ERATHBEER -

RERERLZEBRISER AR T —0h BIAkR
2 EEBINEDRE  HEXHR A THE
RZZBZRFRAAZTEARER -

REZEETEXERQAI—RPBEARERL
RERAIEDLE  HEXHRA—_+HF R
—E=FTFE_AtNBEMW

HESMNEBAERBEARAR T —RBBEARE
R ZERAIERE  HEXMBA/MN+F
RZZMAF+=RA=HERM °

RBE-T-=F=B=+—BLFENEHE
ARABEMDRITZ BEAR -

RBALERRE - PIARTBIAME R ERASE
RELzMBRBZMBFEEERT —_A=1—
B BARAW A AREZHEEMERE
RBZUEWNBARBE_E—=F=A=1+—H
I+ — AR 2 EERRIRZBEBY B RE LD
S °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR RME

11  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED 11 REBEEQATFz2RE — 5B

COMPANIES - GROUP

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Share of net assets DEEEFE
Beginning of the year =) 23,408 27,921
Acquisition of associated companies UgB& R & AN A (BF3E35(b))

(Note 35 (b)) 618 -
Share of losses of associated companies JE(RES N R 2 B8 (3,031) (4,081)
Provision for impairment REEE (4,864) -
Currency translation differences EsmE =R - (432)
End of the year FE 16,131 23,408

Balance due from an associated company &R &) /R
Amount due from an associated JE LA & R R 3K

company 3,643 2,132

Trade receivables B 5 e R 383 10,853

4,026 12,985

Amount due to an associated company JFETESE & A RIBR R 467 544

The outstanding balances due from/to the associated AL N ﬁfﬁfﬁi@ﬁqﬁz/ﬁﬁzrﬂﬁﬁ/\%ﬂ

companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on T’ AEHE  WEERKEERERE - KRBT
demand, and are denominated in HK$. REAL o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MG HmEME
11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED 11 REBERAzRE - F5£E (&)
COMPANIES - GROUP (Contd)
The Group’s share of the results of its associated AEBREBERRZERE (2BIHFLTA
companies, all of which are unlisted, and its aggregated A) - 2HEERBEBEET :
assets and liabilities, are as follows:
Attributable to the Group
KEEES
Place of % Interest
Particulars of issued  incorporation/ (Loss)/ held
Name shares held establishment Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit indirectly
(B8)/ BESE
£ FEERTRAE 0 ARk 3 g 9N Al i

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRT TRT TR TR

2013
—T=F
TIS Karrie Technologies Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited

(H.K.) Company Limited (i) HK$62,000,000 liability company
RRME (BE) BRARN)  E@k62,0000008T HABREMEAR ~ 133843  (118,643) 197,515 (2,792 49%
Xiongguan Precision Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited

Metal Product HK$1,000,000 liability company

Company Limited (i) LEA%1,000,0008T EEBRETLHE
EERELeHmERAR) 791 (230) 914 10 40%
Full House Pastry Sdn. Ordinary share of RM20  Malaysia, limited

Bhd. (i) B0 Kot liability company

R
BREEATF 184 (32) 27 (10) 35%

Layar Sinarmas Sdn. Ordinary share of RM100 Malaysia, limited

Bhd. (i) EREIR100S KA liability company

G Vil
BREFEAA 905 (687) 182 (239) 42%
135723  (119,592) 198,638 (3,031)

2012
“EB——F
TIS Karrie Technologies Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited

(H.K.) Company Limited (i) HK$62,000,000 liability company
RRRR (BB) BRAR) EEAKR62,0000008T HABREMERRT 117268 (94411) 151,179 (4,115) 49%
Xiongguan Precision Ordinary share of Hong Kong, limited

Metal Product HK$1,000,000 liability company

Company Limited (i) LEAY1,000,0008C ABEREMLLA
EEBEEh2mBRAR 795 (244) 835 34 40%

118,063 (94,655) 152,014 (4,081)

Note: PEE
(i) All these companies are indirectly held by the Company. (i) ZLENRTIARRRIBERE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FaMBERERME
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 12 REN>EZEWMIA
CATEGORY
Group
%48
Financial assets at
fair value through Available-for-sale
Loans and receivables profit & loss financial assets Total
NATEGEARES
B RIENIR TABRZEREE HHESHEE At
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“B--fF "T--fF “8-ZF -“3--F -“B-cf “T--fF “B-=F “T--F
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEr  TEn TEr  TEn  TEr  TEn  TER
(Restated) (Restated)
(BZ31) (B&3)
Assets EE
Trade, bills and other receivable 25 ZELEMERES

(Note 13) (Rzk13) 395396 518,885 - - - - 395396 518885
Deposits (Note 13) &g (Mi13) 46017 6230 - - - - 07 6230
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 14) AHEESHEE (Fi1) - - - - 10,185 - 10,185 -
Derivative financial instruments fEERIA - - 496 - - - 496 -
Amount due from an associated company AR LA ()

(Note 11) 3,643 2,132 - - - - 3,643 2,132
Time deposit (Note 17) e (W3E7) 62500 49,200 - - - - 62500 49,200
Cash and bank balances (Note 18) Re kiR (Hie) 23894 410,669 - - - - 3894 410,669

751,450 987,116 496 - 10,185 - 162131 987116
Financial liabilities
U 3=Ri
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(B&E5)
Liabilities afE
Trade and other payables (Note 23) B 5 REM BRI (FE23) 426,451 587,295
Bank borrowings (Note 24) RITEE (H524) 271,146 423,083
Amount due to an associated company FEATEE 2R BIRER (BEE11)
(Note 11) 467 544
698,064 1,010,922
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR ERME
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 12 REFZ>BEzZE€WMIA @)
CATEGORY (Cont'd)
Company
b
Available-for-sale
Loans and receivables financial assets Total
ERR Bk ItLELRER aft
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“%-=f “T--fF Z8-Zf -“T--F ZB-Zf “T -
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FAL TR ThL TR TAL
Assets EE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 10) FURB AR (310) 554,858 503,033 - - 554,858 503,033
Deposits and other receivables (Note 13) e REmRKIRR (H:13) 18 3 - - 18 3
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 14) EHESRERE (MiE14) = - 9,886 - 9,886 -
Cash and bank balances (Note 18) BeRFITHR (M18) 1,584 2,077 - - 1,584 2,077
556,460 505,113 9,886 - 566,346 505,113
Financial liabilities
MBaE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Liabilities BE
Trade and other payables (Note 23) B 5 REMERRR (B5E23) 12,029 8,305
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR RME

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, 13 BEFREBEWRIIER AR
=
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND RE R H b FEWIR X
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE b N/NE|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=fF —E—_F —B-—=f —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FTERT FET
(Restated)
(BE)
Trade and bills receivable BN EERNIER 329,250 456,903 - -
Other receivables HithFEUTIR R 68,509 66,772
397,759 523,675 1 3
Less: Provision for impairment & : 85  ZE K
of trade, bills and other H A fEUIR R
receivable REER (2.363) (4,790) - -
395,396 518,885 1 3
Prepayments HBRR 21,332 6,618 359 -
Deposits b 46,017 6,230 17 -
462,745 531,733 377 3
Less: Other non-current assets 3 : HfIERENEE
(Note) (1) (66,115) (13,086) - -
396,630 518,647 377 3
Representing: R
Trade and bills receivable, O IESE T
net of provision MR - G EE 326,887 452,513 = -
Prepayments, deposits BT 'RERk
and other receivables, HADFEUIR IR -
net of provision k2% 69,743 66,134 377 3
396,630 518,647 377 3
Note: Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for purchase Miek - HMIFERBDEERKEEDE  BELRHZE
of property, plant and equipment amounting to approximately T4 2 £ 54 538,315,000 0 BN =
HK$38,315,000, non-current portion of government grant T-TERPRETIHERHKE T ERTEHHE
receivable from Jiangsu Yixing Economic Development Zone BERERREERER AR BN E S
Investment and Development Company Limited amounting to Z 3EREN B0 #9510,875,0000% 7T K A B R A
approximately HK$10,875,000 in relation to the acquisition BRZEM s IRAEENASZ  BIXERER
of a piece of land in Yixing, Jiangsu, PRC in 2010, and the FRAMERGZTENF A A16,925,000/8 7T ©

prepayments in connection with the change of usage of
the factory buildings in Fenggang, Dongguan, PRC from
industrial use to commercial use amounted to approximately
HK$16,925,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from
30 to 90 days. Aging analysis of trade, bills and other
receivable is as follows:

R e MR RME

s

“I=

BEZREBERWRNR B
B REEWIRR ()

13

AEB—RETEP ZHHH30AE0A - &
7~ RIEREAMRYRIRFZ RS HTAT

2013 2012

—E—=%F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx TET

(Restated)

(B&E5I)

0 to 90 days 0£90H 394,653 512,696
91 to 180 days 912180H 695 7,787
181 to 360 days 1812360H 1,390 2,631
Over 360 days 360H A E 1,021 561
397,759 523,675

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable, B hEEEWNIEDS BNR - e KEME

prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate
their fair values.

Wk 3R bR B B E A B AR -

The carrying amounts of trade, bills and other receivable B EZEBRENEMEIETTEIATYEE A
are denominated in the following currencies: BT -
Group Company
rEHE 2N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=£ —E——4F —E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FTHET TET
(Restated)
(BE=E5)
Trade, bills and other B9 ZBR&EAM
receivable JEHR IR R
- HK$ — BT 2,827 1,735 1 3
— US dollar — X7t 307,560 450,074 - -
- Singapore dollar — FTANE T 1 1 - -
— Renminbi — AR¥ 85,899 71,817 - -
— Euro — &2 = 48 - _
— Malaysia Ringgit — BRARE 1,472 - - -
397,759 523,675 1 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR RME

13 ESREBRUIRR  FARK
B REEWIRR ()

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade, bills 25 EBEREMERIEFREEE E8HM0
and other receivable is as follows: N

2013 2012

—E—-=f —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Beginning of the year F1) 4,790 7,374

B2 2 [ 5
(BRER—BETRER)

Reversal of provision for impairment
(included in general and

administrative expenses) (2,027) (284)
Bad debt written off RIZIR 2 55 (400) (2,300)
End of the year FE 2,363 4,790

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expense in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash. The directors are of the opinion
that adequate provision for uncollectible trade and other
receivables has been made in the consolidation financial
statements.

Trade and bills receivable that is less than three months
past due is not considered as impaired except for
customers which is in unexpected difficult economic
situations.

Karrie International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

As of 31 March 2013, trade and bills receivable of
HK$49,304,000 (2012: HK$62,305,000) was past due but
not impaired. These relates to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the management believe that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The aging of this trade and bills receivable is
as follows:

R e MR RME

13 ESREBRUIRR  FARK
B REEWIRR ()

RZE—=H=A=+—H BFLEZEE
& U 1R FX 449,304,000 T (Z & — — F -
62,305,000/ 70) & E @AW EFE - thF
HBEBHRZEERCHRRIZBILIRSE - B
EBRENTLR  HBEZREESERER
% BN EEERIEEREE RZFBENG
AU2HKE - BHREEEKIRK ZIRER D
IR UNNE

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FHET

1 to 90 days 1290H 47,933 54,188
91 to 180 days 91%180H 391 6,143
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 867 1,667
Over 360 days 360H A E 113 307
49,304 62,305

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of trade and bills receivable, deposits
and other receivables stated above. The Group did not
hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of the Group’s and the Company’s trade
and bills receivable, deposits and other receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by
reference to the historical information about counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties do not have
significant defaults in the past.

RBER FERRZESAZER/RLEES R
REEBOER e LEMREIRR 2R
B AEESARATAERER 2 EHm -

REBBEEPHEREHAEBENARAEG R
SRERIRS  REREBERERRZEEES
=LA AR ZEPEBEREEAZHE
RACEk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBEERME
14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 14 THEESHEE
ASSETS
Group Company
REE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F —EB-—=F —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FERT FET
Beginning of the year F9) = - - -
Additions during the year FREN 15,914 - 15,914 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AT
(Note 35 (b)) (BH5E35(b)) 299 - - -
Net loss transferred FEEE AR
to equity (3) - (3) -
Impairment loss (Note 28) REEE (FiF28) (6,025) - (6,025) -
End of the year FE 10,185 - 9,886 -
Equity securities — Hong Kong, F&iEZEA—&E -
denominated in HK$ BT AEN
— Listed securities - FT#ES 4,262 - 4,262 -
Equity securities — Malaysia, — P&iEEAH—
denominated in RM SRFTE - A
— Unlisted securities BSRFAEE BN
- LTHES 299 - = -
Key management insurance TERERE
(unlisted investments): (FELTIRE) -
Fair value of insurance RREH2
contract, denominated ANFE - ET
in US dollar BB 5,624 - 5,624 -
10,185 - 9,886 -
Market value of listed securities Fi#&% 2 TS EE 4,262 - 4,262 -

As at 31 March 2013, the insurance contract represented
a life insurance plan with investment elements relating to
a key management personnel of the Group. The total sum
insured is US$1,400,000 (approximately HK$10,850,000)
with an annual minimum guaranteed return of 3.5% for
the first 10 years and 2% for the years afterwards.

As at 31 March 2013, if the Group terminated the
insurance contract, the account value, net of a surrender
charge of US$612,000 (approximately HK$4,743,000),
would be refunded to the Group. The amount of surrender
charge decreases over time and is no longer required from
the 19th year of contract conclusion onwards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FaMBHRERME
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 15 {TEEmTI A - FKE
INSTRUMENTS - GROUP
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aE BE afE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FAT
As at 31 March A= A=+—H
Forward foreign exchange  iEEASMNES 4
contracts (Note (a)) (FfF3E(a)) 496 = - -
Changes in fair values of derivative financial instruments PTESMTAEZ A $1§25§%@J;aﬁﬁé\%ﬁ—\éi\T§\§

are recorded in “other income and gains” in the

consolidated income statement (Note 27).

= [EA YA Rz | (BRE27) ©

(@) Forward foreign exchange contracts (a) ZEHIIEEHD
The total notional principal amounts of the outstanding R-_EFE—=FE=H _Jr B IRE 2R
forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 March 2013 INEBHZ BENSHEZEENT -
are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=%F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TATT
Sell USD for RVB HEXTERARE 3,875 -
16  INVENTORIES - GROUP 16 =FE& - FX5H
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAET
Raw materials BEAE 106,182 158,606
Work-in-progress R 37,370 45,447
Finished goods Bk 79,819 134,744
223,371 338,797

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$1,718,041,000 (2012: HK$1,766,372,000).

During the year, the Group has reversal of provision for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories for an amount of
approximately HK$2,540,000 (2012: HK$1,650,000).

As at 31 March 2013, certain inventories were held under
trust receipts bank loan arrangement.

ﬁi\&ﬁﬁ&w%%ﬁﬁjwm&é’ﬁmzﬁzé
4 51,718,041,00008 L (Z & — = 4
1,766,372,0007T) ©
AEERAFERERBEFEEGZOELRE
#) /52,540,000 7T (ZF — =4 : 1,650,000/
JT) °

W-E—=#=A=+-A"
WIRRITERE IS -

H A

HTHEEAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

17 TIME DEPOSIT - GROUP

Time deposit represents a deposit with a bank in Mainland
China with initial term of maturity of one year. The
weighted average effective interest rate as at 31 March
2013 was 3.5% (2012: 3.5%). The balance is denominated
in Renminbi.

The conversion of this Renminbi denominated deposit
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China Government.

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

17 TEHEFR - XE£EH
THEZRREGZIRAREAEZRT &
MEHAA—F R-_E—=—F=-A=+—
BMmEEERFEA35% (T ——F
3.5%) c REEUARKELE o

R ANREEHRRIINEEEE HIRINEETH
B0 K BE U AR 2 SN AR KR A5 o R AR

18 BERBTHERF

Group Company
REE RAT]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F —E-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FEx FHET
(Restated)
(BEH)
Cash at bank and on hand BIFRANES 209,798 253,692 1,584 2,077
Short-term bank deposits WHIRITER 34,096 156,977 = -
243,894 410,669 1,584 2,077
Maximum exposure to credit risk ZERER 7 e AE 242,789 409,796 1,584 2,077
Cash and bank balances were denominated in the ReRBITHEGFUTINEE BEM -
following currencies:
Group Company
REE biN/N|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F —E-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHET THET FHET
(Restated)
(BEH)
HK$ BT 32,684 37,604 1,584 2,077
US dollar ET 168,480 119,041 - -
Renminbi NS 39,862 250,877 - -
Singapore dollar ot 1,981 2,451 - -
Others Hib 887 696 - -
243,894 410,669 1,584 2,077

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits,
with maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months, was 0.63%
(2012: 0.50%) per annum during the year ended
31 March 2013. Cash at bank earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 DISPOSAL GROUP

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with a third party to dispose of its 100% equity interest
in Grandway Investment (Group) Limited (”Grandway")
and its subsidiary (Collectively the “Disposal Group”)
and a shareholder’s loan at a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$83,936,000. Grandway is engaged in
investment holding and its subsidiary is principally engaged
in development and production of electrical components.
The completion date of the transaction is expected to be
in December 2013.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal
Group are as follows:

19 HEEE

R e MR RME

AREBEEE = FF D EE ﬁ%%ﬁ?x
BE(&RE) ARAR(T#E]) REAWBLR

(RAEITTNEEE])

2 A ME R MR B A

B4 B4 A83,936,000/8 T ° 72 = %ﬁé%&
R MEKBARANREREREES T
- BEAXFEIR-_ZT—=F+_A%K -

ERLERBZEERAEIZORAMT

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
THET
Assets classified as held-for-sale: BESHEAFENEEE
Land use rights T A 5,446
Property, plant and equipment M - WERFE 55,103
Trade receivables B Z R 60
Total assets of the Disposal Group HEEBEELE 60,609
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified BEEEEHEEENEA
as held-for-sale: FEHEEE -
Accruals and other payables FETE A K E At FE - IR X 2,383
Total liabilities of the Disposal Group HESECAERE 2,383
Net assets of the Disposal Group HEEEFEE 58,226
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FeMBHRERME
20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 KA
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
Shares value Shares Value
RoEAE H{E BEdny 42| H{E
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T T ¥ FiB
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE5) (B&EH)
Authorised: JEERRAN
Ordinary shares of TmkER
HK$0.1 each HE{E 10781 4,000,000 400,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETR
BB
Ordinary shares of LB ER
HK$0.1 each EE 107811
Beginning of the year == 998,098 99,810 998,098 99,810
Bonus issue BEPRATRY 998,098 99,810 - -
End of the year FE 1,996,196 199,620 998,098 99,810

On 22 June 2012, issued share capital of the Company
increased from HK$86,810,000 to HK$99,810,000 by
issue of 130,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each as a
result of the business combination under common control
(Note 2.1).

The Company increased the authorised share capital from
HK$200,000,000 to HK$400,000,000 by the creation
of additional 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each by
passing an ordinary resolution by shareholders at the
annual general meeting on 24 August 2012.

On 20 September 2012, the Company issued bonus
shares on the basis of one bonus share for every share in
issue pursuant to an ordinary resolution by shareholders
at the annual general meeting held on 24 August 2012.
The bonus shares were credited as fully paid by way of
capitalisation of an amount of HK$99,809,760 in the share
premium account of the Company.
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R-ZTE——FXNA-+_-8 BAHAREHTE
BAft - A FZE1T130,000,000% 55 A% B AL E
E10/81l - 377% AN 86,810,000/ L N =
99,810,000/ 7T (Fi7E2.1) °
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FAFREM\RER - 7AERAH200,000,000
¥ JT A0 £400,000,00078 7T 1 h0 5 S
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RZE——FNAZ+H  KRAEWLK -
RZE——FNAZTHEBRTZBREAFEXR
SRBRER  BWARZEELST —KKHD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme in May
2002 under which it may grant options to employees of
the Group (including executive directors of the Company)
and other third parties to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time excluding for this purpose any shares issued on the
exercise of options. The exercise price will be determined
by the Company’s board of directors and shall at least be
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant of the options, (ii) an average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options,
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of
HK$0.1 each.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
21 May 2002 has expired on 20 May 2012. A new share
option scheme was adopted and approved during annual
general meeting held on 24 August 2012.

Details of movement of share options under the share
option scheme during the year ended 31 March 2013 are
as follows:
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Re LHERERA -

WA A BB RE T —ZE=A=
+—RIEERN BB EDT

Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled

Exercise *Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period Vesting period price of year  theyear theyear theyear year
‘ rEE  AEE  REEE
REAH TEHR BRTHR TEER £4) BRE  BTE AMEEUE FE
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000
B T T T T T
5 March 2010 1 December 2010 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-TF 4 March 2020 1 December 2010
=y Kils ZE2-ZF+Zf-HZ ZZ-T4=-ARAZ
“ETFZAmA 0 ZEF-TFTZA-H 0275 15136 - - (9,268) 5,868
5 March 2010 1 July 2011 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-TF 4 March 2020 1 July 2011
—RTA “T——5tA-BE ZZT-TF-ARAZE
—Z_TF-AmA —T—%+A-H 0.275 13,836 - - (7,968) 5,868
5 March 2010 TJuly 2012 to 5 March 2010 to
—T-%F 4 March 2020 1 July 2012
—AnA ZZT—FtA-BE Z—T-TF-ARAZE
“E2-RF-ANA “E2-—FtA-H 0.275 18,448 - - (10,624) 7,824
47,420 - - (27,860) 19,560
Note: B

The vesting of the share options is subject to the performance of the
Group.

* Adjusted by the effect of the bonus issue.

BETBBRERUANANEE 2 %48 -

* REREWAR s ZE -

S EIEREEAR B R 2 7] 2012/13 F 8




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

21 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

The fair value of the share options granted was estimated
at the grant date by using the Hull White Trinomial
model, after taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The significant
assumptions and inputs used in the valuation model are as
follows:

Option value HK$0.112 to HK$0.122
Market price at the grant date HK$0.275
Exercisable price HK$0.275
Risk-free interest rate 2.68%
Expected volatility 50.73%
Expected dividend per share 2.78%

Hull White Trinomial model is subject to certain
fundamental limitations because of the subjective nature
of and uncertainty relating to the assumptions and inputs
to the model as well as certain inherent limitations of the
model itself. Any changes in the above assumptions or
inputs may materially affect the fair value estimation.

The fair value of the 30,200,000 share options granted on
5 March 2010 amounting to approximately HK$7,006,000
is to be recognised as employee benefit expense of the
Group according to the vesting conditions. An expense
of approximately HK$233,000 (2012: HK$1,588,000),
partly offset by the cancellation of certain options during
the year amounting approximately to HK$42,000 (2012:
HK$262,000), was recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2013. Vested
share option of HK$3,203,000 (2012: HK$136,000) lapsed
during the year was transferred to retained earnings from
share-based compensation reserve.
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21 BREE)

LAHull White Trinomial modelf&zt %% ¥ B
HFARLEZEREZ AFE  HEEDE
b B3R BB AR 2 G MR IR BB AR - 1
BERBREEEAFRZHEEADT

fRiEEE 0.11287L£0.1228 T
REL Bz TSEE 0.275% 7T
TTEEM 0.275%8 7T

R B A1) = 2.68%

TEHR IR 50.73%
SEEEEST SN 2.78%

Hull White Trinomial model= % Lt ELAER & -

HAEBMERTEEESE B2 BRLEAER
N UR—EEEZERXNARNG BRI - 0
MR KIEABEMEL - AJge QR FE-E
BEEATE-

R-Z—FF = AH HEH30,200,0000% i i%
73 $1E % FE#) /7,006,000 T 0 W D
BERTHREEERAEE ZRBAXL - RE
EE—ZF=-ZA=t+—BHIFEZHAEZR
RXEMRAEBR £ 54233,0008 L (=
— —4% : 1,588,000 L) + AMESTHEARE
Mk E X 2 €54 542,000 (=

— % :262,00087C) c K THEREZLESBY
3,203,000 7T (=& — = £ : 136,000/ 7T)
RAFRLIMBARD I zMeHEE=
REBEF o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBRENE
22 OTHER RESERVES 22 HfithfEE
(@) Group (a) ZX&
Available-
for- sale
Capital ~ Share-based assets
Share Capital Merger  redemption compensation  revaluation  Translation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Bx  HURfRf AHEEEE
ROGE  ERBE  AHEE BoffE MeRE EfRE  RERE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr Thr ThL Thr Thr ThL ThR
Balance at 1 April 2011 “5——ENA-ArEs 338,514 5,900 - 459 4,056 - 2,103 351,032
Adoption of merger accounting Fafranims (W)

(Note 2.1) 35,750 - (38,000) - - - - (2,250)
As restated [RE] 374,264 5,900 (38,000) 459 4,056 - 2,103 348782
Employee share option scheme EERREE

- value of employee services - EShE BE - - - - 1306 - - 1326

- Transfer to retained earnings - ERER RS A NER

upon cancellation/lapse RERF

of share options - - - - (136) - - (136)
Currency translation differences EHhEEER - - - - - - 7,299 7299
Change in ownership interests WEARGEENERZED

in a subsidiary without change (T mhE)

of control - (3.292) - - - - - (3,29
Balance as at 31 March 2012 —Z-ZF=F=1-H

LR 374,264 2,608 (38,000) 459 5,246 - 9,402 353,979
Balance at 1 April 2012 (Restated) ~ —E-ZFMA-HzEH
(BE5) 374,264 2,608 (38,000) 459 5,246 - 9,402 353,979
Employee share option scheme EEREREE
- Value of employee services - EEREBE - - - - 191 - _ 191
- Transfer to retained eamings - BRERES A NER
upon cancellation/lapse REER
of share options - - - - (3,.203) - - (3,203)
Currency translation differences EhgEg - - - - - - 5,627 5,627
Fair value losses on avalable-forsale — WEHESBEERTEL

financial assets, net of tax e MERE - - - - - 3) - 3)
Bonus issue B (99,810) - - - - - - (99,810)
Balance as at 31 March 2013 “E-=FZf=1-H

A= 274,454 2,608 (38,000) 459 234 B) 15,029 256,781

=B AR AR 2 7] 2012/13 F 88



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

22 OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd) 22 Htbf#s (&)
(b) Company (b) &QF
Available-
for-sale
Capital Share-based assets
Share  redemption  Contributed compensation  revaluation
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve Total
X WRG%A WHEEEE
R EE EEfE BABR  ZMERE  2ERE 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TEn TEn TEx TAR
Balance at 1 Apri 2011 “E-—EMA-BIEH 338514 459 193,185 4,056 - 536,214
Employee share option scheme {EB RS
- value of employee services -EERKZBE - - - 1326 - 1326
~ transfer to retained earnings - BRERHIANEE
upon cancellation/lapse RERF
of share options - - - (136) - (136)
Balance as at 31 March 2012 “E-CE-A=+-H7EH 338514 459 193,185 5,246 - 537,404
Balance at 1 April 2012 “E-—FNA-BriR 338514 459 193,185 5,246 - 537,404
Employee share option scheme [EEREREE
- value of employee services -EERKEE - - - 191 - 191
~ transfer to retained earnings - BRER A ES
upon cancellation/lapse REEA
of share options - - - (3,203) - (3,203)
Fair value losses on available-forsale  a[ftHESBEEATE
financial assets, net of tax ZEE BTRE - - - - 3) (3)
Issuance of shares BRA 35,750 - - - - 35,750
Bonus issue Bk (99,810) - - - - (99,810)
Balance as at 31 March 2013 “E-=F-R=t-HER 274,454 459 193,185 2,234 ) 470,329

Under the Companies Act

1981 of Bermuda (as amended),

contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

R e MR RME

23 EZREMEMNIRK

Group Company
rEE EAH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-=F —T-CF —E-=f %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT THET FAT
(Restated)
(BEE7)
Trade payables: Z MR -
0 to 90 days 0£90H 221,328 352,113 - -
91 to 180 days 91%180H 818 9,829 - -
181 to 360 days 1812360H 2,116 2,541 - -
Over 360 days 360H A £ 2,395 4,910 - -
226,657 369,393 - -
Accrual for rental expenses [fE=tTHS 40,451 36,761 = -
Accrual for purchase of JEFTEE
fixed assets BEEE 17,141 36,249 - -
Salaries and staff welfare  EN#HE@RET
payable ZAER 54,904 54,307 - -
Others Hity 87,298 90,585 12,029 8,305
199,794 217,902 12,029 8,305
426,451 587,295 12,029 8,305

The fair values of the Group’s trade payables approximate

their carrying value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBZEZRMRRZ A EEEIREER
3 o

AEE Y H SR R REENTIE% A
By -

2013 2012

—E—=£F T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

HK$ BT 61,590 96,954
US dollar ETT 154,962 235,445
Renminbi AR 7,071 35,256
Euro B¢ 69 410
Japanese Yen Hot 2,886 1,244
Others Hiw 79 84
226,657 369,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

The carrying amounts of the Group's accruals and other

23 EBSRHEHMEMSIIRR

&)

AREE 2 BT E R N H M FE A IR 32 IR E A

payables are denominated in the following currencies: T B &5 HE AT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(BEF])
HK$ BIT 64,965 31,730
US dollar =TT 8,556 28,253
Renminbi AREE 124,525 157,919
Malaysia ringgit R Fagn 1,748 -
199,794 217,902
24 BORROWINGS - GROUP 24 £ - AEE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trust receipt loans SR WIEER 75,151 150,183
Portion of bank borrowings repayable —FRERZIRITEEZ M
within one year 168,000 212,000
Portion of bank borrowings due for BERERKEBEER 2 —Fi&
repayment after one year which BEZRITEE Z*BT
contains a repayment on demand clause 27,995 60,900
Total borrowings EEEzE 271,146 423,083

(a) All borrowings are with a contractual maturity of
within one year as a result of the repayment on
demand clauses.

(b) The average effective interest rates of the Group’s

(a) Pﬁﬁ{ﬁglﬁiﬁé’éjﬂﬁ Ef

WEIRER—FA -

(b) AEBEREHEBZRTT

R PTBAA

tEEFHERA

bank borrowings at the balance sheet date are as B
follows:
2013 2012
—E =5 —ET——4F
Bank borrowings, at floating rate RITRE  FEX 2.03% 2.08%
Trust receipt loans ZERIEER 2.51% 2.28%

(0) The carrying amounts of the borrowings
approximate their fair values and are denominated
in HKS.

(d) As at 31 March 2013, the Company has
given guarantees totalling approximately
HK$1,534,220,000 (2012: HK$1,634,300,000) to
financial institution in connection with the banking
facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 DEFERRED TAXATION - GROUP

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%).

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

R e MR RME

25 EZEFHIE— XEE

ELERERAAEEIREREZRRFERE
16.5% (ZF—Z4F : 16.5%) {E2HUEHE -

ERAERNAGEENREERRIERIER
B MELEPTEHY LR —HEHKEE - 8
ARRERIBEREERREHRIAB BT HEEE -
EFANEERER  NMIeHREGAEERE
FAFIR -

2013 2012

—E—=£ —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHEIT

(Restated)

(D&E)

Deferred tax assets FEIERIEE & (984) (976)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEAE 12,527 7,434
11,543 6,458

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had unprovided deferred
tax assets of approximately HK$9,970,000 (2012:
HK$7,471,000) primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward against future
taxable income, of which, tax losses of HK$9,135,000
(2012: HK$6,636,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.
The remaining balances of HK$835,000 (2012:
HK$835,000) tax losses will expire in 2016 to 2017.

RZEBE—=F=ZA=+—8  K&EBENKEE
TR IE & E 2 B 499,970,000 L (—ZF —
7,471,000 ) EERR A HIE
BEZREZE (EXEBRHREHEBARE) -
ZeREO EARMFWARE  MRBEESBL
9,135,000/ 7L (ZZF— =% : 6,636,000/87T)
AT PR BRAEEE o BR N 2 FHIB B 1B A5 £2835,000/%5
7T (ZZF— 4 :835,00087T) BT —<
FE T FHH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR RME

25 DEFERRED TAXATION - GROUP (Contd) 25 EEFIE— XEEH (&)

The movement of the deferred tax assets and liabilities B — i@ G EEEER - BEEHIEE
prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation ERBEBEZEEHNAT -

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEAE
Fair value
gain of
Accelerated investment License
depreciation  properties rights Total
mEFTE AFEZEM Fg-¢ et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THAT TRT TRT

(Restated) (Restated)
(BE5) (B&7))
As at 31 March 2011 —E——F=fA=1+—H 8,234 - - 8,234
(Credited)/charged to consolidated PR BRE
income statement GONVE (2,093) 1,577 - (516)
As at 31 March 2012 —E——F=A=+—H 6,141 1,577 - 7,718
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35 (b)) YBEMB X (Ki5E35(b)) - - 4,257 4,257
Charged to consolidated income NG R il
statement 1,266 57 - 1,323
As at 31 March 2013 —E-=F=A=+—H 7,407 1,634 4,257 13,298
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
Tax losses Others Total
BIEER Hith A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2011 —E——F=A=4+—H (3,328) (504) (3,832)
Charged/(credited) to the consolidated PiFABREERNE(GEA)
income statement 2,858 (286) 2,572
As at 31 March 2012 —E——HF=A=+—H (470) (790) (1,260)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35 (b)) WEEM B AR (FHsE35(b)) (419) - (419)
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated RersiEamEx GEA),/ ik
income statement (300) 224 (76)
As at 31 March 2013 —E—=ZF=ZA=1+—H (1,189) (566) (1,755)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 DEFERRED TAXATION — GROUP (Cont'd)

A summary of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction
is as follows:

R e MR RME

25 REWRE— AKE (&)

Al — B R 2 ek ERE A - EEHRIRA
(BE) RAEBZHMEWNT

2013 2012

—E—=£ —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHEIT

(Restated)

(D&E7)

Deferred tax assets FEIERIEE = (1,755) (1,260)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEAE 13,298 7,718
11,543 6,458

26 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
- GROUP

(@) Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,250 per month and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in Mainland China. The Group
contributes approximately 14% (2012: 10%) of the basic
salaries of its employees, and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$9,361,000 (2012: HK$5,554,000).

26 RAKBNEME-FT5EE

(a) HREHRKEE

AEBEZHBERELHBHMERERTE
([BFEL5TEl]) - RESFTE BN EBEHENG
2 HBURTEAESE - RIEBESTE > K
SEREREESAVEREEREZAR (T
BoaklERTEESEN) 5% e &t EER K -
AEBREBEZEHAHRREA,2508 LA L
R HEE o HRAEEREEE -

RIFPBEAEZERE  AREARASTEX
MEEEMRE ZBEKEBRKE SIEL #5K
AEEARETERBEEAFEN14% (=ZF
—ZF 1 10%) EHEFR - M EERERE
K& S BOR IR AR A B B 8 1F B E A AGE -
BREEZHARKEXH—MHBREN
BRIRGHEIHAIE -

RERAKREE G il RIKETEEL 2 HRY
/9,361,0007% jT (=& — — 4 : 5,554,000/8
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

26 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
— GROUP (Contd)

(b) Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments represents the Group’s
obligations for long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Such long service payment obligations are valued by
Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent
qualified actuary valuer.

26 ERAKRBEANELE - XEE (@)

(b) RUERBEER

RERB2EBR/ARERESE (REERDD
EETHERTEILEREES MmN 2 KBRS
EFRTEZEE -

ZEERERNBEABEMEREETE éu L
BRI E R FER $¢Iﬂiﬁ<ﬁr$ﬂ—l—$’§lf X P
Bzt s - ZRBRESETHBLA]
RBEMEEANERBRARABME -

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet REEEERBERERZSBERE T ANXE
are determined as follows: ha

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET

Present value of unfunded obligation and K IEEF 2 BERNGEBE
liability in the consolidated balance sheet EBEXANZEE 11,026 13,279

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement are as follows:

REFABmABR I ZENT

2013 2012

—E—=fF —F——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Interest cost T B R A 578 616

Net actuarial (gains)/losses recognised DR ZIEE (W), B8 (2,659) 3,550
Total, included in employee benefit AR BIEERERERAFAIZA

expenses (Note 29) (B3E29) (2,081) 4,166

The above charges were included in general and
administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FaMBHRERME
26 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 26 ERABHNERE - TKE (&)
— GROUP (Contd)
(b)  Provision for long service payments (Cont'd) (b) REREESEE (£)
Movements in the provision for long service payments of AEBRARESEHEESHNOT ¢

the Group are as follows:

2013 2012

—E—=£F —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T THTT

Beginning of the year F1 13,279 9,520

(Reversal of provision)/provision INEE (EF 7O

for current year (Note 29) (MF5E29) (2,081) 4,166

Payments made during the year FABHRK (172) (407)

End of the year FK 11,026 13,279
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: KAZEZRERRWOT ¢

2013 2012

—E-=fF —E——fF

Per annum Per annum

g% S

Discount rate BHIR =X 1.40% 1.30%

Expected rate of future salary increases AR E I 2 FEHRIE R R 4.00% 3.00%

27 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 27 WA > Hftlg ARz

2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
(Restated)
(BE7)
Revenue WA
Sales of merchandise and provision of S MR AR
services
— Metal and plastic business —heBBER 996,696 988,519
— Electronic manufacturing services —BFEERITER
business 1,287,365 1,296,871
— Consumer and services business — SHBE MIRIGERS 7,343 4,775
2,291,404 2,290,165
Other income and gains HAb A KUk zs
Rental income e WA 6,774 5,806
Management fee income EIEEIA 2,643 2,988
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BMENEEN
equipment and land use rights TP AR 2 e 2,982 35,529
Fair value gain of derivative financial PTESR T A A EKR
instrument 496 -
Others HAih 3,677 -

16,572 44,323




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

28 EXPENSES BY NATURE 28 BMESEER
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
(Restated)
(BE%))
Raw materials and consumables used 2 R E B 1,604,173 1,619,941
Changes in inventories of finished goods and  Zpk M M &pk 2 FEE )

work in progress 113,868 146,431
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #7% - WE L& EZITE

(Note 7) (M5E7) 54,704 45,470
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) PR 2 Y (F5E6) 747 755
Amortisation of license rights (Note 9) K s e (PYsE9) 600 -
Employee benefit expenses EEBINAX (BIEEEME)

(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 29) (FF5E29) 346,291 351,548
Operating lease rental of premises MEZKEHERE 20,950 16,577
Net exchange (gain)/loss EH (W), B8 (4,108) 4,030
Auditor's remuneration ZERT BN & 2,680 2,076
Impairment loss for available-for-sale AP ESRMEE 2 RERIE

financial assets (Note 14) (MF5E14) 6,025 -
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade & 5 & H th & U iR ZORUE 45

and other receivables (Note 13) 2 Bl% (FsE13) (2,027) (284)
Trade, bills and other receivable written off 5  ZENEMEWIRR

Z W - 755
Reversal of provision for obsolete and PREE MBHFE 2R 2 BB

slow-moving inventories (Note 16) (M¥sE16) (2,540) (1,650)

Other expenses Hthsz 1 97,673 93,023
2,239,036 2,278,672

Representing: K&

Cost of sales HEMAR 2,049,399 2,101,468

Distribution and selling expenses DHEHNHEER 41,196 36,716

General and administrative expenses —MRITHEA 148,441 140,488
2,239,036 2,278,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

R e MR RME

29 EERAXH—BEEEHE

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as () FAERERHZHMT :
follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=f —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(BE5])
Wages and salaries HMETE 338,820 340,502
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  iR{REK A — REHKETE 9,361 5,554
(Reversal of provision)/provision EHIRG S CEE 2 BIE) /8
for long service payments (Note 26) (FMt3E26) (2,081) 4,166
Share option expenses for options BEYEEREEBREZSZH
granted to directors and employees 191 1,326
346,291 351,548

(b) Directors and senior management

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
March 2013 is set out below:

(b) EEREREEAR

BE T ="F="A=1—HIFERESF
M7 RIOT -

Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary ~ to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary’ bonuses scheme Total
BiERH EXEHNe
EEEB ik e 2R sHEZHH af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET TET
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai? (AR A2 - 4,436 1,370 - 5,806
Mr. Zhao Kai LA - 319 763 2 1,084
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FHEEE - 916 435 15 1,366
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia BR 22 ik /) A = 621 382 15 1,018
Mr. Ho Kai Man IR & - 120 - 5 125
Non-executive director IHTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming AR BRLAE 400 16 - - 416
Mr. Ho Kai Man MR E - 149 30 6 185
Independent non-executive director BB ITEE
Mr. So Wai Chun BERESE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond BRI L 100 = = = 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing FEREE 20 - - - 920




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MR RME

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 29 RBEGAXH BREESME &)
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) Directors and senior management (Cont'd) (b) ESRESREEBAE (&)
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 BEZT——F=A=T—BHLFEREEL
March 2012 is set out below: Es&zmT -
Employer’s

contribution
Discretionary  to pension

Name of Director Fees Salary’ bonuses scheme Total
BigRH  EXRHKe
EEEH we e ZRA FHEZHR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET FHET THET
Executive director HITEF
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai? (eI A2 - 4,436 370 9 4,815
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis MoK ERAE A - 77 - 1 78
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRBlELE - 983 273 12 1,268
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia BR 2 ik /) A - 609 218 12 839
Non-executive director IHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fal AR A 390 84 30 - 504

Independent non-executive director BV B iTEE

Mr. So Wai Chun EEBkE 100 - - _ 100
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond BRImAR LA 100 - - - 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing it hitas 60 - - _ 60
1 Included fair value of share options charged to the 1 BRFARGEEaRNGR ZBIRIEATE -
consolidated income statement during the year.
2 The Company’s executive director represents the Company’s 2 ARFRZHTESRERARAZITRAE - Fit
Chief executive officer. Accordingly no separately disclosure RE RIS R B S BT F B o
is respect of the remuneration of the chief executive officer is
made in the financial statement.
No directors waived any emoluments during the year RENBEEHEME (ZZE—Z—F: &)
(2012: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group or EmENSENFIEBEL TEMESARSIENE
compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to any REBIREBL 2 AE (ZT—ZF - |) -

director during the year (2012: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(c)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2012: two) Directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2012: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

R e MR RME

29 REERAMZH—BREESEME &)

() THEBSHFMAL

AFEEEERERSFMIALEE=% (=
T :"R)EF HMeEdERN LS
e REREHR B (ZF——F: =8) &=
AL ZREABEImT

2013 2012

—E—=F —EF——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&xT FET

Basic salaries and allowances! HAR e KoEah 1,528 2,690
Discretionary bonus BB 25 2 TEAT 727 543
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  RIREZA — REHRETE 29 36
2,284 3,269

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEMEE NIIEABEN

Number of individuals

ATEAR
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ1,000,0007 7T = 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,00058 7T 2 2

1 Included the amounts of share-based compensation, which
are determined based on the fair value of the share options
granted to the relevant employees at the date of grant and
recognised over the vesting period.

No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2012: Nil).

1 EERNEEXNzME  ZHMeRERTEH
REBERER 2 ATVEEEMNERBHAAIR -

RERNRALBSHAL (BEEERHEMBE)
W EETHMNEIEAREBNZAHE (ZT—
T fE) e

=B AR AR 2 7] 2012/13 F 88




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

30 FINANCE COSTS, NET

30 BIEERAS - BEE

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
Finance costs BTG R AR
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings —RAFAZHEE ZRTT
wholly repayable within five years EBEMSRXZ 7,536 7,664
Finance income B A
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITFHF EUA (4,237) (3,825)
Finance costs, net BITERZN - JFRR 3,299 3,839

31 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda but
exempted from Bermuda taxation until 2016. Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year for
all group companies incorporated in Hong Kong.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

31 FifSFHiXH

RRARIDRBREKILZAR  EREHRE
RERBEE _ZT—RF -FAEARBEKILZ
REBRRTIRBEARTE 25 B RB & F 1%
16.5% (ZZ——F : 16.5%) 2 TR XHIRE B
ST &R o

A EINE Mz Bt Rk Bl R R 4R 2 14 5 FE AR B A
EARERERGAERR ZRITHEGE -

REFBBmARH I BIAMT

2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
(Restated)
(BES)
Current taxation RITRIA
Hong Kong profits tax BEBNEMN
— current year — RFEE 8,620 6,673
— over-provision in prior years — AF 2 HBEEEE (4,524) (278)
Overseas taxation TFINTISHR
— current year — KEE 12,838 20,828
— over-provision in prior years — EF 2 HBEEEE (1,568) (578)
Deferred taxation (Note 25) EERTE (FI7E25) 1,247 2,056
Income tax expenses FTisfi = & 16,613 28,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBEERME
31 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont'd) 31 FRBBixH (&)
The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from & .ﬁfﬁfﬁffﬂ AsEfMz HBRRERAES
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits ZHEBRE (REBALT 2BR) MatE 2B ®
tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s home country, as %)%%‘EZ%—:EJZHT :
follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=f —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(BE5])
Profit before taxation MR R A 58,550 54,048
Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) (ZT—=%F 1 165%) it& 9,661 8,918
Effect of different taxation rates in TEMRZRERERE &
other countries (638) 2,055
Associates’ results reported net of tax BN A A - kRTEIE 500 673
Income not subject to taxation IR WA (11,277) (11,821)
Expenses not deductible for PR[HIF 2 2
taxation purposes 21,748 16,668
Temporary difference not recognised RIERZ =R 1,487 12,382
Over-provision of overseas taxation in FF 2GR BREEE
prior years (1,568) (578)
Over-provision of Hong Kong taxation in  {F4F 2 & /&F 18 7 HREE 4
prior years (4,524) (278)
Effect of tax deduction for Hong Kong BEEBEERCTE
taxation - (59)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FREFARERHRISER
tax losses (2,210) (279)
Tax losses for which no deferred income RIER BTS2 FIERE
tax asset was recognised 3,434 1,020
Income tax expenses Frigfisz i 16,613 28,701
32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 32 ERARERFEAEMLET
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company RRPIERFA AER R 418,951,000 7T
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (ZZ— =% :22,377,00087T) * ERARQT
to the extent of approximately HK$18,951,000 (2012: L BmMERPRIE o

HK$22,377,000).

T PIEIER AR B R A 7] 2012/13 F#




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

33 BREA

FRERGMNDRBERNA R ERFFA ARG G
FMERAFAB BT 2 BB INEFHEGETE -

2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——fF
(Restated)
(B2E5])
Profit attributable to equity holders of RN RIREZR IR AE(EHR
the Company (in HK$'000) (F&xat) 41,967 25,058
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITERRZ T
shares in issue (in thousand shares) (FAED) 1,996,196 1,996,196
Basic earnings per share BRERNRHN (FRUAEIE)
(HK cents per share) 2.1 1.3

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used for
the purpose of calculating the basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 March 2012 has been retrospectively
adjusted for the effect of the bonus issue of ordinary
shares which took place on 20 September 2012.

There was no dilutive effect on earnings per share for
both years ended 31 March 2012 and 2013 since all
outstanding share options were anti-dilutive.

34 DIVIDENDS

AEBR 2 MEFHAER-_ZE——FNAZ
THBETEBR AR ZEEBPARHE —
T—_—F A=+ —HItFEZEBRERZF -

HRAMERTE CERESEREST - &0
HE T —HFr-_T—=%=ZA=+—HI1t
WEFE 2SR EEEIFE -

3 RE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHIT

Interim dividend, declared, of Nil ERHERE — SEERE
(2012: Nil) per ordinary share (ZB——fF &) - -

Final dividend, proposed, of HK1.2 cents  #RRHIIG B — FE @R

(2012: HK1 cent) per ordinary share 1278 (ZZ——4 : 178l) 23,954 8,681
23,954 8,681

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013
of HK1.2 cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total
dividend HK$23,954,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting on 6 September 2013. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a) Business combination under common control

As mention in note 2.1, KYD acquired the Acquired
Entities on 22 June 2012 which was regard as a business
combination under common control. The comparative
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012 has been restated using the principles
of merger accounting on the basis as if the Company
had been the holding company of the Acquired Entities
throughout the years presented.

The Acquired Entities and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in wedding exhibitions and sales of wedding
related goods and wedding photography tour packages in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Statement of adjustments for the common control
combination of the Acquired Entities to the Group’s results
for the year ended 31 March 2012 is as follows:

R e MR RME

35 XS4
(a) HEZHITZEKA6

W2 AT RZFE——FXA=-+=-H "
EENERKEER A —BHRRAESTZ
¥%E - HE-_ZE——F=A=+—AIt=E
BEZHREMBRRIHEREFEAEGHETER
BREEY  EEAMNZENR2INHMER
BT -

REBERMEMNBERARNEERTEAEE
ERFERMEEEECRMNEYVRBYIREES
RS

AEBHE_T——_FZA=T—HIFEZ
XERBRWEER 2 AREN TAHMEEZ
AEEIREZ AT ¢

U

Total (before

The Group correction
(as previously Acquired of prior
reported) Entities year error)
rEE & (BLE
(FAT2%]) WKEBER TFHERZAN)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT THETT FET
Year ended 31 March 2012 (2 E——F=HA=1+—H
IEFE
Revenue WA 2,285,390 4,775 2,290,165
Profit/(loss) before taxation MESRDER] (E518) 57,164 (3,116) 54,048
Income tax expenses FriSBisZ i (16,494) (M (16,495)
Profit for the year FERN 40,670 (3,117) 37,553

T PIEIER AR B R A 7] 2012/13 F#




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

35
(a)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Contd)

Business combination under common control
(Cont’d)

Statement of adjustments for the common control
combination of the Acquired Entities to the Group’s

35 EKE6t (&)
(a) HEZEHTZEBS6 (&)

AEER-T-——F=-A=+—"HZ&K
A RBEE

AR
HEEZEH TAEHMEE 2 HE

consolidated reserves as at 31 March 2012 is as follows: WERAT
Total (before
The Group correction
(as previously Acquired of prior
reported) Entities Adjustment  year error)
FEE e (B
(RAI28) HwUEEER AR EFHRZA)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT

As at 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=1+—H

Non-current assets EREEE 646,613 758 - 647,371
Current assets TRENEE 1,317,285 2,160 - 1,319,445
Non-current liabilities Bl =L (20,710) 3) - (20,713)
Current liabilities (Note) weIaE (M) (1,046,462) (10,659) 10,000  (1,047,121)
Net assets FERE 896,726 (7,744) 10,000 898,982
Share capital (Note) ARAS (BisE) 86,810 750 12,250 99,810
Retained profits RE RN 453,263 (8,494) - 444,769
Merger reserve (Note) E ot () - (38,000) (38,000)
Other reserves (Note) Hab R (M55 356,229 - 35,750 391,979
896,302 (7,744) 10,000 898,558
Non-controlling interests FEFE R A 2 424 - - 424
Total equity EREE 896,726 (7,744) 10,000 898,982
Note: The investment cost represented a total consideration of BaE Tﬁﬁﬁ?zﬁﬁiﬂi%%ﬁk H LA~ F{E0.375%8
approximately HK$48,750,000 which was satisfied by T B 1T $ 7] 22130,000,000% i i = #& K
the issue of 130,000,000 ordinary shares at fair value of & 44 /%E Mk EREZERE

HK$0.375 each of the Company on completion date. The
net investment cost was HK$38,750,000, after assumption
of HK$10,000,000 shareholder loan owed by My Affection
Holdings Limited. The difference between the KYD's net
investment cost of HK$38,750,000 in the Acquired Entities
and the share capital of HK$750,000 of the Acquired Entities
was adjusted in merger reserve.

No other significant adjustments were made to the net
profit of any entities or businesses as a result of the
common control combination to achieve consistency of
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Contd)

(b) Business combination under acquisition
method of accounting

On 31 December 2012, the Group acquired 70% of the
equity interest in each of Full House Lifestyle Concept Sdn.
Bhd., Full House Management Sdn. Bhd., and Trendtastik
Sdn. Bhd., and 35% equity interest in Full House Pastry
Sdn. Bhd., 42% equity interest in Layar Sinarmas Sdn.
Bhd., 17.5% equity interest in Peak Century Sdn. Bhd.
and 14% equity interest in Barley House Singapore Pte Ltd
(Collectively “Fullhouse Group”) at a total consideration of
HK$24,000,000.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group expects to
diversify its business to earn an additional source of
revenue. The goodwill of HK$1,091,000 arising from
the acquisition is attributable to consumer and services
business segment of the Group.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes. The following table
summarises the consideration paid for the acquisition of
Fullhouse Group and the amounts of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed recognised at the acquisition date,
as well as the fair value at the acquisition date of the
non-controlling interest in Fullhouse Group.

R e MR RME

35 XS0t (&
(b) BESHEEZTI2BA6

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H AEBKET
Full House Lifestyle Concept Sdn. Bhd. ~ Full
House Management Sdn. Bhd. K Trendtastik
Sdn. Bhd. % 70%# %% * Full House Pastry Sdn.
Bhd.Z35%#%5 * Layar Sinarmas Sdn. Bhd.Z
42%7HEz% ~ Peak Century Sdn. Bhd. 2 17.5%#&
z M2 Barley House Singapore Pte LtdZ14%#&
(A1 [Fullhouse®= & | )4 (K (& /24,000,000
BTT °

L EEWER  AREENZ T ERA
AR - WBSE L 2 & 21,091,00078
TLERAREE 2 HEE MRS ER -

R BERBAAIRMAEHR - RIKEBRX
7Y EFullhouse R Bl 2 KB KR WIE 2 &
ENAEREZ @ - LAKRPRIE BFullhouse
SEZFERERE L AFERBWT

HK$'000
FAT
Consideration: RME :

— Cash - B 24,000
Total consideration fmER&E 24,000
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BRUBAZWBEERRESRS

acquired and liabilities assumed ZEE
License rights (Note9) =@ MW=e) 24000
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 25) EERIBAE (MisE25) (4,257)
Cash and cash equivalents ReLKBELZEEY 594
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) M - B k& (HEE7) 1,974
Deferred tax assets (Note 25) EEFIEEE (MiFE25) 419
Inventories FE 163
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AN - 12E REARIIR 1,570
Trade payable B Z IR (471)
Accruals and other payables FEETE A IR E A FE ST IR 5K (1,036)
Total identifiable net assets of subsidiaries acquired  #MMHBAR ZARRFAESE 3.213
Non-controlling interests RERd=m (964)
Investment in associated companies (Note 11) REEERR Z&E (HE11) 618

Goodwill (Note 9)

EE (F:E9) 1,091




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e MR RME

35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Contd)

(b) Business combination under acquisition
method of accounting (Cont’d)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$1,080,000 have been
charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2013.

The selling shareholder of Fullhouse Group has
contractually agreed to indemnify the Group for any
additional tax liability falling on Fullhouse Group resulting
from its operations and transactions prior to the acquisition
date. The indemnification asset was valued at nil by the
Group at the time of the acquisition. There has been no
change in the amount recognised for the indemnification
asset as at 31 March 2013, as there has been no change
in the range of outcomes or assumptions used to develop
the estimate of the liability.

The Group recognised the non-controlling interests at
proportionate share of Fullhouse Group’s net assets at the
acquisition date which equalled to HK$964,000.

36 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
IN A SUBSIDIARY WITHOUT CHANGE
OF CONTROL

On 30 September 2011, the Group acquired an
additional 40% of the issued shares of Sagem Karrie
Technologies (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“SKT") for
a purchase consideration of US$5,633,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$43,660,000). The carrying amount
of the non-controlling interests in SKT on the date of
acquisition was HK$40,368,000. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$40,368,000
and a decrease in equity attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$3,292,000.
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35 XS4t (&)
(b) HBESHEELTZ2BA6 (£)

U BB FERAAK A 1,080,000 TEREHE T —=
FZA=Z+HIFEZGEBZERRN KK
THEAFH -

Fullhouse&E Bz HERREFT MR EMAEE
HER U B Bl ZFullhouseE BT & & 2 ¥ 75
?EZT?:H%E@I\T)%IEE\{I o MUKEERF - AEE
WEEEREEE R =F=A=+—
AMRCRERELEESRHRIENRE  BAMA
NHEaER 2 EREERBRERERE -

UL EE BFullhousess @ 7 % & E IR il 45 AN &
BER 2 IEERE R AENR4964,0008 7T ©

36 MEARERARRZEE (TX
B HIRE)

NRZEBE——FHLhA=+H KEENUKRE
5,633,000% 7T (HH5 1 4943,660,000% 7T) B8
ARFEERSE (FF) ARAAF ([F#]) =/
SNA0% B BETTRR (0 o it 2 FEIE AR M A U B
H 8 > tR T {& 440,368,000/ 7T ° A& B #ER
AL JE 2 AR 2540,368,0005% 7T M R A AN A
A AEIRRERR3,292,000 T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FaMBHRERME
36 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 36 MIBARBEEAERZEE (FTX
IN A SUBSIDIARY WITHOUT CHANGE SIETIRE) (&)
OF CONTROL (Contd)
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of a HAMBRRIZHE AR 2 B AR EE
subsidiary on the equity attributable to owners of the B AEBEERZZERNT
Company during the year is summarised as follows:
2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FHEIT
Carrying amounts of non-controlling interests acquired B A JEFE S #E 25 2 tRE B 40,368
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests S F IR 2B (43,660)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity FRH 2 TR ERE R ER (3,292)
37 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 37 EERZAREE
LIABILITIES
The Group and the Company had the following significant REBRAANBEU T HRERKRGAMBERE
commitments and contingent liabilities which were not FEIREE T EERIENSAEE

provided for in the consolidated financial statements:

(a) Capital commitments (a) BAREE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted NR-E—=FH=F=+—8 AEEAUTE
capital commitments as at 31 March 2013: PoRE NGB 7 B IARAGE
Group Company
iy 3 ERAHE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—=fF —E-—fF —E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FHERT TET
Construction of commercial N SETpN i =2
premises in Mainland China ESIER 8,360 - = -
Construction of investment A B A e i
properties in Mainland China &Y% 90,155 - - -
Purchase of property, BEWE  BERX
plant and equipment B 3,791 4,900 - -
102,306 4,900 - -

=B AR AR 2 7] 2012/13 F 88
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R e MR RME

37 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Operating lease commitments

(b)

The Group had lease commitments in respect of land

37 EAERIIAEE (&)

(b) KEHEERE

AEBEZERARE_FTRAF+ A HEH
ZEMWERKEHEWZ - ARMNAED TN

and buildings under various non-cancellable operating S
lease agreements extending to October 2055. The total ™
commitments payable are analysed as follows:
Group Company
r5E ERAH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EBE-—=F TE—TF —EBE—=F TE—TfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TET
Amounts payable FEfS &5
Not later than one year TBE—F 25,155 9,950 = -
Later than one year and FBiR—F K
not later than five years TBERE 42,694 19,210 = -
More than five years Bl AF 187,133 147,904 - -
254,982 177,064 - -
The Group had future minimum lease rental receivable AEBEUT T HMBECEHE 2 RRKIEE
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: W4
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Not later than one year B —F 951 788
Later than one year but not later BB —FETBBRT
than five years 34 557
985 1,345
() Guarantees (o ¥R
As at 31 March 2013, the Company has given guarantees RZZFE—=F=A=+—8 " XRFHGTIHH%

totalling approximately HK$1,534,220,000 (2012:
HK$1,634,300,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
Such banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2013
amounted to approximately HK$271,146,000 (2012:
HK$423,083,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries.

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party is a party that is related to the Group if
directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group (including the Company or its
wholly or non-wholly owned subsidiaries); or the party has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence
over the Group; or the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly
or indirectly, any individual who is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group.

(a) Transactions with related parties

R e MR RME

38 RBI1TEE
RZE—=A=ZA=+—H ' XEEFETHE
AARRBINRETHB AT Z A BIEREKM -

39 BEALXRS

AEALR - ATERLAHEES —ExZHE
REAL  EHAKE WAKE (BREAR
AIEEERFE2EZWBLAR) EH e 8N
SEXKRER AL AZABRELREEZ
B MzEaf TEUARETREAFE
BN RRAL B —REMAEEETREAKR
T%Z$EMEJ\E\E&WF%¢% w - HREE
HRITREBATE S 2 HiE

(a) EBREALTZXS

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(BE5])
Sales of goods and services: HEEMRR
Sales of finished goods to an associated THERIR L PEEZ AT
company 40,517 25,338
Purchase of goods and services: BEEYRRE
Purchase of raw materials from an EEAYNGIE- 3=V =)
associated company 2,286 2,087
Others: Hith :
Rental income from associated companies  [AEf < A B ELFE & U A 4,369 3,760
Rental income from a related company BlEzENSEEER AN 250 199
Management service fee income from FIFE N B W EVE B B WA
related companies 75 222
Management service fee income from EEANCIIEEESEE= PN
an associated company 2,178 2,376
Rental charged by a related company SRS TEEQT 2,073 1,771
Consultancy service fee charged by an SN Sa i NC]
associated company 318 198

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group and on terms as agreed with the
related companies.

REBEEEZER  NLBERSH RS ”$’§@
A% 2 FH R ERE R R E R MAETT °
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FEMBEERME
39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 BEEAXIXREF (&)
(Cont'd)
(b)  Balance with related parties (b) EEREATZEER
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Amount due to an associated company FETESE & A RIIR X 467 544
Amount due from an associated company  FEUEE & A RIIE 3,643 2,132
Trade receivables due from an associated — FEURES L N TE HIEER
company 383 10,853
Other receivables due from a related RIS B A B H AR K
company — 58
() Key management compensation (00 FEEEEMS
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses B « T& - 2L R IEAT 17,800 15,463
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  RIKEA — REAEKE 2 174 156
17,974 15,619
(d) Ultimate controlling party (d) BRESHAL

The directors regard TMF (B.V.l.) Limited, which beneficially
owns 40.96% in the Company’s shares, to be the ultimate
controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms.
Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the beneficial

owners of the TMF (B.V.l.) Limited.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 March 2013 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013

are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

AFEMEGRE

AEEBE_T—=F=-A=+—HLAEAY
BEEZRE  —FFNF 2T —FF - =
T——F T ZFRZFT=F=A=F
—RZEAERARIT :

ES

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-BLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
2§ T _"T——% C"T-TF _ITTHNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FET FET FET FET
(restated)
(BE7))
Revenue WA 2,291,404 2,290,165 2,591,101 2,240,764 2,460,578
Operating profit Syl 69,744 61,968 31,714 7,884 24,834
Finance income B ST A 4,237 3,825 2,267 3,312 10,071
Finance costs AR (7,536) (7,664) (6,871) (5,392) (12,888)
Share of (losses)/profits of it NG
associated companies (B#8),/ &F (3,031) (4,081) (40) (2,682) 201
Impairment loss for investment REBWERTFIZ
in an associated company FEEE (4,864) - - - -
Profit before taxation BTyl 58,550 54,048 27,070 3,122 22,218
Income tax expenses PG (16,613) (28,701) (4,737) 5,988 (1,785)
Profit for the year FEERF 41,937 25,347 22,333 9,110 20,433
Profit attributable to ARRIERFFRA
Equity holders of the company iyl 41,967 25,058 21,223 12,497 22,081
Non-controlling interests e (30) 289 1,110 (3,387) (1,648)
41,937 25,347 22,333 9,110 20,433
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBGHE
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LnEEESE
As at 31 March
HE-ZA=1—-HILEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
=®-=Ff _—T-—§ _—T——% C"T-TF _ITTHNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT FET FAT FHET
(restated)
(BE%)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 707,198 647,371 688,084 579,007 508,778
Current assets mEEE 991,143 1,319,445 1,076,260 1,158,446 1,357,052
Total assets BESE 1,698,341 1,966,816 1,764,344 1,737,453 1,865,830
EQUITY R
Share capital PEE 199,620 99,810 86,810 57,710 57,710
Reserves G4 724,533 786,542 773,327 644,363 640,459
924,153 886,352 860,137 702,073 698,169
Non-controlling interests e £ 1,358 424 40,513 39,403 43,026
Total equity EmEE 925,511 886,776 900,650 741,476 741,195
LIABILITIES af
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 23,553 20,713 14,860 13,006 19,809
Current liabilities MEBARE 749,277 1,059,327 848,834 982,971 1,104,826
Total liabilities BERE 772,830 1,080,040 863,694 995,977 1,124,635
Total equity and liabilities BRLEEEE 1,698,341 1,966,816 1,764,344 1,737,453 1,865,830
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